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Strong Performance
UK revenue growth
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UPWARD TREND
*2013 reported PBT includes a £0.5m loss for discontinued operations
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Financial Highlights

2014

2013*
Previously
reported
results

Change

Revenue (Group)

£68.8m

£66.8m □

Revenue (UK)

£59.8m

£50.2m

Profit before tax
Adjusted profit before tax

◊

Proposed total dividend per share
Net cash

+19%

£0.8m

0.4m ∆

+100%

£1.4m

£1.1m

∆

+27%

1.0p

0.5p

+100%

£1.6m

£1.1m

+45%

50

82

11.4%

7.6%

Working capital days
Return on capital employed (ROCE)

+3%

• Order book increased by 14% to £120m driven by improving demand in the UK property sector.
• Reduced exposure to overseas markets which do not provide an adequate return in the short term.
Withdrawal from UAE in July 2013 and Russia in January 2014.
• Total dividend for the year doubled with a cover of 2.0 times.
• A net increase of 196 employees recruited during the year to service the UK market.
• ROCE increased to 11.4% as the Group drives towards its target of 20%.

* Previously reported results exclude the effects of discontinued operations which the Board considers
to be the most appropriate basis for comparison.
□ Includes revenue from discontinued operations of £5.3m.
∆
Includes losses from discontinued operations of £0.5m.
◊
Adjusted for amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional items.
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The Everyman Theatre, Liverpool
RIBA Stirling Prize - best new building of the year

© Philip Vile
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Chairman’s Statement
I am pleased to report another year of substantial progress at Waterman.
Performance
We have achieved significant milestones on the pathway towards our strategic objectives and we are
on target to deliver our three year plan, including tripling the Group’s adjusted profit before tax by
June 2016. Adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations was £1.4m (2013: £1.1m previously
reported, including a £0.5m loss for discontinued operations).
Our emphasis on growing the business in the UK is delivering the results we anticipated. We
have experienced a 19% growth in UK revenue (2013: 4%). To meet this increased demand for our
services, we have recruited 196 additional employees during the year.
Benefiting from a reduction in working capital days to 50 (2013: 82), return on capital employed
has improved to 11.4% (2013: 7.6%). Notwithstanding a cash outflow of £1.4m from discontinued
operations, our net cash has increased to £1.6m (2013: £1.1m).
To reflect our confidence in the outlook for the Group’s future performance, the Board is
recommending to shareholders a final dividend of 0.6p (2013: 0.3p) making a total dividend for the
year of 1.0p (2013: 0.5p). This is an increase of 100% on last year.
Overview of 2014 activity
Over the past few years, whilst we have faced major economic challenges, the expertise and loyalty of
our teams has enabled us to deliver consistent operational results during a period of huge uncertainty.
We have continued to invest in retaining our people and recruiting the best in class to provide greater
strength and diversity in the services we provide to our clients.
The Board has continued to reduce the Group’s exposure to markets which no longer provide us with
adequate returns.
During the last year, we have withdrawn from UAE and subsequently from Russia. The withdrawals
are part of the Group’s strategy to focus primarily on the more established markets and longstanding
client relationships in the UK which will be the main driver for future growth, supplemented by our
operations in Australia, Ireland and Poland.
Our Civil and Transportation business, which is mainly based in the UK regions, has generated a
much increased operational loss in this financial year. Corrective action was initiated in December
2013 and the changes to the plc Board and management boards have allowed the new management
team within the Civil and Transportation business to re-organise the business and to align costs
with anticipated revenue for the coming year. I am pleased to report that we have made excellent
progress with the turnaround of this business unit and I look forward with confidence to a significant
improvement in performance in the current financial year.
Order book growth
Reflecting our improving markets and strengthening market share in the UK, Australia and Ireland,
our order book has grown by 14% to £120m. Much of this is as a result of our leading position in the
UK property market, where we are now experiencing signs of increased confidence by our clients for
development projects outside the strong London region.
Our commitment to maintaining our positon as a niche consultant in the property sector is setting
us apart from our larger competitors, whom we see are undergoing further change through increased
consolidation. Our size, culture and ethos for design excellence is attracting talent from the larger
consultants and also commissions from our clients who appreciate our hands on approach and drive
for the optimum solution on their projects.
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Dividend & dividend policy
Reflecting our confidence in the future performance and prospects of the Group, we are
recommending a doubling of the dividend we are paying to shareholders.
The Board is proposing to pay a final dividend of 0.6p per share (2013: 0.3p). Subject to approval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be payable on 9 January 2015
to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2014. The final dividend together with the interim
dividend of 0.4p paid on 18 April 2014 makes a total dividend for the year of 1.0p (2013: 0.5p), an
increase of 100%.
The full year dividend is covered 2.0 times by adjusted earnings per share in line with our previously
announced target.
Leadership and our people
As part of the restructuring announced on 23 December 2013, Simon Harden and John Waiting
stepped down from the Board and left Waterman on 31 March 2014 to pursue other interests. I would
like to thank Simon and John for their contribution to the Board over many years.
Waterman has appointed two Chief Operating Officers, Craig Beresford and Neil Humphrey, to provide
strategic leadership to our redesignated core business segments of Property and Infrastructure &
Environment respectively.
We continue to encourage the development of the skills of our people through training and selfdevelopment programmes. Future potential leaders of our various business units and national centres
of excellence are actively encouraged to widen their technical and financial expertise to gain the
necessary skills which will be required by the subsequent generation of directors.
On behalf of the shareholders and directors, I thank all our colleagues and staff for what we
have achieved together during the year and for their support for the management changes we
have implemented.
Outlook
Waterman is continuing to deliver against the previously announced three year strategy.
The key objective for the next twelve months is to improve the performance of our Civil and
Transportation business. The actions we have taken so far together with improving UK regional
markets are anticipated to make significant improvements in our overall performance. Overseas risk
has been reduced and we are committed to our operations in Australia, Ireland and Poland.
Clearly, as the economy improves the availability of skilled resources will become more constrained.
Our strategy is not to drive dramatic revenue growth but to provide a quality service to our clients
which will result in increased fee levels and sustainable workload for our highly skilled teams.
Waterman’s revenue over the last two years in the UK has grown by over 24% over the period. We
anticipate that the demand for our quality services will continue for the foreseeable future.
After nine years as Chairman, I will be stepping down from the Board at the end of the Annual General
Meeting on 5 December 2014. As I approach leaving Waterman, the Board and I are confident of the
Group’s ability to deliver increasing value for our shareholders.
Roger Fidgen
Chairman
29 October 2014
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Strategic Report
Waterman has completed the first year of it’s strategy to drive shareholder value through
profitable growth.
In the 2013 Annual Report, Waterman reaffirmed the following strategic objectives:-

Strategic Objective
To be consultant of choice to our
employees, clients and shareholders.

To focus primarly on the
growing UK Market.

Current Outcome
• Talent is attracted to Waterman with UK employees increasing by
196 in the last year.
• Client long term order work book increased by 14% to £120m

• UK revenue growth of 19%
• UK now generates 87% of Group revenue

• Operating margin increased from 1.7%* to 2.1%

To drive shareholder value.

• Profit before tax doubled to £0.8m
• Dividend doubled to 1.0 pence per share

Progress Against Strategy
Good progress is being made towards Waterman’s strategic financial targets

2014

2013*
Reported results

Tripling of the adjusted profit before tax over the three
years to £3.3m by 30 June 2016

£1.4m

£1.1m

Achieve a return on capital employed of at least 20%

11.4%

7.6%

2.0

2.8

Strategic financial targets

Move towards a dividend cover of 2 times (based on
adjusted eps) over the economic cycle; subject to the
Group having sufficient cash reserves

* As previously reported in the 2013 Annual Report and Financial Statement; includes the loss from operations discontinued in 2014.
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Business Model
Waterman’s business model is to provide engineering and environmental consultancy advice to the
property and infrastructure markets.
We provide our services in four professional disciplines of:-

Structures

Building Services

Environmental

Civil &Transportation

Waterman ‘s geographical focus during the financial year has generated revenues from three main
geographical areas as noted below. All the regions are antipicated to continue to grow in the future.

87%

10%

3%

UK

Australia

Europe

Two thirds of Waterman’s revenue is generated from property design in the private and public
sectors and the remaining one third of revenue is generated from highways, infrastructure and
transporation consultancy in the public sector.

07

Staff & Management
The Human Resources report on pages 57-58 sets out how the Group seeks to recruit, engage,
invest in and reward our staff. Waterman’s business depends firmly on the knowledge, expertise
and quality of its people.
During the year the Board simplified the management structure and reporting lines of businesses
into two main profit segments, each under a Chief Operating Officer. The Chief Operating Officers
report directly to the Board and are tasked to strengthen and expand the Property and Infrastructure
& Environment teams.

Property

Craig Beresford

Infrastructure
& Environment
Neil Humphrey

As part of this strategic review, the opportunity was taken to streamline the Board and also
to reduce senior management costs within the Civil and transportation consultancy business
which was significantly under performing. The Board was reduced from eight to six directors,
consisting of three executive directors and three non executive directors.
The reorganisation involved bringing together all Waterman’s business units, both in the
UK and overseas.

Property

Infrastructure
& Environment

UK Structures

Environmental Consultancy

UK Building Services

Civil & Transportation Outsourcing

Australia

Civil & Transportation Consultancy

Europe (Ireland & Poland)

Overseas, Waterman has withdrawn from regions where it was considered that inadequate
returns on capital employed would be generated in the future. The Group announced
its withdrawal from UAE in July 2013 and from Russia in January 2014. These actions were
completed during the year, with a small number of local staff being retained on a temporary
basis to finalise the closure of the legal entities in these countries.
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Future Outlook
As noted earlier, Waterman’s strategic pathway outlines the tripling of adjusted profit before tax in the
three year period from £1.1m to £3.3m by June 2016
The growth of revenue and margins in our existing businesses is targeted to continue beyond 2016.
In addition, further growth of the Group is being targeted in certain keys areas where Waterman’s
strength of client relationships and experience can be positively leveraged.

2013

Major growth of Building Services and
Highways Outsourcing
Diversification of Environmental & Civil consultancy
in Public & Private sectors respectively
Expansion of Australian Disciplines

}

2016
Year 1

Year 2

}
}

Margin & revenue increase in all businesses

Year 3

Year 4 onwards

£3.3m
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Turn around of Civil and Transportation segment
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£1.1m

Awards

Everyman Theatre

One Eagle Place

Trinity Leeds

Quadrant 2

RIBA Stirling Prize - best
new building of the year

Winner of the BCO Awards
- Commercial Workplace

ICSC European Shopping
Centre Awards 2014 - New
Developments: Large Projects Over 45,000sqm

BREEAM Awards
2014, Winner of office
development of the year
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Business Review
We have made good progress with our strategy to have a greater
focus on the UK and to improve the performance of our continuing
businesses.
The Group has continued to benefit from increased exposure to
the growing UK markets which generate 87% of its revenue and
where revenue in the year grew by 19%. In particular, the Property
group is experiencing increasing demand for its services from
existing and new clients.
From July 2014, the Group will monitor and report the performance
of the Property and Infrastructure & Environment businesses. In this
year’s Annual Report we have shown comparable results based on the
proposed future reporting segments and we have also analysed this
information in more detail in the segmental note this year based on the
segments presented in the past.
The financial information shown within the following business review
includes the 2014 results for the continuing operations and the 2013
financial information as previously reported which the Board considers
to be the most appropriate basis for comparison between the two
periods. The 2013 financial information in the financial statements has
been restated for discontinued operations
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Clarges, London, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Squire and Partners
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Property
2014
Revenue

2013

Change

£32.6m

£34.1m**

-4%

Operating profit*

£3.1m

£1.0m***

+210%

Operating margin

9.5%

2.9%

+228%

*Operating profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.
**Includes revenue from discontinued operations of £5.3m.
***Includes losses from discontinued operations of £0.5m.

The Property segment encompasses the UK structures and building
services businesses which are involved in development projects both
in the public and private sectors plus the overseas businesses in
Australia (which are partly owned by the Group), Ireland and Poland
which are also solely involved in development work.
Included in the reported results for the 2013 financial year, Waterman’s businesses in
the UAE and Russia generated a loss of £0.5m on a revenue of £5.3m. The withdrawal
from these countries within the last twelve months, whilst necessarily reducing the revenue in the
Property segment has improved the segment’s overall profitability and allowed
the Group’s management to focus on the more profitable and stable UK, Australia and Europe regions.
The rationale for bringing together all the businesses which are primarily focused on building design
is to more effectively leverage client relationships, share resources and technical best practice to
generate revenue and efficiencies throughout the Group. An example of this is that during the last
year, work has been cross-referred between all of the company’s geographical locations.
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1 & 2 New Ludgate, London, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Hammerson
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UK Structures
2014

2013

Change

£15.4m

£12.3m

+25%

Operating profit*

£1.5m

£1.1m

+36%

Operating margin

9.7%

8.9%

+9%

Revenue

*Operating profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Waterman’s structural business has delivered 25% growth in revenue
whilst retaining high margins. The majority of the revenue is generated
from London based clients, comprising the major development
companies, banks, pension and property investment funds.
Whilst these clients are headquartered in London, their projects and commissions are in many sectors
and regions throughout the UK.
It is anticipated that the requirement for engineering advice will continue to grow as developments
move from planning to construction. In addition, opportunities within the UK retail market outside of
London are increasing.
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UK Building Services
2014

2013

Change

Revenue

£8.1m

£5.4m

+50%

Operating profit*

£0.6m

£0.2m

+200%

Operating margin

7.4%

3.7%

+100%

*Operating (loss)/profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

In line with Group strategy, the Building Services group is targeting
significant growth over the next five years.
This sector is an area of investment and opportunity as the Group’s client relationships for building
services and structures commissions are similar and therefore can be leveraged not only as a single
discipline appointment but also for multi-discipline working.
Over the last twelve months, Waterman Building Services has increased revenue by 50% and has
doubled operating margins to 7.4%.
Excellent talent has been attracted and recruited to drive anticipated future growth and forge
relationships with new and existing clients.
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Commercial
The London commercial sector has always been a core market for Waterman.
It is currently very buoyant and as a consequence, Waterman has seen a large
number of projects progressing to the construction stage.
Land Securities’ development at 1 and 2 New Ludgate in London, which comprises
35,000m2 of grade A office space located above retail units at ground floor level,
commenced on site in August 2013. Waterman is appointed for both structural and
building services design.
Waterman is also providing multidisciplinary services at One Angel Court in
London for Mitsui Fudosan UK and Stanhope. This development retains part of the
existing structure and extends the building footprint to provide 27,000m2 of office
accommodation over 21 storeys. Demolition of the existing structure commenced in
spring 2014.
Notable London completions in the year were 12-15 Finsbury Circus, a 20,000m2
commercial development for Union Investment and CORE, and 8-10 Moorgate, a
12,000m2 development over eight storeys for Mitsui Fudosan UK.
Opportunities outside London are increasing. In Manchester, scheme design
has been completed on a fourteen storey commercial development for the West
Midlands Pension Fund and Waterman has been selected by Argent to assist on the
£800m Manchester Airport city complex.

Residential
Waterman has continued to secure commissions on prestigious
residential schemes with an emphasis on mixed use developments.
An example of this in London is the British Land Clarges Estate development in
London. This exciting scheme will provide 18,000m2 of luxury apartments, office
and retail space in Mayfair.
Designs are well advanced on Burlington Gate, a 6,000m2 development for Native
Land in London. Construction has commenced on site at Kings Cross on Buildings
P1 and T1 for Argent which when complete will provide over three hundred luxury
apartments. New commissions during the year include Eileen House and Tribeca
Square, both under construction by Laing O’Rourke on the urban regeneration site of
Elephant Road in Elephant and Castle, London.
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Kings Cross P1, London, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Kings Cross
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Westfield Croydon, London, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Croydon Partnership – Croydon

Friars Walk, Newport, United Kingdom
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Retail &
Urban Regeneration
There has been an increased number of commissions in the retail
sector and Waterman is currently providing advice on over 500,000m2
of future retail development.
Detailed design work has commenced on the Hammerson Victoria Gate mixed use
development in Leeds city centre. Waterman has worked with Hammerson for over
ten years on this project, through the lengthy planning process. In early 2014, Sir
Robert McAlpine was appointed for the construction phase and commissioned
Waterman to be both their structural and building services engineering consultant
for the detailed design. The first phase of this 100,000m2 retail led development will
involve the construction of a John Lewis store and retail units.
Work has also commenced on site on Friars Walk, Newport; a 36,000m2 retail led
town centre development for Queensbury Real Estate. In Oxford, tender documents
are currently being prepared for the refurbishment and extension to the existing
1970’s Westgate Shopping Centre. The client, a joint venture between Land
Securities and The Crown Estate is developing three new retail blocks with over 100
shops and restaurants, a John Lewis department store, a residential block, cinema
and double level basement car park.
Waterman has had an ongoing relationship over the last decade with The Crown
Estate. The latest commission is for the design of two significant buildings in London
between Haymarket and Lower Regent Street, known as St James’s Market. This
development commenced on site during 2014 and includes 31,000m2 of retail and
commercial lettable area.
Waterman has provided conceptual design input for the major redevelopment of
Westfield Croydon which involves the redevelopment of The Whitgift Centre in outer
London. Hammerson and Westfield have formed The Croydon Partnership to provide
a 150,000m2 retail experience in the town centre.
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Education
Education has remained a major and diverse market for Waterman over
the last year, with commissions for primary and secondary schools plus
further and higher education schools.
The developments have been located throughout England and Scotland with the
company’s regional offices involved in over twenty education projects. Following an
intense design and build period in conjunction with Morgan Sindall, Waterman has
secured the North West batch of the Priority Schools Building Programme, with a
construction value of £80m, across six individual schools.
In London, Waterman is providing design advice on the Harris Academy, which when
complete, will provide education to over a thousand secondary school students
in a new, 10,000m2, three storey complex. Stratford Academy is a similar project,
which involves two sites in the London Borough of Newham where construction
commenced during 2014 for two years. Waterman has recently been appointed to
the Southwark Primary Expansion Framework. The first commission comprises the
expansion of three existing Victorian schools and the design of three new schools
and will continue until 2016.

Energy & Industrial
The company’s regional involvement in industrial projects is increasing as the
economy continues to improve. For example, Waterman has been appointed to
design the new wind turbine factory in Hull for Siemens.
Waterman’s framework appointment with the Motor Industry Research Association
(MIRA) is generating continuous revenue and interesting challenges. The new MIRA
Technology Park near Nuneaton has been conceived to provide the perfect location
for the European research and development operations of different organisations,
from global vehicle manufacturers through to small technology and innovation
focused businesses. This proposition has been recognised by the UK government
and the development has been named as the UK Enterprise Zone for the transport
sector. It is expected that the redevelopment of the MIRA complex will take place
over a ten year period.
Elsewhere, Waterman is working closely with construction companies and process
engineers on energy from waste PFI projects, such as the Allerton Waste Recovery
Park which is expected to commence during the second half of 2014.
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Everyman Theatre, Liverpool, United Kingdom © Philip Vile

Arts and Heritage
Waterman’s reputation as a leading specialist in theatres and performing
arts spaces has been enhanced by the successful handover of the
Everyman Theatre in Liverpool.
Having won both regional and national RIBA awards, the building has recently won
the prestigious RIBA Stirling Prize.
The British Museum in London has appointed Waterman to complete a
comprehensive survey of energy usage in its buildings and to prepare an energy
strategy for use on all future developments. The study will focus on low carbon
solutions with an emphasis on central heat plants and local district heating systems.
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Australia
2014

2013

Change

Revenue

£6.9m

£8.7m

-21%

Operating profit*

£0.9m

£0.7m

+29%

Operating margin

13%

8%

+63%

Operating profit due to non-controlling Interests

£0.5m

£0.4m

+25%

Operating profit due to Waterman shareholders

£0.4m

£0.3m

+33%

*Operating profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Market conditions in Australia remain affected by the slowing
economies in China and the demand for minerals.
Strategic diversification into stronger sectors has resulted in the partly owned businesses
in Sydney and Melbourne offices continuing to generate healthy profitability. Revenue has
been generated on local projects across the country from the public and private sectors.
Waterman has an excellent portfolio of commissions in the healthcare and judicial sectors,
with particular emphasis on new hospitals and prisons. Another growing market is the
university sector, where significant investment is being made to improve and expand
existing complexes to accommodate the increasing number of overseas students.
Whilst revenue in Australia has reduced over the last year, operating profit has increased
with margins up 63% to 13%. This performance reflects the company’s niche position in
several key sectors.
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UTS Broadway, Sydney, Australia - Image courtesy of UTS
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Melbourne
Whilst the sport, recreational and residential sectors have continued to
provide a base workload, the Melbourne office has increased its profile
in the healthcare and judicial sectors.
The focus on the judicial sector has resulted in the Melbourne office being commissioned as
technical advisor to design and document the new 1,300 bed Ravenhall Prison. It is anticipated that
this growing sector in Australia will require Waterman’s specialist services.
Waterman has been involved in the design and documentation of several large healthcare projects
such as the AUD 90m Frankston Hospital, the AUD 130m Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital and
the AUD 260m Monash Children’s Hospital.
Recent project wins in Victoria include the expansion of the mental health facility at Werribee Mercy
Hospital, the Northern Hospital IPU tower block and in North Queensland, the company has been
appointed to provide advice on the James Cook University.
In other sectors, Waterman has recently been appointed to advise on the building services design for
the new AUD 40m Robert Bosch headquarters on the Clayton Campus in Melbourne and the 150 bed
Australian unity retirement living complex in Carlton, Victoria.
The consultancy market in Victoria remains competitive as a result of government spending cuts.
The state election in late 2014 is likely to cause further delays for proposed government projects.
However, the continuing demand for Waterman’s services outside the public sector is providing a
solid revenue base.
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Sydney
Projects in the education, technology, commercial and manufacturing
sectors have contributed to the revenue of the Sydney office.
In the residential sector, Waterman has been working on several developments including Regency
Tower which is a new commercial, residential and hotel development in Wollongong, New South
Wales.
Investment has continued in Australian universities and Waterman has provided building services
designs for the recently completed Facility of Engineering and IT building for the University of
Technology, Sydney. At the University of Sydney, appointments have been received for student
accommodation, the neuroscience precinct and the Oval Grandstand. Waterman has also completed
hydraulic designs for the mechanical and manufacturing building at the University of New South
Wales.
Waterman has continued its involvement with the AUD 6bn Bangaroo development on the Western
harbour foreshore in Sydney and is designing the Headland Park and Cultural Centre. In addition, a
number of branch rollout projects have been secured across Australia with Commonwealth Bank and
Westpac/St George Bank.
Waterman provides ongoing consulting engineering support to Goodman Fielder for its baking
operations throughout Australia and Asia, and in particular a new bakery facility in Liverpool, New
South Wales.
The company continues to be a leader in the technology market sector and is currently delivering a
roll out of major upgrade works to Vodafone telephone exchange sites in Victoria, South Australia,
Queensland and Western Australia.
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Europe
(Ireland & Poland)
2014
Revenue
Operating profit/(loss)*
Operating margin

2013

Change

£2.1m

£1.9m

+11%

£0m

(£0.2m)

NA

0%

(10.5%)

NA

*Operating profit/(loss) is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

After a number of years of challenging trading conditions, Waterman’s
European operations, which are focused on Ireland and Poland, are
starting to see improved opportunities. On revenue up 11% to £2.1m
our business returned to break even.
Ireland has now returned to modest growth, with unemployment beginning to fall slowly from the very
high levels of the last three years. This improved economic outlook, allied to an influx of international
property investors keen to take advantage of the value that is available, is leading to increased activity
in the sector and to growth in demand for residential property.
The property sector in Central Europe remains more muted, but there are recent signs of improvement.
Waterman’s office in Warsaw, Poland experienced low levels of workload, focusing on due diligence
audits and BREEAM assessment work.
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Clancy Quay, Dublin, Ireland - Image courtesy of OMP Architects
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Robswall, Dublin, Ireland
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Ireland
The Dublin team has secured a considerable volume of early stage planning
work for residential schemes in the last year, both from Irish developers and from
international property firms.
In a number of cases, this work is on large multi-phase urban
schemes which have been mothballed over the last few years,
such as Clongriffin, Royal Canal Park, Rathborne Village and
Robswall, but appointments for new schemes have also been
secured such as Clancy Quay, Central Park and Hollywoodrath.
Activity in the commercial sector is also increasing, with
vacancy rates for high quality office space now reducing, and
rental costs increasing. Waterman has been appointed by US
property investment fund Kennedy Wilson to provide structural
engineering services for the refurbishment and extension of
Baggot Court, a large 1970’s office building in the heart of
Dublin. Planning has also been submitted for commercial
development in Dublin at Pembroke Place and advice is being
provided on a large commercial development at Sir John
Rogerson’s Quay.
The retail sector has remained subdued, with little activity
anticipated in the immediate future. Notwithstanding this,
Waterman completed the Honeypark shopping centre, with
Tesco occupying the anchor store in early 2014 and is providing
continuing support to Aldi, the discount retailer, with several new
stores currently at design stage. Waterman has also secured
appointments for advising on the proposed refurbishment and

extension of the Stillorgan Shopping Centre and for the 3rd
phase of The Park retail park at Carrickmines.
In spite of very low capital expenditure levels by the Irish
government, Waterman remains active on public sector works.
The 600 pupil Scoil Bhride school was handed over during the
year, while two other school projects are under construction, and
detail design has commenced on two large 1,000 pupil schools,
including Kingswood exemplar school. Other public sector
commissions awarded include Wheatfield Prison extension, two
nursing homes and Dun Laoghaire Harbour cruise ship berth.
The outlook for the Dublin office is positive, with workload
now increasing again. The team has been strengthened by
recruitment, whilst the addition of a building services capability
has expanded the range of services provided. Waterman is well
placed to benefit from an improving economy in Ireland together
with continuing to provide some support on London projects.

Poland
Design work for Krakow’s tallest building, the Pramerica office tower, has been completed, with construction well advanced.
Waterman has recently been appointed to provide full structural engineering services for a seven storey commercial building in Oferta,
Warsaw, with work due to commence in the near future. Feasibility work has been completed for the refurbishment and extension of
the Akropolis shopping centre in Lithuania, and further feasibility work has been carried out for the Bemowo retail centre in Warsaw.
The Warsaw team is also providing some support on London projects.
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Battersea, London, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Cityscape
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Infrastructure
& Environment
2014

2013

Change

Revenue

£36.3m

£32.6m

+11%

Operating (loss)/profit*

(£1.6m)

£0.2m

n/a

(4.4%)

0.6%

n/a

Operating margin

*Operating (loss)/profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

The Infrastructure & Environment segment encompasses Waterman’s
civil and transportation consulting, highways and transportation
outsourcing and environmental consulting businesses.
Overall performance has been very disappointing with corrective action now taken seeking a much
improved outturn in the current financial year.
Previously, each Waterman business retained its own management. However, through the restructure
announced in December 2013, the company has amalgamated and rationalised the overall
management and reorganised the Infrastructure & Environment consulting business into regional
profit centres and national centres of excellence to focus on national market opportunities, resources
and technical delivery.
Whilst the outsourcing and environmental businesses are profitable and growing, the civil and
transportation consulting business has been struggling to generate sufficient revenue to cover its
costs with a substantial operating loss of £2.9m (2013: £0.5m) being generated in the year. Further
information is provided in the section below on Civil and Transportation.
The major reason for this loss is that the majority of Waterman’s civil engineering resource is located
outside London in the regional offices where development activity has been lower than anticipated.
However, the new management structure is now much leaner, including the departure of the two
MDs of the Scotland and England/Wales regions. Further cost reduction measures have been
implemented and there is a renewed focus implemented on work generation at acceptable fee rates.
With the actions taken during the second half of the financial year ended 30 June 2014 we are already
seeing the benefits of the turnaround and eagerly anticipate a much improved performance in the
current financial year.
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Civil and
Transportation
Consulting
2014

2013

Change

Revenue

£13.3m

£15.7m

-15%

Operating loss*

(£2.9m)

(£0.5m)

n/a

Operating margin

(21.8%)

(3.2%)

n/a

*Operating loss is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Revenue reduced by £2.4m compared to the previous financial year and
operating losses increased to £2.9m which is a direct result of low utilisation
arising from reduced levels of fee earning work being carried out by the
regional teams.
In addition, financial provisions have been made during the year on several projects where
programme delays and re-working of designs have been necessary, and the resultant additional fees
have not been fully recognised by clients.
The rationalisation of the senior management and subsequent reduction of salaried costs, now
reflecting more closely our anticipated revenue, has resulted in a more effective consulting business.
By July 2014, cash savings with an annual run rate of £1.5m have been delivered and increasing
levels of commissions are currently being generated which has resulted in improved financial results
on a monthly basis.
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West Quay, Southampton, United Kingdom
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Development Planning
and Infrastructure Design
Waterman’s civil engineering and transportation team has witnessed growth in a number
of areas, including transport planning, flood risk and water management services. In water
management, the engineering teams that are located throughout the UK have delivered in
excess of 150 schemes and studies, including the hydraulic analysis to support the £7.5m
refurbishment and reconstruction of the Ifield Mill Pond Dam for Crawley Borough Council.
In the urban regeneration market, work has continued on the
Victoria Gate project in Leeds which commenced on site in
spring of 2014, and the team continues to support the Nine
Elms mix-used redevelopment scheme on the south bank of the
Thames to provide both retail and residential opportunities.
Work in the retail sector has continued in the year, with the team
providing transport planning support in respect of extensions to
thecentre:MK, Milton Keynes and outline consent for West Quay
in Southampton. The trunk road highway design work for the
extension to the Cyfarthfa Retail Park, Merthyr Tydfil has been
completed, which enabled a start on site in January 2014. In
addition, civil engineering design work has been carried out for
Westgate, Oxford.
During the year, Waterman was appointed to provide engineering
masterplanning services to a major 190 hectare project to
develop a new sustainable community, including up to 1,900
self-build homes on former Ministry of Defence land near
Bicester.
Waterman continues to support Tesco through its framework for
transport planning and highway design with over sixty projects
undertaken. Recent commissions have included Highams
Park, a store anchored, mixed-use scheme and Streatham Hub,
a regeneration project in Lambeth which includes a multifunctional leisure facility and a 1,000 seater ice rink, 250
residential units, retail store and areas of public realm. Major
highway improvements have been designed on the Streatham
High Road as part of the development.
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Waterman is finalising the detailed design for the £15m single
carriage Bedford Western Bypass which extends over 2km. The
scheme is expected to be on-site in late autumn 2014, with a
construction period covering two years. Once completed, the
Bypass will provide access for future significant residential and
commercial development to the north of Bedford.
In the Midlands, teams have been working on the Manufacturing
Technology Centre (MTC) at Ansty Park, Coventry; a major
industrial research facility allowing collaboration between
some of the UK’s global manufacturers and the Universities of
Birmingham, Nottingham and Loughborough.
In Scotland, Waterman’s team has been appointed for the
detailed design phase of the new £3.4m North Renfrew Flood
Prevention Scheme in Glasgow. This is an extension to the
original commission for the scheme design and associated
modelling work. The project includes an innovative new pumping
station, flood protection barriers and ancillary works to protect
properties in North Renfrew from tidal flooding.
In the residential sector, Waterman has advised on almost 300
schemes of varying scale and unit volume for clients including
Taylor Wimpey, Berkeley Homes, Miller Homes, Bellway Homes
and Persimmon Homes. Commissions have been received
through the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) including
approximately 200 new and refurbished units within the Tollgate
Gardens redevelopment, an existing Westminster City Council
housing estate in north west London.

Cyfartha Retail Park, Swansea, United Kingdom
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Power, Energy and Waste
Power, energy and waste remain target sectors for Waterman and there has been a steady
increase in workload throughout the year with teams providing consultancy advice covering
installations, structural assessment handlings systems, site inspections and other civil
engineering related support at a variety of power stations including Drax, Eggborough,
Ratcliffe and Dungeness.
Design advice has been provided to Scottish and Southern
Energy on transfer stations and power stations. In the renewable
energy sector, work continues on a number of wind and solar
farms including: Fowler Wind Turbine, Carnalbanagh Windfarm,
Solar Centry, Turves Solar Farm, Knostrop WwTW Wind Turbine
and Scout Moor Wind Farm.
In the energy from waste market, Waterman has been appointed
to provide consultancy support for one of the most efficient

waste conversion solutions in the UK. This can convert 140,000t
of refuse derived fuel into 10MWe of renewable energy to serve
the local community. It is being proposed for two locations:
Doncaster and Walsall.
Waterman has been providing engineering, transportation and
health and safety consultancy services to the White Rose Project,
a Yorkshire carbon storage project which will provide up to 2,000
jobs and supply clean electricity to more than 630,000 homes.

Transport
Waterman has expanded its workload in the rail sector during the year, with its
specialist service providing advice to clients who wish to obtain asset protection
approvals from Network Rail and London Underground.
Work has continued on the Royal Arsenal and Woolwich
development for Berkeley Homes for the Woolwich Over Site
Development to provide 65 residential units in six blocks. Work
has commenced on site and is expected to be completed in
2016.
The rail team continues its work in the design of station upgrades
as part of the National Station Improvement Programme with over
twenty projects having been completed during the year. Projects
include works at Crystal Palace, Hatfield, Woking, Clapham
Junction, Rainham (Kent), Faversham, Fleet, Winchester, Seven
Sisters, Marden, Wye, Bromley North, Kidbrooke, Chadwell
Heath, North Harrow, Farnborough, Selhurst Depot and a new
station at Manston Green.
Waterman has been awarded a new Civil Engineering
Consultancy Framework contract by First Rail Group (part of
FirstGroup), the largest UK rail operator, carrying almost 260
million passengers per annum.
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Waterman’s AutoRailTM asset database continues to be the
primary source of information for the UK rail network. Waterman
has been reappointed by Network Rail to keep information
updated and to issue quarterly updates to subscribers which
include Network Rail, train operating companies, consultants and
contractors including Arup, Atkins, Balfour Beatty, BAM Nuttall,
Carillion, Colas, Costain, First Scot Rail, Harsco, URS, VolkerRail and West Coast Trains. The database now contains over
10,000 route miles of data.
In the marine market, Waterman has been commissioned to
undertake the marine civil engineering schematic design in
support of a planning application for a major, new, leisure,
point–of-call cruise ship terminal in Dún Laoghaire, just south of
Dublin city centre, Ireland.

BHEG, Doncaster, United Kingdom
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Port Glasgow, Glasgow, United Kingdom
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Public Sector
Waterman has been successful in increasing the number of active frameworks
with councils and other public sector bodies in both England and Scotland.
The company now has in excess of 35 active
frameworks and further frameworks are currently being
tendered. Current strategy is to increase the proportion
of work provided by public sector frameworks to
support the revenue of the regional teams.
Waterman continues to gain consultancy commissions
from the West Midlands Highways Alliance, where the
company is in strategic partnership with Atkins as the
sole supplier to deliver a broad range of municipal,
highways and engineering consultancy services across
the region.
Waterman has been awarded a new Civil and Structural
Engineering Framework contract by Kent County
Council to support the delivery of the Council’s capital
programme and property services.
Gloucester County Council has appointed Waterman to
update its suite of strategic traffic models. The project
is to make innovative use of “Big Data” to enable key
motorway/trunk road junctions to be more accurately
modelled to assist in the alleviation of congestion
and delay.

Waterman remains active in the health sector
undertaking over thirty projects including the
Broadmoor Hospital Redevelopment, new health
care facilities at Ballymena Health and Care Centre
and individual care homes for First Care Homes. The
company has been involved in feasibility studies for
Inverclyde Royal Hospital and Hub West Scotland and
the development of a new medical centre at Eglinton,
Irvine.
A series of commissions have been undertaken in
the education sector across a number of schools and
further education establishments. Completed early in
2014, the Port Glasgow Joint Campus is a state of the
art project acting as a joint campus and special needs
facility for three schools.
Revenue was generated under the LEP Bristol
Framework, where Waterman has provided advice on
over 40 primary schools in the Bristol area. Specialist
cladding teams have provided engineering advice
via design and build contracts for projects including
Strathclyde University, Fareham College, North East
Surrey College of Technology and Aberdeen College.

Health & Safety
As the UK property market recovers, there has been an increase in demand for health and safety consultancy
services, with Waterman Health and Safety providing consultancy services to clients across all market sectors in
which Waterman operates.
The health and safety team has framework agreements with Bristol Schools, Plymouth University, Enfield Council
and long term projects at Broadmoor Hospital, Haggerton and Kingsland regeneration project in London. This,
combined with an increase in work from the power and energy sector has helped to maintain a sustainable workload.
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Highways and
Transportation
Outsourcing
2014

2013

Change

£14.6m

£9.7m

+51%

Operating profit*

£0.7m

£0.2m

+250%

Operating margin

4.8%

2.1%

+129%

Revenue

*Operating profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

This financial year has seen continued strong demand for Waterman’s
outsourcing services throughout the UK in the highways and transportation
markets. In response to this, staff numbers have been increased from 216
to 311, up 44%.
The Government has announced a £10.7bn investment in new highway infrastructure over the next
five years.If this occurs, the requirements for Waterman’s services will increase and margins are
likely to trend upwards as skilled and reliable resources become sought after by highway authorities,
consultants and contractors.
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The company’s outsourcing business trades as
Waterman Aspen, which has a strong track record over many
years of seconding engineers to a range of clients.
The 44% increase in employee numbers has been underpinned by
Waterman’s two major local authority frameworks in the Midlands:• The Midlands Highway Alliance (in association with URS) through which

Waterman has been actively supporting the local authorities within the East
Midlands areas for many years, including Nottinghamshire, Leicestershire and
Derbyshire County Councils and Nottingham, Leicester and Derby City Councils.
These core clients have now been joined by Staffordshire County Council, Milton
Keynes Council, Stoke City Council and more recently, Oxfordshire County
Council. This framework is now in its 7th year and Waterman will once again be
joining forces with URS when it is re-bid for implementation in April 2015.
Demand has steadily increased, and by 30 June 2014, we had 76 staff working
within these authorities under this framework. Waterman is also supporting URS
with a further ten staff on its other local authority commissions.

• The West Midlands Highways Alliance (in association with Atkins) is the
corresponding framework in the West Midlands area. This contract was awarded
in May 2013. Over the course of the year, the number of outsourced staff working
within the three main participants, Warwickshire County Council, Coventry City
Council and Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council, has increased to 72.
Waterman is also supporting Atkins, with a further eighteen staff working on its
local authority frameworks.
Waterman has recently added a third framework, also in association with Atkins, for
Hampshire County Council and this is now generating requirements for seconded
staff.
Continuing changes in procurement rules within the public sector have made it
increasingly difficult to provide staff directly to local authorities. As a result, there
were only twelve direct council clients during the year, with a further ten contracted
via third party Neutral Vendor arrangements. Waterman Aspen has therefore followed
a policy of fostering stronger links with most major public sector consultants and
contractors. This has resulted in the provision of staff to a further twenty councils and
it is expected that there will be further opportunities to partner with them on future
bids and frameworks.
The client facing management structure has been strengthened and this has
expanded the client base. The value of the company’s skilled staff resources has
been recognised and rates are starting to increase.
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Environmental
2014

2013

Change

Revenue

£8.3m

£7.2m

+15%

Operating profit*

£0.6m

£0.5m

+20%

Operating margin

7.2%

6.9%

+4%

*Operating profit is before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Waterman’s environmental business has continued to sustain the growth of
the previous two years, delivering 15% revenue growth with operating profit
up 20%.
The focus on delivering value added strategic advice to clients, minimising their environmental
related commercial risks either through acquisition or the planning process, has enabled Waterman to
secure some of the UK’s largest urban regeneration schemes. These include both Phase 2 and Phase
3 of the Battersea Power Station and ongoing advice regarding the redevelopment of Brent Cross for
Hammerson & Standard Life Investments. Good progress continues to be made in the diversification
of the business, with ongoing investment in the waste permitting and planning team, growth from the
aviation sector and development of Waterman’s on-line products, EnviroRisk and Greenspace.
Waterman will look to maintain its long term relationships with clients by developing services and
products which provide pragmatic, commercial advice and added value.
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Due Diligence &
Environment Management
It has been an excellent period for Waterman’s due diligence services.
During the year, the team retained its position as a leading advisor to the
property sector, delivering integrated due diligence support for a number of
key acquisitions, including Intu’s acquisition of three shopping centres from
Westfield, the acquisition of Old Spitalfield, as well as supporting the divestment
of the Dutch embassy in London. Waterman was presented with the Property
Due Diligence Firm of the Year 2013 award by Acquisitions International in
recognition of its expertise in this area
The volume of transactional work for mergers and acquisitions increased in the year,
following a period of reduced deal activity due to the recession. Waterman advised
on a number of corporate deals over this period, including the acquisition of Fulham
Football Club and Park Holidays. The company’s involvement with infrastructure also
remained strong, with advice being provided on the acquisition of Belfast, Stockholm
Skavsta and Orlando International Airports from Albertis. The team has strengthened
its position with private equity, infrastructure and institutional investor clients, due to
the continued expansion of its Responsible Investment service.
Waterman’s Greenspace Management System tool, which provides corporate
environmental, health, safety and carbon management services, has been further
developed and retains its leading market position. New applications include the
Superuser function which allows efficient and cost effective control of multi-site
portfolios, attracting clients such as Network Rail and Tata Steel. There has also been
growth internationally and Greenspace has been used by multi-national corporations
in Sweden, Holland, Australia and China to manage direct operations and/or
supply chains.
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Victoria Gate, Leeds, United Kingdom - Image courtesy of Hammerson

44

Pre Planning Services,
Sustainability & Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA)
Waterman continued to strengthen its position as a leading provider of preplanning EIA services for urban regeneration projects including mixed use
commissions in London at Brent Cross and Battersea Power Station. Waterman
continues to extend its EIA portfolio within the London Borough of Tower
Hamlets (LBTH), having supported numerous tower schemes, including ones
for Canary Wharf Group and Meridian Property Holdings Ltd.
In the South East region, the team was retained as lead EIA
consultant for several high profile schemes which are now at
the ‘reserved’ stage of the planning process. These include
Stanhope’s Ruskin Square in Croydon and Station Hill in
Reading. In addition, work continues on the Oaklands College
project, a mixed use development, incorporating education
and residential components in St Albans, and the Watermark
WestQuay leisure led regeneration scheme in Southampton.
In the South West of England, Waterman has commenced EIA
work for a major residential development on the outskirts of
Hereford, and supported the redevelopment of MoD Bicester,
Graven Hill, for Cherwell District Council, in its proposal to
develop a new community of 1,500 ‘self-build’ homes and
associated infrastructure. Waterman has undertaken diverse
ecology surveys, together with providing environmental advice
on landscape master planning, heritage, ground conditions,
noise and air/odour quality. These services were provided as
part of a multi-disciplinary input at the due diligence stage and
master planning stages.
At the start of the year, the Manchester team saw planning
permission granted for Wilson Bowden’s Macclesfield Town
Centre regeneration project. As the year progressed, Hungate
Phase 2, a residential led scheme for Lend Lease/Evans Property
joint venture in York, was also granted planning permission,
as was Victoria Gate, Hammerson’s John Lewis anchored retail
development in Leeds. The team has also been busy working
with clients on numerous strategic sites and sustainable urban
extensions throughout the North of England.
During the year, Waterman has grown its EIA related technical
capabilities including heritage and socio-economic specialists.
The ecology team expanded further, with teams being

established in Manchester, Leeds and Glasgow. Notable projects
include clerk of works support to SCA Hygiene for demolition of
their Oughtbridge site, and ecological constraints analysis for
significant greenfield land holdings in the North for numerous
clients.
The acoustics team consolidated its reputation as a leading
provider of acoustic services both within the London and the
regional markets, expanding into the Sheffield office whilst
also recruiting in London and Manchester. Waterman has
been retained as acoustic consultant on a number of UK wide
schemes, including a proposed high end residential and hotel
complex within an existing Grade II listed building at Trinity
Square, London and a proposed residential development at
Eileen House, London. Waterman has also been retained by
Stanhope and Examplar Properties to provide acoustic services
from pre-planning to completion on a number of high end office
developments across London. Outside of London, the team has
continued to secure its position through a number of key design
commissions including Wigan and Leigh Arts College and Coleg
Cambria secondary school which is a further education college
in North Wales, as well as continuing to support the ongoing
design development of the Victoria Gate Shopping Centre
in Leeds.
Ongoing project BREEAM (Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Methodology) support is being
provided to Balfour Beatty, the winner of the contract to build
the new, nationwide search and rescue facilities for Bristow
Helicopters. BREEAM advice also continues on the new US
Embassy in London, in addition to supporting a number of
datacentres being developed by Ark Continuity, a project that
includes wider Group services.
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Land Quality &
Brownfield Regeneration
Waterman’s land quality and brownfield regeneration team
experienced significant growth in workloads during the year,
advising on a number of complex projects.
During the year, the pre-planning and acquisition support was completed on Sutton
Gas Works and the site remediation work has commenced. The team has also been
supporting Royal Mail in the flagship redevelopment of the South London Mail
Centre, which is also a former gas works. Detailed risk assessment and statutory
consultation works have been completed and when remediation commences in early
2015, it is anticipated that it will be one of the largest remediation projects active
in London.
Waterman’s understanding of the development process and its ability to offer
pragmatic, commercial environment solutions has resulted in the company’s
continuing involvement in a number of large, multi-disciplinary schemes. Detailed
geotechnical and environmental investigations have been completed on a number
of projects where the interaction of London Underground infrastructure has had to
be carefully modelled. Using this modelling, Waterman has successfully designed
foundations supporting towers in excess of forty storeys, without impacting on the
underground infrastructure or neighbouring buildings.
Outside of London, the Bristol team delivered a number of major, mixed use
schemes including Land at Water Oakley in Windsor. The Leeds and Manchester
teams are taking forward the Victoria Gate scheme in Leeds, supporting Sir Robert
McAlpine with site enabling works. The team is also providing support to Vinci
Taylor Woodrow with the geo-environmental surveys for an Energy from Waste
plant in Allerton, and assisting Laing O’Rourke with the continuation of its Explore
Industrial Park project near Worksop. The Scottish team remains busy with numerous
commissions including geotechnical and environmental investigations at Ferniegair,
South Lanarkshire, and supporting the proposed development of a new school
at Bellsmyre.
Waterman’s waste permitting and planning team has been very busy with a number
of significant appointments, including the preparation of an application to vary an
environmental permit for a 330,000t waste processing facility in East London. The
team prepared all supporting technical documents and also addressed the new
requirements of the Industrial Emissions Directive.

46

Group Outlook
Significant progress has been made over the last twelve months to
focus the Group on strong and growing markets in regions where
Waterman has established client relationships.
Waterman’s order book has grown to £120m. Our reputational strength
and client relationships are generating new commissions.
Waterman has a strong forward strategy in place for the Group and also
for significantly improving the performance of the combined civil and
transportation segment.
Nick Taylor
Chief Executive
29 October 2014
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Key Performance Indicators
The Board set annual objectives, which focus on deliverables in support of both short-term results and the overall longer term strategy. A
number of metrics are used to monitor performance; these include UK revenue growth, Profit before tax, Earnings per share, Net Cash,
Return on Average Capital Employed and Dividend per share.
UK Revenue Growth
£m

48.1

49.9

Profit before tax *

Earnings per share *

(Continuing Operations)

(Continuing Operations)

£m

Pence

59.3

1.4

2.0

18% Increase

27% Increase

1.4

42% Increase

2013**

2014

1.1

1.1

(1.0)

2012

2013

2014

2012

2013**

2014

2012

Definition/Relevance
UK Revenue Growth is the percentage change in
revenue from UK operations in the current year
(86% of Group Revenue in 2014) from the prior
years. This KPI measures our strategy to focus
on UK Revenue Growth.

Definition/Relevance
The level of adjusted profit before tax represents
the results of the basic operating elements of the
Group’s performance.

Definition/Relevance
Adjusted Earnings per share is a measure of the
return generated for each holder of an ordinary
share. It is a key metric used by our investors in
assessing whether we are delivering a suitable
return.

Progress
The improving UK economy in many of our areas
of operation gave us opportunities to increase our
market share and penetrate sectors more deeply.

Progress
We are on target to meet our objective of tripling
the adjusted profit before tax (as reported in
2013) to £3.3m by 30 June 2016.

Progress
42% increase in Earnings per share as the Groups
financial performance continues to improve.

* Before amortisation of acquired intangibles
and exceptional administrative expenses.
** As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

Net Cash
£m

Return on Average Capital Employed
(ROCE)
%

1.1

1.6

11.4

45% Increase

47% Increase

0.9

7.6

* Before amortisation of acquired intangibles and
exceptional administrative expenses.
** As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

Dividend per share
Pence
1.0
100% Increase

6.1

0.5
0.3

2012

2013

2014

Definition/Relevance
Net cash is used to monitor the cash generation
of the Group and how successful it is at
managing it’s working capital.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a net
cash position.

2012

2013*

2014

Definition/Relevance
ROCE is a key metric used to monitor
progress against our key objective of increasing
shareholder return. It is calculated as adjusted
operating profit divided by total equity
less goodwill and net cash.

2012

2013

2014

Definition/Relevance
A distribution of after-tax profits divided by the
number of ordinary shares in issue. Dividends
give shareholders a financial reward that is a
key element in achieving our key objective of
increasing shareholder return.
The targeted dividend policy continues to be the
consistent achievement of an adjusted earnings
per share to dividend cover of two times.

Progress
Strong cash generation from operations has
contributed to an increase in net cash of 45% in
the year.

Progress
Strong progress towards our target of achieving
a Return on Average Capital Employed of 20%
by 30 June 2016.
* As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

48

Progress
Dividend per share doubled in 2014 reflecting
increased earnings and strong cash performance.
The dividend cover was 2.0 times ( 2013:
2.8 times)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Group has a number of potential risks and uncertainties which could have a material impact on its long-term performance. Many of these are
common to other companies operating in the Group’s chosen markets. The Board recognises that effective risk management is fundamental to
helping achieve the Group’s strategic objectives.
To enable it to deliver value to all stakeholders, the Board endeavours to mitigate these risks where possible. In order to achieve its business
objectives, the Group must respond effectively to the associated risks. The Group has established risk management procedures, involving the
identification and monitoring of strategic and operational risks at various levels of management. The Board and its Audit & Risk Committee regularly
review material risks identified. Effective risk management continues to be embedded in our governance framework and our annual budgeting and
strategic planning processes. The risk management framework influences the Board’s risk appetite when assessing the nature and extent of risk it
will accept in order to deliver its strategic and operational objectives.
The framework and the associated risk assessments support the systematic identification, assessment and reporting of risk at both strategic and
operational levels. It aims to ensure that all risks which may have a material impact on the operation of our business, or which could damage the
reputation of our business, are identified and appropriate mitigation strategies are put in place. For example, operational risks associated with the
delivery of our services on projects are mitigated through the application of high standards of quality control and staff training, ongoing project
monitoring, peer reviews and post mortems.
The Board identifies, monitors and reviews the Group’s major risk exposures, however it is not possible to fully mitigate all risks that the Group
encounters. The principal risks for the Group, their potential impacts and mitigation strategies are set out in the following tables:

Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Reduced demand for our services can result
in project cancellation, payment default and
client failure.

Our strategy is to reduce risk by providing
a limited range of professional services to
high quality clients in the UK (86% of revenue
in FY2014) together with selected overseas
markets. We ensure that our debtor exposure
to individual clients is limited.

Economic Outlook
Economic and market conditions
Changes to economic and market conditions
will impact upon expenditure on construction
projects from both public sector and private
sector clients.
Demand for our services will be affected and
resources will need to be adjusted to align
with changing demand for our services.

Increased demand for our services can result
in shortage of staff resources and pressure on
working capital.
Profit margins will come under pressure when
demand and prices fall or when demand
increases and staff resources become scarce
leading to increased staff costs to enable staff
retention.

We focus attention on sectors and markets
with attractive growth prospects, where we
can make acceptable returns on capital
employed and on clients with stable finances.
We align resources to meet actual and
projected levels of demand.
We aim to invoice clients promptly for services
rendered and secure payment at the earliest
opportunity. By doing this, we aim to minimise
the risk of payment failure and reduce the level
of working capital employed on projects.
We have withdrawn from some overseas
markets where the risk of non-payment or
delayed payment was unacceptably high.
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

A serious project failure would damage
our reputation for technical excellence and
affect our growth prospects and financial
performance.

In all offices, the Group uses reliable and
tested design software with effective staff
training to develop innovative solutions to
design issues and client needs. Robust
quality control systems ensure that all work is
thoroughly checked before issue. We currently
hold accreditation to various quality standards
including ISO 9001, ISO 15001 and ISO
24999.

Reputation and staff
Reputation
The Group’s reputation is key to its success.
Meeting clients’ expectations to deliver a high
quality service at a competitive price and to
time is essential and encourages clients to
regularly appoint Waterman for substantial
and high profile projects and commissions.
Our good reputation and ability to secure
the most exciting and challenging projects
underpins our ability to recruit the best staff
available.

Our integrated enterprise resource
planning system enables project costs and
performance to be effectively managed and
reported directly into the financial systems.
Our policies and procedures reinforce the
importance of high ethical standards.
To maintain the highest standards of service,
we continue to invest in ongoing staff training
at all levels.

Staff recruitment, retention and quality
Failure to meet quality standards or provide
effective solutions to technical challenges will
adversely affect our reputation and ability to
win high quality new work.

We will recruit and retain the best quality
staff by paying competitive salaries, offering
exciting project challenges and providing
comfortable working conditions.

The Group must comply with the laws
and regulations of the countries in which it
operates.

Breaches of laws or regulations can result in
fines, imprisonment and reputational damage.

Compliance with Health and Safety laws
and environmental legislation is of particular
concern during the planning, design and
construction phases of a project.

Shortcomings in our service delivery
could result in a health and safety or
environmental incident leading to injury, loss
of life or damage to a development and our
commercial reputation.

The Group has effective policies and
procedures in place setting out its
approach to regulatory and legal matters.
In house specialists regularly update our
documentation and external advisers audit
our compliance with written policies and
procedures. Project checking and peer
reviews are ongoing.

Recruitment and retention of the highest
quality staff is essential to enable the Group
to respond to technical challenges with
innovative solutions on a timely basis.

Regulations, Systems and Control
Regulatory and legal

The Data Protection act imposes an obligation
on employers to deal with sensitive data
responsibly.
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The Group remains vigilant regarding any
changes to laws and regulations in each of
the countries in which it operates. External
advice is sought from lawyers or consultants
to minimise the risk of a failure to comply.

Risk

Impact

Mitigation

System failures may result in staff downtime,
data loss, failure to meet project deadlines
and poor quality or untimely information for
business management.

The Group has effective policies and
procedures in place setting out its
approach to regulatory and legal matters.
In house specialists regularly update our
documentation and external advisers audit
our compliance with written policies and
procedures. Project checking and peer
reviews are ongoing.

Regulations, Systems and Control (Continued)

Systems and IT
In common with most businesses, the
Group must provide and maintain effective
operational and IT systems for the protection
of its intellectual property, service delivery and
provision of reliable information to its clients
and management.
Effective security over sensitive commercial
information and confidential personal data on
our employees must be maintained.

The Group remains vigilant regarding any
changes to laws and regulations in each of
the countries in which it operates. External
advice is sought from lawyers or consultants
to minimise the risk of a failure to comply.

Growth
The Group may grow organically or by
acquisition. Either growth path will add to the
demands on the board and may affect its
ability to effectively manage and control the
rate of growth or the problems associated with
an acquisition.

Organic growth will require robust systems
and controls to ensure that company policies
and procedures are being followed.
Acquisition growth will require cultural
changes and integration of resources
and systems

A common enterprise resource planning
system operates in all UK offices. This is
scalable to meet the demands of higher
levels of business activity. The challenges
to profitable growth in overseas markets are
continuously monitored by local and Group
management.
In the future when acquisitions occur, we will
appoint experienced managers to oversee
the cultural and systems integration of newly
acquired businesses. Initiatives are introduced
to encourage the cultural integration of all staff
and their compliance with the Group’s policies
and procedures.

Business continuity
A significant one-off event such as fire, flood
or terrorism affecting a key business location,
a key project or the Group’s integrated
IT systems.

This could interrupt service delivery, threaten
life and/or cause reputational damage to the
business.

Systems data is backed up daily to off-site
facilities. IT hardware would be replaced
quickly under contingency arrangements with
existing suppliers.
Contingency plans are in place to enable
management to respond promptly and
effectively to a crisis event.
Staff would be asked to relocate to other
offices or to work from home until new office
premises were made available.
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Failure to maintain adequate levels of liquidity
could result in the Group’s inability to exploit
opportunities for growth.

Executive management continuously monitor
the adequacy of the Group’s liquidity.
Company budgets and forecasts will indicate
when additional funding is expected to be
required.

Financial
Financial constraints
The principal financial risk relates to liquidity
and compliance with bank covenants.
Adequate funding is essential to ensure the
Group’s continuance and future growth.
Bank covenants are tested for compliance
every six months.

Insufficient funds could result in a going
concern qualification and/or a withdrawal of
support by our banks.

Bank facilities are re-negotiated annually and
reports are submitted to our banks periodically
for their review.

Foreign exchange
The exchange rate assumptions used to
forecast the expected revenue and costs
for a project change beyond the assumed
parameters.

A transaction gain or loss will arise which will
be recognised in the Income Statement.

Wherever possible, revenues and costs will be
matched in the same currency.

The exchange rate assumptions used to
translate the financial performance of a
subsidiary which trades in a currency which
is not the Group’s reporting currency (UK
pounds) changes beyond the assumed
parameters.

A translation gain or loss will arise which may
be recognised in the Income Statement or
taken to Reserves.

For large exposures, the Group aims to
provide natural hedges against foreign
exchange translation risk.
Our withdrawal from some overseas markets
in the last year has reduced our exposure to
foreign exchange movements.

Financial performance
As a listed company, our shareholders expect
us to deliver acceptable levels of profitability,
earnings per share and Return on Capital
Employed.

Failure to meet shareholder expectations will
result in a low share price, insufficient capital
for growth and may affect our ability to secure
new and large projects with good profit
margins. Our reputation and ability to grow will
suffer accordingly.

Levels of financial authorisation operate
to ensure that all major bids are properly
reviewed to ensure that pricing levels,
payment terms and profit margins are
adequate before commissions are accepted.
The need to control project variations and
scope creep is monitored to ensure that
potential problems are identified and actioned
promptly in order to preserve the planned
financial outcome.
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Board of Directors
Roger Fidgen
Non-Executive Chairman
Roger was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive director in July 2004 and was
elected Chairman in May 2005. He was previously a senior partner at Gardiner &
Theobald and former President of the British Council for Offices.

Ric Piper
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director
Ric was appointed to the Board in January 2013. He is a Chartered Accountant and a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel. Ric was Group Finance Director of
WS Atkins plc from 1993 to 2002. He is Chairman of Frontier Resources International
plc and a NED of a number of other businesses. In addition, he has been a partner with
Restoration Partners Limited, which advises technology businesses, since 2006.

Geoffrey Wright
Independent
Non-Executive Director
Geoff was appointed to the Board in June 2007. Prior to joining Waterman, Geoff was a
Director of Hammerson UK Properties Plc where he was responsible for the construction
and project management of the development programme. He is a past President of The
Chartered Institute of Building.
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Nicholas Taylor
Chief Executive Officer
Nicholas was appointed to the Board in January 2003 as an Executive Director and was
appointed Chief Executive in July 2007. Nicholas joined Waterman as a graduate engineer
in 1982 following two years’ previous construction experience with Taylor Woodrow.
His career progressed with Waterman and by 2000 he was joint Managing Director of
Waterman Structures with promotion to Chairman of this business in 2005. Nicholas is
a chartered engineer, a Member of the Institution of Civil Engineers and a graduate of
INSEAD’s Advanced Management Programme.

Alex Steele
Chief Financial Officer
Alex was appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director in February 2010. Alex
qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1997. She trained with PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PwC) working in the United States, mainland Europe, Australia and the United Kingdom,
specialising in the audit of listed companies. During her time with PwC, she also advised
upon several buy side due diligences. Alex joined Waterman in March 2008, as Group
Divisional Director of Finance. In 2014, she became Chief Financial Officer.

Craig Beresford
Executive Director
Craig was appointed to the Board in January 2003. Craig joined Waterman in 1984
following several years involved in construction for specialist contractors. He was
appointed Managing Director of Waterman Structures in 2008 having previously been joint
Managing Director of this business. In 2013, Craig was appointed Chief Operating Officer
of the Property Board within Waterman. Craig is a chartered engineer and a Member of
the Institution of Civil Engineers.
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Technical Director

Public Health Engineer

Consultant

Research & Development

Associate Director

Junior Engineer

Associate Director

Mechanical Engineer

Sustainability Consultant

Electrical Engineer

Principal Consultant

Graduate Engineer

Heritage Consultant

Senior Engineer

Graduate Consultant

Design Engineer

Senior Sustainability Consultant

Senior Consultant

Mechanical Engineer

Engineer

Principal Consultant

Design Engineer

Trainee CAD Technician

REVIT Engineer

Graduate Consultant

Associate Director

Structural Engineer

Public Health Engineer

Principal Consultant

Engineer

Graduate Consultant

Document Controller

Secretary/PA

Electrical Engineer

Graduate Consultant

Consultant

In the last 12 months Waterman has recruited over 200 engineers and
consultants, many in specialist job roles, reaffirming us as one of the
UK’s leading engineering & environmental consultants.
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Human Resources
Our People

Waterman’s business depends heavily on the knowledge, expertise and quality of its people. Within our working environment, we acknowledge
and realise equality of opportunity for all of our people in meeting the aspirations of our stakeholders. We value technical excellence, team work
and client focus, ensuring that we continually provide opportunities for growth and development, and also the opportunity to work within technical
and support teams on high profile projects both within the UK and our overseas markets. Through our culture and values, we have developed a
talented and highly skilled workforce, retained through personal and professional development opportunities and reward, which has also inspired
new initiatives and investment opportunities, both within and outside of the business. A period of growth this year has confirmed our ability to attract
and retain highly skilled workers, increased our reputation within the engineering and environmental consultancy services sector and strengthened
our aim to be an employer of choice.

Recruitment

In response to the increased demand for our services on major national and international projects during the year, the Company’s Human
Resources (HR) team has continued to focus on recruiting the highest calibre of engineers, consultants and support staff to service our business.
The result has been a substantial increase in resources within the Group, with a growth rate of 12% compared to 1.5% in the previous financial year.

Engagement

Waterman recognises the value and importance of regular communications with its staff. The Group intranet is the main communications channel
within the Company. It is used to circulate information from management and other business partners regarding strategy, new commissions, high
profile tenders, employee achievements, promotions and social news. It also allows staff to network internally, find people with relevant expertise
within the Group and exchange information on projects and skills. In addition, the bi-annual Group newsletter, Waterman Times, is available to all
employees, shareholders and clients.
Throughout the year, the HR team has delivered regular presentations on policy and practice within the business, including information on new
initiatives, and current and future legislation. An example of this has been the implementation of auto enrolment for pensions in order to meet the
government’s legislative requirements. This has resulted in a large uptake of the Company’s pension scheme with minimal opt-out. Presentations
have also taken place on Waterman’s online flexible benefits scheme, following which the majority of staff elected to increase their selection of
benefits this year and have taken advantage of salary sacrifice opportunities.

Investment in our People

Waterman recognises that the professional development of its staff is central to the successful delivery of engineering and environmental quality and
excellence. The Company provides for individual development through training programmes for staff. The performance appraisal scheme is used to
monitor career development and progression and also supports the longer term succession planning strategy.
The Company’s commitment to vocational training has supported growth this year, through attracting high calibre candidates and reinforcing
technical excellence on our projects.
Waterman is committed to offering alternative development routes to becoming an engineer, environmental consultant or technician. An
apprenticeship programme is delivered across all our engineering and environmental disciplines. In the next financial year and in line with
Waterman’s membership of the Technician Apprenticeship Consortium (TAC), it is anticipated that further apprentices will be recruited through the
National Apprenticeship Service (NAS) and South Thames College. The apprenticeship programme enables engineering technician apprentices to
study for an Advanced Level 3 Apprenticeship in Construction & the Built Environment.
As a part of Waterman’s overall commitment to attracting and retaining people at all levels, we are sponsoring eight undergraduates in the UK
during their university studies. We are committed to sponsoring new students each year through our links with Bristol and Surrey Universities. Each
student has the opportunity to complete an eight week work placement every year during the summer months, and for certain degree programmes,
students may also undertake a one year placement. On successful completion of their university studies, sponsored students may secure a
permanent graduate position within the Company.
In addition to Waterman’s sponsorship schemes with Bristol and Surrey Universities, summer work placements are offered to A-Level students
and undergraduates from colleges and universities across the UK and overseas. Fifteen placements were offered throughout the Group including
overseas this year. During the four to eight week placement, work performance is assessed and if successful, A-level students have the opportunity
to join our apprenticeship scheme and undergraduates may be offered sponsorship for the remainder of their degree course.
Waterman offers work experience placements for school students aged fourteen to sixteen during the school holidays. During the year, twenty
placements were made around the UK and five overseas, each lasting between one and two weeks. Students gained experience from working on
practical and theory based projects to help them make informed career choices for the future.
In supporting educational facilities and raising awareness of engineering and environmental consultancy services, we continue to work alongside
schools and universities outside of the workplace and particularly in regional office locations. This year we were involved in the University of
Sheffield’s Industrial Tutor Scheme, which aims to encourage 1st year students to engage with local engineering businesses to gain ‘hands on’
experience and understanding of modern engineering practices. Our structural engineers in Sheffield supported the scheme this year and took four
1st year students to specific high profile sites to outline the many technical and exciting challenges faced by engineers, inspiring the students to
continue progressing a career in engineering consultancy services, as well achieving our aim of becoming an employer of choice.
Waterman employs 52 graduate engineers and environmental consultants and together with our apprentices, they represent 5% of the workforce.
All of our graduate engineers and environmental consultants are on a professional training programme, supported by a mentor and coach. There
is also an in-house support forum for graduates to enable them to gain specialist technical advice and solutions and share information with their
counterparts.
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Reward

The Waterman flexible benefits scheme enables all employees to make personal choices on a wide range of benefits. These include benefit choices
that support both employee and family wellbeing such as cycle to work, childcare and personal pension contributions, as a part of a salary-sacrifice
scheme.
In the year, we carried out a detailed review of our flexible benefits scheme and its affordability for staff. To ensure that our people are able to
maximise their selections, the Company’s benefit contribution was increased by 2% at starting level.

Human Rights

In line with the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, Waterman is committed to following a high standard of ethical conduct
across the Group, working with clients, suppliers and sub-consultants that support our ethical standards, acting lawfully and ethically in the public
interest. In promoting ethical business practices, we ensure fair treatment of all employees including for diversity and equal opportunities and seek
to harness an inclusive and collaborative culture that is free from bullying, discrimination and harassment where everyone is treated with respect and
dignity.

Diversity

Waterman values the differences, needs and contributions of a diverse workforce and recognises the positive benefits of the implementation of its
Diversity Policy. The aim of the policy is to ensure that employees and potential employees are treated fairly and equitably at all times.
Gender equality is a key focus for Waterman, particularly given the engineering and consultancy services’ reputation as a male-dominated industry.
In this financial year, we have achieved a more representative workforce than in the previous year, supported by our flexible working practices
to help people achieve a work / life balance. Our total workforce at 30 June 2014 comprised 238 (21.5%) female and 870 (78.5%) male. Within
the management structure overall there are 21 females (11%), 169 male (89%), with 3 females (16%), and 16 males (84%) on the legal Company
boards. In the next financial year, we aim to review the provision of more specific training and development opportunities especially for females,
both within and outside of the business.
Waterman recognises that its people have different personal and professional needs within and outside of work and are fully supported by our
flexible working, sabbatical and enhanced maternity and paternity policies.
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Financial Review
Performance Summary

During the last year, we have withdrawn from UAE and subsequently from Russia which resulted in a loss from discontinued operations of £3.8m
(2013: £0.5m). Further information is provided in Note 8 Discontinued operations in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The comparatives within the Income Statement have been restated to take account of the effect of the discontinued operations as shown in the
table below:
Continuing Operations
Year ended
30 June 2014
£’000

Continuing Operations
Year ended
30 June 2013
£’000

Discontinued Operations
Year ended
30 June 2013
£’000

As Previously Reported
Year ended
30 June 2013
£’000

Revenue

68,840

61,475

5,284

66,759

Adjusted EBITDA*
Adjusted Operating profit/(loss)*
Adjusted Profit before taxation*
Adjusted Earnings per share (pence)
Return on capital employed (%)

1,908
1,452
1,357
2.0p
11.4%

2,114
1,674
1,571
3.1p
10.9%

(458)
(512)
(512)
-

1,656
1,162
1,059
1.4p
7.6%

*Prior to exceptional items of £0.5m (2013: £0.4m) and amortisation on acquired intangible assets of £0.007m (2013: £0.3m)
Group revenue from continuing operations increased by £7.3m (12%) to £68.8m (2013: £61.5m). In the UK (which in 2014 accounted for 87% of the
Group’s revenue), revenue increased by £9.5m (19%) to £59.8m (2013: £50.3m). Revenue from our International businesses decreased by £2.1m
(19%) to £9.1m (2013: £11.2m), mainly as a result of decreases in revenue from our Australian operations, which fell by £1.8m (21%).
Reported profit before tax was £0.8m (2013: £0.9m), after charging exceptional items of £0.5m (2013: £0.4m).
The Board believes that a more representative measure is adjusted profit before tax, which was £1.4m (2013: £1.1m as previously reported,
including adjusted losses before tax from discontinued operations in 2014 of £0.5m).
Reported operating profit was £0.9m (2013: £1.0m). Excluding exceptional items and the amortisation of acquired intangibles of £0.5m (2013:
£0.4m), adjusted operating profit was £1.5m (2013: £1.2m as previously reported; £1.7m from continuing operations) and adjusted operating
margin of 2.1% (2013: 1.7% as previously reported; 2.7% from continuing operations).
The exceptional items of £0.5m (2013: £0.4m) mainly relate to costs of restructuring the PLC Board and our Civils and Transportation Consulting
business in the UK, offset by settlements on debt previously written off as exceptional. Further information is provided in Note 5 Exceptional items in
the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 104.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board uses a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to monitor financial performance of the business segments. These include revenue,
adjusted operating profit and profit before tax, working capital days and return on operating capital employed. These KPIs are monitored against
budget and targets. The three year trend of the KPIs is reported on page 48.
The financial performance by segment is reported in both Note 2 Segmental Reporting to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 101 and
the Business Review from page 10.
Our Civil and Transportation Consulting segment had a very disappointing year, achieving none of its targeted KPIs. Following the corrective action
taken in the second half of the financial year, a much improved outturn is expected for the following financial year.
The Group’s primary management measure of return on average capital employed was 11.4% (2013: 7.6% as previously reported), as set
out below:
2014
£’000
Adjusted Operating Profit
Capital Employed comprises:
Total Equity
Net Cash
Goodwill
Average capital employed
Return on average capital employed (%)

2014
£’000

2013*
£’000

2013*
£’000

1,452
28,372
(1,615)
(16,229)
10,528

1,162
32,786
(1,116)
(16,713)
14,957

12,743
11.4%

2012
£’000

33,598
(883)
(17,110)
15,605
15,281
7.6%

* As previously reported in the 2013 Annual Report and Financial Statement: includes the loss from operations discontinued in 2014.
The Group is making strong progress to achieve our targeted return on average capital employed of 20% by 30 June 2016.
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Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £0.2m (2013: £0.1m), representing an effective tax rate of 25.4% (2013: 23.75%). This rate is higher than the UK
corporation tax rate of 22.5% mainly due to the impact of the higher Australian tax rate.
Further information, including a reconciliation of the effective tax rate, is provided in Note 7 Taxation in the Consolidated Financial Statements on
page 105.

Earnings per Share

Basic EPS was a loss of 11.8p (2013: loss of 0.4p as previously reported). Adjusted EPS was 2.0p (2013: 1.4p as previously reported).
Adjusted EPS is calculated as follows:

Attributable to Owners of the Parent:
Profit/(loss) after taxation
Amortisation on acquired intangibles after taxation
Exceptional items after taxation
Adjusted profit after taxation
Weighted average number of shares (thousand)
Adjusted earnings per share (pence)

Year ended
30 June 2014*
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2013**
£’000

197
5
418
620

(111)
208
316
413

30,648

30,567

2.0

1.4

* Results from continuing operations
** As previously reported in the 2013 Annual Report and Financial Statement; includes the loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

Dividends

Reflecting its confidence in the outlook for the Group, the Board proposes an increased final dividend of 0.6 p per share (2013: 0.3 p), which,
if approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday 5 December 2014, will be payable on 9 January 2015 to those
shareholders on the share register on 12 December 2014.
When added to the interim dividend of 0.4 p per share (2013: 0.2p), the total dividend for the year will double to 1.0p per share (2013: 0.5p), giving
dividend cover on adjusted earnings per share of 2.0 times (2013: 2.8 times).

Group Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 June 2014 the Group had net assets of £28.4m (2013: £32.8m), with 30.8m fully paid ordinary shares in issue (2013: 30.8m).

Capital Expenditure, Tangible Assets and Goodwill

Capital expenditure in the year was £0.7m (2013: £0.6m).The Group continues to invest in improvements within our offices and high specification
computers to run the latest design software.
Property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2014 of £2.7m (2013: £2.4m) consists of a freehold property in Leeds with a net book value of £1.4m,
office equipment and furniture, leasehold improvements, motor vehicles and computer equipment.
Net tangible assets at 30 June 2014 were £12.0m (2013: £15.9m), equivalent to 39p (2013: 52p) per share. The reduction from the prior year mainly
results from the impact of the £3.8m (2013: £0.5m) loss from discontinued operations.
Goodwill of £16.2m (2013: £16.7m) was held at 30 June 2014. The reduction from the prior year is mainly due to the effect of movements in foreign
exchange. Goodwill was reviewed for impairment at 30 June 2014. The Group undertakes impairment reviews on an annual basis and when there
are any indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Following an impairment review, the Board was satisfied that no provision for
impairment was considered necessary at 30 June 2014. Further details of the review are included in Note 11 Goodwill to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 107.

Working Capital, Cash Flow and Net Funds:
Working Capital
Net trade receivables
Accrued Income
Trade payables
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts
Fees invoiced in advance
Net work in progress
Total
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30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

18,548
66
(2,639)

18,404
178
(2,557)

10,536
(12,582)
(2,046)

10,963
(8,652)
2,311

13,929

18,336

At 30 June 2014, debtor days outstanding were 69 days, an improvement of 13 days (16%) from the previous year end. Working capital days
outstanding were 50 days, an improvement of 32 days (39%).
Despite an operational cash outflow from discontinued operations of £1.4m (2013: inflow of £0.07m), the Group’s net cash from operating activities
was an inflow of £2.0m (2013: £1.4m), an increase of £0.5m (37%).
Net funds at 30 June 2014 were £1.6m (2013: £1.1m). Net funds consist of cash and cash equivalents of £2.9m (2013: £2.8m) less a term loan of
£1.2m (2013: £1.7m). At 30 June 2014, £2.0m (2013: £1.8m) of the cash and cash equivalents was held in subsidiaries not wholly owned by the
Group, of which £0.9m (June 2013: £0.8m) was attributable to the non-controlling interest.

Bank Facilities

At 30 June 2014, the Group’s principal banking facilities were a £4.0m overdraft facility and £1.3m term loan with HSBC PLC, and a £2.5m
confidential invoice discounting facility from Close Invoice Finance Limited. The term loan is repayable by quarterly instalments until 2017.
At 30 June 2014, the overdraft was not used, and the balance on the confidential invoice discounting facility was £0.2m.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Statement of Accounting Policies is set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 96.
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. They affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an ongoing basis and are based on experience and relevant factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
The Board considers that the estimates, judgments and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
• Contract Accounting: Revenue recognition, the valuation of trade receivables and amounts recoverable on contracts and the assessment of
the percentage of completion achieved. The Group assesses contract progress and determines the proportion of contract work completed
at the balance sheet date in relation to the total contract works. This policy requires forecasts to be made on the projected outcomes of projects.
These forecasts require assessments and judgements to be made on matters including changes in work scope, changes in costs and costs to
completion. While the assumptions made are based on professional judgements, subsequent events may mean that estimates calculated prove
to be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the reporting results;
• Insurance Claims: Provision in respect of potential liability insurance claims;
• Goodwill: The annual impairment testing of goodwill; and
• Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is accounted for on temporary differences using the liability method, with deferred tax liabilities being provided for in full
and deferred tax assets being recognised only to the extent that it is judged probable that future taxable profit will arise against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Group Financial Risk Management

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing financial risks.
The Group’s finance team is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash flow monitoring. It seeks to
ensure that adequate liquidity exists at all times in order to meet its cash requirements.
The Group’s strategy is to finance its operations through a mixture of cash generated from operations and where necessary, equity finance and
borrowings by way of bank facilities and working capital finance.
The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and various items, such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise from its
operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group does not hold financial instruments for
speculative purposes. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are described below.

Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk

As reported above, the Group had net funds of £1.6m at the year end, comprising £2.9m of cash less £1.3m of debt. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loan, overdraft and sales financing facility debt obligations. Bank
interest is charged on a floating rate basis.

Credit Risk

Credit checks are performed on all potential customers. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, with no single debtor accounting for more than 6% (2013: 3%) of total receivables balances at
30 June 2014.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has exposure to currency risk on business transactions where revenues and costs are in different currencies, and on translation of assets
and liabilities from local currency into sterling. Revenues and costs in the same currency are matched to form natural hedges wherever possible.
The Group would also implement hedging procedures or purchase currency hedges where a material exposure is identified.

Alex Steele
Chief Financial Officer
29 October 2014
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Corporate Responsibility
Corporate Responsibility is a key part of Waterman’s ethos. This commitment to our clients, suppliers, employees and the communities in which we
work is embodied in our Mission Statement:
“To develop innovative, economic and sustainable solutions that successfully meet the needs of our clients, whilst adding value and a better quality
of life for all. In doing so, we aim to provide an exciting and rewarding work environment for our employees and a successful, dynamic Group,
meeting the aspirations of all our stakeholders”.

Governance

Waterman has a structure of governance that is key to ensuring that it delivers on all its goals and aspirations for sustainability. The Plc Management
Board cascades information to the management boards which are in turn responsible for feeding important strategic information to our company
boards, directors, team leaders, and ultimately every member of our staff.

Management Systems

Waterman has maintained quality, environmental and Health & Safety management systems certified to ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and BS OHSAS 18001
in order to ensure continued high standards of service delivery and environmental and Health and Safety management.
Our principal environmental achievements over the last 12 months have been:
• Creation of work hubs in under-utilised offices
• Increased staff awareness of sustainable working through the creation and roll out of the Group’s Greenspace register of environmental aspects
of impacts
• Further office rationalisation resulting in reduced energy and water usage, and carbon emissions from travel between offices
• Changes to office layouts to increase employee density and deliver more efficient use of energy per floor plate
• Increased levels of home working leading reduced travel between home and office and improved lifestyle
• Further upgrades and take up to Lync communications system throughout UK offices and increased use of video conferencing throughout UK
offices reducing the need for travel
• Increased take up and awareness and adoption of the Ride2Work scheme to encourage a healthier lifestyle
• Higher recycling of waste and IT consumables in line with The Waste Hierarchy
• Further office refurbishments resulting in more energy efficient equipment
• Reduction in the number of parking spaces at a number of our offices
• Increased use of more efficient vehicles with lower emission limits where no alternative travel option exists

Energy Performance from UK Operations
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Carbon Dioxide Emissions From Business Travel
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Energy
Waterman aims to minimise its energy consumption within the operational limitations imposed by the consultancy services it provides. Its energy
consumption arises from the operation of its offices and the travelling undertaken by its staff.
Waterman‘s operations are principally conducted from office premises and energy is used in all offices for heating and lighting and for the operation
of IT and other office equipment. We continue to look for ways in which to reduce our carbon emissions and have introduced energy saving
measures wherever possible. We have carried out energy audits of our UK based offices in order to monitor usage with a view to maximising energy
efficiency and reducing carbon emissions through staff training, good housekeeping and actively managing control systems.
Travel to and from the workplace and to attend meetings is an essential requirement to providing our services. Wherever feasible, public transport is
used however this is not always convenient or efficient. Video conferencing has been introduced to most UK and overseas offices with the benefit of
reduced time and travel costs and lower energy consumption.
In accordance with the new Part 7 disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions, our CO2 equivalent emissions by scope and by region are
reported in the table below. This is the first occasion on which we have captured and reported data in this way. Emissions data has been captured
from sources including supplier invoices, meter readings and staff travel records and then converted to CO2 equivalents using industry standard
conversion factors. Certain assumptions have been made for energy consumption from our discontinued operations in the UAE and Russia and
where the data was not readily available. Our systems are being improved to capture and report this data with greater accuracy in future years.
Scope 1
Region

Gas
Tonnes

Scope 2
Road
Tonnes

Electricity
Tonnes

Scope 3

Region total

Rail
Tonnes

Air
Tonnes

Tonnes

UK
Europe
Asia Pacific

238
-

318
16
23

598
143
364

86
6
2

40
7
75

1,280
172
464

Middle East
Energy Source Totals

238

3
360

47
1,152

1
95

10
132

61
1,977

Scope 1 emissions relate to energy directly consumed from combustion and operation of any facility. For Waterman, this comprises gas burned to
heat our offices and vehicle fuel used on company business. Energy consumed has been converted into CO2 equivalent tonnes.
Scope 2 emissions arise from indirect or purchased sources. We have reported the CO2 emissions arising from electricity used to heat our offices.
Scope 3 emissions relate to emissions from the use of rail and air transport. We have collected travel data for our staff and converted this into CO2
equivalents.
Based on the average number of permanent staff employed of 935 (including discontinued operations) the CO2 equivalent emissions were 2.1
tonnes per employee in FY2014. As shown by the charts above, our total energy consumption and consumption per head of staff in the UK has
reduced in the last year. Waterman Group will continue to explore ways in which emissions can be further reduced.
Water
Our principal use of water is in kitchen and washroom facilities in office premises. Where premises are leased, we are unable to materially influence
the type of supply equipment provided by our landlord and its sustainability. Our water consumption is low and is not considered to have a
significant environmental impact.
Travel And Transport
We operate a sustainable travel policy for the promotion of a more environmentally sustainable mode of transport. This includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Promoting public transport as the preferred option for our staff when travelling on business, rather than travelling by car or taxi;
IT systems to allow flexible and home working, reducing the need for long car journeys into our offices;
Providing shower facilities and cycle racks at our offices wherever we can, to encourage staff to cycle to work;
Interest free season ticket loans for our staff to enable their use of public transport;
No parking facilities provided at our office in central London;
Relocating new offices within walking distance of a train station, wherever practicable;
Providing visitors to our offices with detailed maps showing public transport options for reaching us.
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Health and Safety
Waterman Group places the highest priority on the protection of its employees, construction industry workers not in its employment and individuals
affected by its activities. The Group’s health & safety policy and safe working procedures aim to prevent accidents, incidents and ill health by
providing and maintaining adequate control of risks arising from all work activities within its offices or at associated site locations. These were
reviewed and updated during the year and made available to all employees through the Group’s intranet. The current health & safety policy was
approved in July 2014. The health and safety system continues to comply with OHSAS 18001.
We aim to maintain safe and healthy working environments by providing regular information, instruction, training and supervision to all employees in
order to enable them to undertake their work safely. Fire drills are held regularly, selected staff are trained to provide first aid assistance and all staff
are required to attend health and safety refresher courses every three years. Staff who visit or work on a construction site receive additional training
about the risks of working in hazardous conditions. Waterman undertakes to provide and maintain safe working environments, safe plant and
equipment and ensure safe handling and use of substances.
Waterman’s senior management continues to commit the Group and its operating companies to operate high standards of health and safety. Funds
and resources are provided to enable correct implementation of the policy, whilst meeting the expectations of stakeholders.
Waterman Health & Safety continues to advise on workplace health and safety and staff wellbeing. It acts as health and safety advisor to all
operating companies within Waterman Group and liaises with the Health & Safety Executive nationally and with the enforcement officers from the
Health and Safety Executive and Local Authorities throughout the UK. It reviews and maintains the Group’s health and safety policy and procedures,
advises on new and impending changes to legislation, and provides training to staff on general health and safety matters, on the Construction
(Design & Management) Regulations 2007, on construction site safety, and on fire and emergency related matters.
The Group operates a health and safety consultative committee in each office comprising staff representatives. These committees meet every 3-6
months, depending on the number of issues arising. Employees are invited to raise matters of concern affecting workplace health and safety to their
local representatives which will be considered and addressed by senior management. Each office has a named office health & safety manager with
responsibility for managing health and safety in the office premises occupied by Waterman. All of the managers receive regular health and safety
information and advice from Waterman Health & Safety.
All legal directors and other senior managers of Waterman operating companies have received training on their duties and responsibilities regarding
health and safety legislation.
Waterman Group maintains membership of various health and safety organisations and assessment systems including CHAS (Construction Health
& Safety Assessment Scheme) and SafeContractor. An annual health and safety inspection for each office and operating company was undertaken
in order to review the Group’s overall health and safety performance and its compliance with the Group’s health and safety system, existing
legislation and good practice. This audit considered whether the health and safety performance of each office and operating company was in
compliance with the Group’s policy and procedures and confirmed that the health and safety systems are being maintained to a high standard.
After using online health and safety training for many years, face to face training was reinstated this year for all operating companies with the
exception of Waterman Aspen who continue using the e-learning since their employees are located in a range of client offices and not in Waterman
offices. Face to face training is provided by Waterman Health & Safety and includes occupational and workplace health, construction health and
safety and CDM. Over 70% of Waterman employees received health and safety training during the year which was an increase on previous year.
Asbestos Awareness training was provided by an external company for those employees who are likely to come into contact with asbestos during
the course of their work.
During the year, we have had no serious incidents or breach of our health and safety policy, nor have we been involved in any prosecutions or
complaints regarding health and safety. There have been no reportable injuries in the last three years.
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Sustainability Policy
Waterman Group is committed to achieving a high level of awareness of the ethical and commercial importance of sustainability and wherever
practicable, to integrating sustainable and responsible practice into its day-to-day operations.
Sustainable development is the means of ensuring a better quality of life for all, both now and in the future. It means effective conservation of the
environment and prudent use of resources. It also means equality of social progress, the maintenance of high stable levels of economic growth
through working towards achieving more with less resource and the more efficient use of energy to help reduce greenhouse gases and climate
change impact.
Within its working practices the Group will:
Clarify the aims of sustainability to all operating companies and staff;
Strive to elect contractors and suppliers on the basis of shared values and standards of sustainable practice;
Work in partnership with clients, contractors, architects and other consultants.
Waterman Group’s sustainability aims are to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Protect and enhance the natural and built environment wherever possible;
Encourage the sustainable use of resources at all times;
Reduce waste generation and dispose of waste responsibly;
Reduce consumption of energy in construction and use;
Promote the use of sustainable modes of transport;
Assist in the creation of sustainable communities;
Follow best international practice on environmental legislation and standards;
Promote sustainable design, development and construction practices; and
Seek continual improvement in the sustainability performance of all aspects of our business and report our performance for the benefit of
all stakeholders.

Within the operation and management of its affairs, the Group will strive to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adopt an holistic approach to business planning and practice, to include non-financial measures of success;
Implement quality, health and safety and environmental management systems to maintain continual improvement in these areas;
Provide a high standard of working environment for all employees and promote the adoption of a healthy work-life balance;
Promote efficiency in energy and water usage and paper and consumables recycling in all its places of business;
Support and encourage wherever possible staff members’ participation in charitable or community activities;
Promote travel plans for all offices;
Support all professional and administrative activities with appropriate training, coaching and advice; and
Conduct its business with the highest standards of professional and personal integrity and honesty.

Environmental Policy
The Group is committed to achieving a high standard of environmental awareness at all levels within the organisation and to promoting
environmentally responsible practice both within the work place and beyond. The Group believes that everyone has a part to play in safeguarding
and enhancing the environment. The guiding principles of the Group’s environmental policy are to strive to:
• Prevent pollution and protect and enhance the natural environment wherever possible;
• Encourage the sustainable use of natural resources;
• Regularly set, and monitor the achievement of, objectives and targets to promote the continual improvement in environmental performance
of all aspects of our business;
• Reduce waste generation through re-use and recycling wherever practicable and dispose of all waste responsibly and safely;
• Comply with relevant environmental legislation and adopt internal standards based on international best practice;
• Encourage all staff to adopt energy, water and resource efficiency and conservation measures;
• Promote awareness of environmental issues amongst staff, clients and other interested parties;
• Select contractors, suppliers and materials that meet acceptable environmental standards;
• Promote environmentally sympathetic design and construction practice wherever possible;
• Promote the best use of environmentally sustainable modes of transport; and
• Document, implement, maintain and communicate this policy to all employees.
The Group aims to develop and refine its environmental policy by remaining abreast of current and future best practice developments and corporate
environmental standards. To this end, it supports the work of organisations such as the Environment Council, CIRIA, the Chartered Institution
of Wastes Management (CIWM), The Chartered Institution of Water and Environmental Management (CIWEM), The Institute of Environmental
Management and Assessment (IEMA) and The Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE).
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the Group
Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and the Parent
Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these
Financial Statements, the directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements respectively;
• prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the Financial
Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The directors consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statement, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess a company’s performance, business model and strategy.
Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:
• the Group Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the Group; and
• the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Nicholas J Taylor
Group Chief Executive
29 October 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
Letter from the Chairman
I am pleased to present the Board’s annual report on Corporate Governance which provides a summary of our activity in this area during the last
year.
In discharging our responsibility for ensuring the long term success of the Company, the Board balances its time between forward looking matters
such as strategy, business development and opportunities for growth and improvement, and oversight matters such as financial performance, risk
management, compliance and monitoring. We remain committed to ensuring that a strong governance framework operates throughout the Group
since this provides an essential foundation on which to build the future success of the Group.
The following report together with the reports from the Audit and Risk, Nomination and Remuneration Committees set out in detail the governance
framework and the key matters addressed by the Board and its Committees during the year.
The Directors currently in office are listed on pages 54 to 55. There have been two changes during the year. Executive directors Simon Harden and
John Waiting stepped down from the Board on 20 December 2013 and left the Group’s employment on 31 March 2014. This formed part of an
internal restructuring designed to simplify reporting lines and responsibilities within the business and to give enhanced leadership to the two distinct
segments of the Group - Property and Infrastructure & Environment (“IE”). No new directors were appointed during the year and the board currently
comprises three executive directors and three non-executive directors. There have been no changes to the composition of the Board Committees
during the year.
Strong corporate governance requires an effective and active team of high calibre directors who bring their experience to all matters affecting the
Group. At each Board meeting, our Chief Executive reports upon the key issues, strategy and investor relations. The Finance Director reports upon
financial performance and future projections. Our third executive director reviews business progress, prospects and opportunities in the property
segment, including our partly owned Australian businesses. Written reports for other business segments and disciplines are also presented. This
approach allows all directors to review and debate the ongoing business performance, prospects and forecasts, risks and internal controls and
business strategy. Board meetings have been wide ranging, taking account of the challenges and opportunities presented in our markets.
Each year, a performance evaluation of the Board and each director is undertaken to assess achievement during the year, risk management and
contribution to board decision making. This review also aims to identify any skills gaps and training needs of the directors. No director has a service
contract for a term exceeding one year.
The following pages describe how the Company complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code. I hope you will find these and the entire Annual
Report and Accounts to be both useful and informative.
This is my final letter to shareholders as, after 10 years on the Board, I have indicated my intention to retire by the end of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting on Friday 5 December 2014. I wish Waterman, its staff and its shareholders every success in the years ahead.

Roger Fidgen
Chairman

Statement Of Compliance With The UK Corporate Governance Code
Waterman Group plc (“Waterman”) and its subsidiaries are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. As a listed Company,
Waterman is required to explain how it complies with The UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) published by the Financial Reporting
Council in September 2012 and to confirm whether or not it has complied with the Code’s provisions. This report, together with the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 85 describes how the Company has applied the principles of the Code and complied with the associated
provisions during the year.
The Board seeks to ensure that the governance framework operated by the Company is effective and enables it to comply with best practice
principles as set out in the Code. The Directors consider that, throughout the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company has complied with all of the
principles of the Code which apply to a company which is not included in the FTSE 350.
Roger Fidgen has served on the Board as a non-executive director for 10 years including being Chairman for the last eight years. Provision B.7.1
of the Code requires that non-executive directors who have served longer than nine years should be subject to annual re-election. Mr Fidgen has
confirmed his intention to resign and will stand down at the 2014 AGM.
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The disclosures that follow align with the five sections of the Code: Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration and Relations with
Shareholders.
Leadership
The Board is responsible for delivering the sustainable success of the Group for its stakeholders. It aims to achieve this by setting the optimal
direction and strategic objectives within a framework of legal compliance and robust internal controls. Operational management is delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) who has been given delegated responsibility within pre-set limits of authority. He is empowered to delegate
various responsibilities and limits of authority to others within the Group including the Finance Director and the third executive director. The CEO
has recently established management boards for the restructured property and IE segments of the business which will enable him to discharge his
responsibilities more effectively.
The Board currently comprises three Executive and three Non-Executive Directors as set out on page 69. The Board considers that collectively they
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge to discharge the Board’s duties and responsibilities effectively and that the overall
composition of the Board remains well balanced and appropriate to meet its shareholder responsibilities and corporate governance obligations.
All Directors act in a manner which they consider to be in the best interests of the Company, consistent with their statutory duties as set out in the
Companies Act 2006. Each director is required to declare any matters that may create a conflict of interest both on appointment, and as they arise.
If and when such conflicts arise, the board is empowered to consider and resolve these on behalf of the Company.
The three Executive Directors have a wide range of experience. Nicholas Taylor, a civil and structural engineer was appointed CEO in July 2007. Alex
Steele, a Chartered Accountant, was appointed to the Board as Finance Director in February 2010. Craig Beresford, a structural engineer who has
responsibility for services to clients in the property segment, principally structural engineering and building services, was appointed to the Board in
2003. All three Executive Directors have served throughout the year.
The three Non-Executive Directors are all considered to be independent and have wide-ranging experience developed over many years in business.
They have all served on the Board throughout the year. The contribution of the Non-Executive Directors to the running of the business has been both
influential and effective. They have demonstrated their independence of character and judgment by constructively challenging the reports, proposals
and recommendations tabled by the Executive Directors. None of the Non-Executive Directors has been an employee of the Company, has had
a material business relationship with the Company, has close family ties to the Company or its advisers, holds a material shareholding or has any
conflict of interest which has not been disclosed to the Board.
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and there is a clear division of responsibility between each position. The non-executive
Chairman is responsible for leadership and effectiveness of the Board and for its governance. This includes setting the Board’s agenda, ensuring
that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items, that Directors continually update their skills and knowledge and that the Board
receives accurate, timely and clear information. The Chief Executive is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategy, directing its profitable
operation and giving leadership and direction to the Group.
The main duties of the Board are to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Set the Company’s standards, values and aims to ensure that it meets its obligations to its stakeholders and others;
Agree and set the strategic aims for the business, ensuring resources are adequate to meet its objectives;
Agree objectives, policies and strategies to enable the business to grow;
Monitor the progress and development of the business taking account of the economic, political and social environments in which it operates;
Monitor and control the financial health of the business and the performance of the executive management;
Approve the financial statements, shareholder communications and major transactions including for capital expenditure, premises, acquisitions,
disposals and investments in new markets or joint ventures;
Approve the dividend policy and interim dividends;
Ensure that effective policies for risk management, health and safety and corporate governance are in place and applied throughout the Group,
and meet the required standards of regulatory compliance;
Ensure that the risk management and internal control systems and procedures are adequate and operating effectively; and
Ensure that remuneration arrangements and succession planning arrangements are adequate and appropriate.

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for decision by the Board or its Committees which include strategy, corporate governance, approval
of annual budgets, approval of financial statements, major capital expenditures, investment strategy, internal controls and risk management, senior
management appointments, acquisitions, disposals and significant financing matters.
The Board has a regular schedule of monthly meetings to consider matters reserved for its decision and other matters of significance to the
business. An agenda with appropriate supporting papers is issued in advance of each Board meeting to enable Directors to be made aware of
matters to be discussed. Minutes of each Board meeting are issued after each meeting and approved by Directors at the following meeting.
The Company arranges briefings and updates when required from professional advisors on legal, commercial, regulatory and health and safety
matters. Directors are encouraged to maintain and refresh their skills, continuing professional development (CPD) and knowledge of the Group and
its markets on a regular basis.
The advice and services of the Company Secretary are available to all Directors. In addition, Directors may take independent legal or professional
advice on corporate matters at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary also assists the Audit and Risk Committee when reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls and risk management and assists the Chairman on legal, compliance and corporate governance matters.
In accordance with Company’s Articles of Association, Directors are required to retire after three years or earlier and may submit themselves for
re-appointment. In addition, newly appointed Directors will stand for election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting following their
appointment.
The Company provides insurance cover against the legal costs of defending Directors and officers against civil proceedings taken against them by
third parties and in respect of damages resulting from an unsuccessful defence.
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Committees of the Board
Certain matters are delegated to Committees of the Board and their duties are described in the Terms of Reference summarised below. The Terms of
Reference for these Committees are set by the Board and reviewed annually. They are available from the Company Secretary at the registered office.
These Committees exclusively comprise of Non-Executive Directors with the exception of the Nomination Committee of which the CEO is also a
member. Executive Directors, auditors and the Company Secretary attend Committee meetings by invitation.
The Board’s Committees meet sufficiently regularly to enable them to discharge their governance responsibilities. Minutes of all Committee
meetings are circulated to and reviewed by the Board.
The Audit and Risk Committee
The Committee operates to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, to liaise with the Company’s auditors and ensure their independence,
and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures and risk management systems. It met on four occasions during the
financial year. The Committee is comprised exclusively of Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Ric Piper.
A review of the duties and work performed by this Committee is set out in the Report from the Audit and Risk Committee on page 73.
The Remuneration Committee
This Committee met on six occasions during the financial year to review the remuneration arrangements for the Directors and senior management of
the Group. The Committee is comprised exclusively of Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Geoff Wright.
A review of the duties and work performed by this Committee are set out in the Report from the Remuneration Committee on page 75
The Nomination Committee
This Committee is responsible for nominating candidates to the Board, taking account of the skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board
members. Throughout the year, this Committee has comprised all of the non-executive directors together with the Chief Executive, Nicholas Taylor.
Roger Fidgen has chaired this Committee throughout the year but Geoff Wright chaired the meetings when the selection of a director to replace for
Mr. Fidgen was being discussed.
A review of the duties and work performed by this Committee are set out in the Report from the Nomination Committee on page 72.
The Committee met on ten occasions during the financial year.
The membership of the Board during the year is shown in the table below together with a summary of their attendance.

Board

Audit and Risk

Remuneration

Nomination

Scheduled Meetings

12

4

5

5

Chairman
R S Fidgen

15

4

6

10

15

4

6

10

Executive directors
N J Taylor CEO)
A A Steele (CFO)
C W Beresford
J F G Waiting – resigned on 20 December 2013
S D Harden – resigned on 20 December 2013

15
15
14
9
9

4*
4**
2***
-

6*
-

10
-

Independent non-executive directors
R J Piper ****
G H Wright

15
15

4
4

6
6

10
10

* N J Taylor attended meetings of the Remuneration and Audit and Risk Committees by invitation since he is not a Committee member.
** A A Steele attended meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee by invitation since she is not a Committee member.
*** C W Beresford attended meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee by invitation since he is not a Committee member.
**** R J Piper is the Senior Independent Director
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Effectiveness
The Board recognises the need to maintain high standards of governance and to ensure its continuing effectiveness. It aims to achieve this by
providing relevant training and development opportunities to individual directors, and by ensuring that all significant business matters requiring a
board decision are adequately described in the board papers and constructively debated.
In August 2014, the Board conducted a formal evaluation its own performance, its Committees and its directors. The evaluation was led by the
Chairman and Chief Executive and its results were published to and reviewed by the Board.
The performance of the Board was measured against the principles and provisions set out in the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code. The Board
considered that the use of an external third party adviser to assist with this process was not necessary. The results of the performance evaluation of
the Board reassured the directors that it continued to operate effectively and to fulfil its governance obligations. No significant shortcomings were
identified.
The criteria used for the performance evaluation of the Board’s three Committees were based upon the Terms of Reference for each Committee and
the principles and provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code. Each Committee has operated effectively, maintaining high standards
of governance and responding to best practice developments.
Individual performance evaluations were undertaken against a checklist of tailored criteria and objectives. The Chairman confirms that all the
Directors continue to perform effectively and to meet the requirements of their positions. The Senior Independent Director confirms that the
Chairman continues to perform effectively. Where individual performance weaknesses have been identified, programmes for improvement have
been prepared for action during the next year.
During the year all directors, including the independent non-executive directors, committed a significant amount of time to the Company in line with
the requirements of their position as set out in their Letters of Appointment.
Upon joining the Board, new directors receive a formal induction on matters including the history of the Group, significant board decisions affecting
company strategy, information on board processes and governance and board materials. Non-executive directors regularly visit regional offices to
meet with local management and staff and to listen to their comments and concerns which are shared with the full board.
The Company Secretary provides regular updates on legal, regulatory and governance developments, particularly those which are expected to have
an impact on the Board or the Company. He arranges external training opportunities for attendance by directors and in-house training courses for
directors as and when required.
Accountability
The Board is responsible for establishing, reviewing and maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance framework. The
governance framework is the system by which the Group is directed and controlled. It comprises the laws, regulations and controls within which the
management of the board must operate. It is about the decisions made by the board and how it sets the values to be upheld by all stakeholders.
The Board is responsible for setting the Company’s standards and values, for implementing effective risk management policies and for ensuring
that the internal control systems and procedures operated by the Group enable effective management of business risks. It is the responsibility of
management at all levels to ensure that the internal controls and procedures are followed and that any risk or control issues are promptly brought to
the Board’s attention and addressed.
Each year, the Boards of the principal operating companies within the Group perform an annual appraisal of the principal risks affecting their
businesses, the potential consequences of these risks and the methods by which these risks are monitored, managed and mitigated. On behalf
of the Board, the Audit and Risk Committee reviews the results of these appraisals to ensure that the risks have been properly identified and
considered. Any risks which could have a material effect on the Group’s performance or governance are communicated to and considered by the
Board with appropriate risk mitigation put in place.
The Board confirms that there is a system of procedures and controls in operation for identifying, evaluating and managing risks and that the system
has operated throughout the year under review and continues to operate. However any system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board continuously strives to manage and control operational and financial risks and to
enhance the control environment in all operating companies within the Group.
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The key features of the system of internal control operated by the Group are as follows:
• The Group publishes its mission statement, culture and values on its website. The Mission Statement emphasises the Group values of client
focus, sustainability, staff care, technical excellence, teamwork and corporate development;
• The Board regularly discusses matters such as corporate governance, risk management, strategic planning and financial reporting;
• The Group purchases insurance with limits of indemnity which are reviewed each year to provide adequate limits of indemnity against losses
arising from project liability and other operational risks;
• A clearly defined organisational structure exists with levels of authority and division of responsibility;
• The Board approves the annual capital expenditure budget and authorises major capital and revenue expenditure commitments;
• An executive director also sits on the board of each principal operating company. He reports upon significant risks to business performance or
governance to the board each month;
• Group strategy is reviewed annually by the Board. Ongoing monitoring is conducted at monthly Board meetings;
• Budgets are prepared annually by operating companies and approved by the Board. The financial performance of each principal operating
company is monitored each month against budget and prior year results. Reforecasting of financial projections is performed quarterly with three
year forecasts updated annually;
• Reviews of key performance indicators for each operating company are performed each month. The Finance Director provides monthly reports
to the Board on actual results achieved by the Group and updated forecasts. The Chief Executive reviews the Group’s operational performance
and future prospects;
• Project managers can monitor the financial progress of each ongoing project at any time. Profits are only recognised when the ultimate outcome
of a project can be foreseen with reasonable certainty and anticipated losses are written off as soon as they are identified;
• Fees proposals for large projects are reviewed and approved by two or more Directors. Material changes to costs or revenues or unexpected
events which occur during the course of a project are reported to the operating company board and, where appropriate, to the Group Board;
• Authority, within clearly prescribed limits, is delegated to operating company boards who make operational and financial decisions in relation
to their business. Following a restructuring on 2014, two new management boards will be created to manage the operational and financial
performance of the Group’s interests in the Property sector and the Infrastructure & Environment sectors. The management boards will have
responsibility for ensuring that operating companies achieve or exceed their budgets or targets and deliver consistently high standards of service;
• The Group employs experienced managers who are responsible for the operation of effective financial systems and controls and for managing
treasury risk;
• Effective procedures are in place to protect the security and resilience of data held on the Group’s IT systems, and to ensure that its systems can
be restored quickly in the event of a major system failure;
• The Group operates quality monitoring and validation processes to minimise the risk of errors, mistakes or delays which may lead to liability
insurance claims; and
• The Group provides detailed policy guidance and relevant training to staff on health and safety matters. A meeting to review health and safety
matters takes place each quarter and key matters are referred to management and board meetings.
During the year, the Group undertook a number of internal audit reviews of its operational activities as part of it internal management system. Certain
specialist work was undertaken in order to maintain the Group’s accreditation to international quality standards ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 In view of
this, the Audit and Risk Committee who have responsibility for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls and systems
and ensuring that the procedures for the assessment and management of risks are effective, are satisfied that systems and controls are operating
satisfactorily and that there would not be a net financial benefit from an internal audit function at this time. However this will be reviewed annually.
Remuneration
Designing effective and affordable remuneration packages which attract, retain and motivate directors to run the company successfully is essential.
This challenge rests with the Remuneration Committee and details of their work and the remuneration packages of directors can be found in the
Report from the Remuneration Committee on pages 75 to 85.
Relations With Shareholders
The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective communication with its shareholders. This is achieved by attendance at meetings and
by the issue of reports and newsletters. The Group discloses its activities, financial performance, risks and future prospects in its Annual and Interim
reports. These are made available to stakeholders in paper and electronic formats. The Group also issues newsletters to illustrate projects in which it
has been involved and other matters of interest.
All shareholders are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting at which the Group’s Annual Report and Financial Statement are tabled for
approval and when directors will be present to respond to questions on the Group’s performance during the year and the work performed by the
Board and its three Committees.
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer meet with the Company’s principal shareholders, brokers, analysts and the media following the
announcement of the year end and interim results and on other occasions as required. Feedback reports from institutional shareholders are
compiled by the Company’s broker and issued to the Board to ensure that all directors are made aware of the range of views expressed by current
and potential shareholders. The Chairman and Senior Independent Director also make themselves available to meet with principal shareholders if
and when required.
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Report from the Nomination Committee
Dear Shareholder,
I am pleased to present the report from the Nomination Committee for the year ended 30 June 2014.
During the year, the Committee, which has comprised the three non-executive directors and the CEO throughout the year, has reviewed the
composition and roles of directors on the board as part of the simplification of the management structure and reporting lines of the business, has
interviewed and internally selected two chief operating officers for each of the two new reporting segments, and has undertaken a search for a
replacement for our outgoing Non-executive Chairman, Roger Fidgen.
The Board currently comprises three executive directors and three non-executive directors which is considered to offer an effective and adequate
measure of management oversight.
Regarding gender diversity, the Board includes one female member, Alex Steele who is the Chief Financial Officer.
The Terms of Reference for the Committee were reviewed and updated during the year. No significant changes were required.
The Committee ensured that the performance evaluation for the Board, its Committees and its individual directors was rigorously undertaken against
pre-determined performance criteria.
The Committee has met on ten occasions during the year and all members have attended all Committee meetings. Geoff Wright chaired the
meetings when the replacement for the outgoing Chairman was being discussed.

Roger S Fidgen
Chairman

Role of the Committee
The principal role of the Nomination Committee is to evaluate and ensure that the skills of the Board’s Directors meet the management needs of
the Company and its shareholders. The executive management must demonstrate the entrepreneurial skills to effectively manage and grow the
business whilst the non-executive directors must ensure that effective governance and oversight operates to protect shareholder’s interests. When
a director fails to satisfy these objectives, or when a director resigns or retires, the Committee will take responsibility for appointing a suitable
replacement or rearranging the roles of the board members. When a new appointment occurs, the Committee will ensure that an effective induction
takes place. The Committee will assess the Board’s succession planning requirements.
Diversity policy
The Nomination Committee and the Board recognises the importance of ethnic and gender diversity on its board. The Committee’s policy is to
ensure that all suitable candidates, regardless of ethnic origin, race or gender, are considered when Board vacancies arise. The Committee is keen
to ensure that the strongest and most effective candidates are appointed to the Board. All appointments are on merit against objective criteria. The
Board is supportive of the Davies Report recommendations in relation to board diversity and is pleased to report that its Chief Financial Officer is
female. Female representation on the board is 17%.
Board restructuring
The Board has reduced in size in recent years and the mix of executive and non-executive directors has been rebalanced. As part of our business
restructuring, two executive directors, Simon Harden and John Waiting, resigned from the Board on 20 December 2013. Their positions on the
Board have not been replaced but those parts of the business for which they were responsible have been restructured. Craig Beresford, an
executive director, is also COO of the newly formed Property segment whilst Neil Humphrey has been appointed COO of our Infrastructure &
Environment segment. Their principal role is to provide strategic leadership to the businesses that they lead.
Resignation of the Chairman
After 10 years as a non-executive director and 9 years as non-executive Chairman, Roger Fidgen has tendered his resignation which will take effect
from the end of our AGM in December 2014. The Committee will make recommendations to the Board in due course regarding the appointment of
the new Chairman.
Succession Planning
During the business restructuring process this year, the Committee has worked with the executive management to identify key individuals who
demonstrate the talent and skills to help the board to achieve its strategic goals over the short to medium term.
Performance evaluations
An annual performance evaluation of the board, its committees and its individual directors has been performed. The evaluation process was
conducted by the Committee with assistance from the CEO. No outside agencies have assisted in the process. The process revealed that all
directors are effectively meeting the criteria for their roles, but that some further board training is required in selected areas.
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Report from the Audit and Risk Committee
I am pleased to present the Committee’s annual report on its activities, my second since becoming the Committee Chairman in March 2013.
Shareholders’ attention is drawn to the new, expanded format of the Report from the Independent Auditors on pages 73 to 74.
Membership of the Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee comprises Roger Fidgen (a member since 2005), Geoff Wright (a member since 2007) and Ric Piper (a member
since January 2013).
Ric Piper is a Chartered Accountant and is a current member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP). The Board considers that he has
recent and relevant financial experience.
The Committee’s Key Responsibilities & Meetings
The key responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee are:
• Monitoring the integrity of the half yearly and annual financial statements and formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance. Starting for the year ended 30 June 2014, this includes advising the Board that the Annual Report taken as a whole is fair, balanced
and understandable;
• Reviewing significant financial reporting issues and accounting policies and disclosures in financial reports;
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures and risk management systems;
• Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Group’s independent auditors;
• A review of the independent auditors audit strategy and implementation plan and its findings in relation to the Annual Report and half-year report;
• Overseeing the Board’s relationship with the independent external auditors including their continuing independence and, where appropriate, the
selection of new independent external auditors;
• Considering how the Group’s internal audit requirements shall be satisfied and making recommendations to the Board; and
• Ensuring that an effective whistle blowing procedure is in place.
The Committee met four times during the financial year (2013: 4). The Executive Directors are routinely invited to Committee meetings.
During the year the Committee met privately with the independent auditors and also with a number of senior members of the Finance team. The
Committee Chairman also met privately with the Senior Statutory Auditor (Simon O’Brien) outside of the Committee meetings.
Operation of the Committee
The Committee’s Terms of Reference were reviewed and updated in January 2014 to conform to current best practice. No significant changes were
deemed necessary. They are available on request from the Company Secretary.
The main activities of the Committee during the year were as follows:
• Financial Statements. The Committee reviewed the interim and full year Financial Statements. Presentations were made by management and the
auditors about the key technical and judgmental matters relevant to the Financial Statements. Significant areas considered by the auditors and
the Committee were contract valuations (including debtor and work in progress recoverability), exceptional items, going concern (including
working capital forecasts and banking covenants) together with professional indemnity provisions, discontinued operations, goodwill valuation
and taxation. The first three areas are routinely considered by the Board at its monthly meetings (together with additional reports at the half year
and full year end) and the final four areas are each the subject of specific papers prepared by management for review as part of the Committee’s
and the Board’s approval of Interim and Annual results.
• The Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate for the Board to approve the Financial Statements and that the Annual Report taken as a
whole is fair, balanced and understandable such that it allows shareholders to assess the Group’s performance against the Group’s strategy and
business model.
• Internal financial control systems. The Committee reviewed the recommendations made by the independent auditors and management’s
responses and actions. The Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate for the Board to make the statements regarding internal controls
included in the Corporate Governance Report.
• Internal audit. During the year the Group undertook a number of internal audit reviews of operational activities as part of its internal
management system.
Certain specialist internal audit work was undertaken by external organisations in order to maintain the Group’s accreditation to international quality
standards ISO 9001 and ISO 14001.
The Chairman of the Committee reported to the Board on the Committee’s activities after each meeting, identifying relevant matters requiring
communication to the Board and recommendations on the steps to be taken.
Independent Auditor: Re-appointment & Audit Tender Policy
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as the Company’s independent auditors in 1988.
The appointment of the independent external auditors is approved by shareholders annually. The independent auditors audit of the Financial
Statements is conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, ISA (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
There are no contractual obligations that act to restrict the Committee’s choice of external auditors. In December 2013, the Board proposed and
shareholders approved the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s registered independent public accounting firm for the
financial year ending 30 June 2014.
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The Committee has kept under review the Company’s Audit Tender policy. In September 2012 the UK Governance Code (the Code) was amended
to include, among other changes, a requirement for FTSE 350 companies to put the independent audit contract out to tender at least once every
10 years. The Financial Reporting Council who issue the Code recognised that the audit market could be disrupted if a large number of companies
chose to go out to tender in the first year in which the revised Code applied and hence proposed transitional arrangements that brought tenders in
line with the cycle for rotating the audit partner. The Competition Commission (now the CMA) issued its final report on its inquiry into the FTSE 350
audit market in October 2013. Its recommendations, which are yet to be enacted into law, included a mandatory audit tender once every 10 years,
among other proposals intended to encourage competition.
In addition to the Code and Competition Commission developments, on 27 May 2014 the European Parliament published a directive and a
regulation in the Official Journal of the EU implementing reforms of the audit sector in the EU. EU member states must adopt the necessary
measures to implement the directive by 17 June 2016 while the regulation will apply from 17 June 2016 (other than the prohibition on contractual
clauses limiting the choice of auditors, which will apply from 17 June 2017). The reforms require public interest entities, including all listed
companies, to rotate their auditors once every 10 years (with a possible extension for a further 10 years available where a tender is held) and
introduce a range of new rules and measures to strengthen audit quality and independence across the EU. It is not yet clear what impact the EU
changes will have on the Competition Commission recommendations and on the Code or how the various requirements will interact. The Committee
will therefore continue to monitor developments and will put in place a formal audit tender policy when the position has become clearer. In the
meantime the reappointment of the independent auditors will continue to be the subject of rigorous review each year.
This year, having considered the effectiveness and performance of the independent auditors, the Committee has recommended to the Board the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors of the Company for the next financial year.
Independent Auditor: Services, Independence & Fees
The independent auditors provide the following services:
• A report to the Committee giving an overview of the results, significant contracts and judgments and observations on the control environment;
• An opinion on the truth and fairness of the Group and Company financial statements;
• An internal control report, following its audit, highlighting to management any areas of weakness or concern. No significant weaknesses have
been noted during the audit.
The Audit and Risk Committee monitors the cost effectiveness of audit and non-audit work performed by the independent auditors and also
considers the potential impact if any of this work on independence. Approval is required prior to the independent auditors commencing any material
non-audit work in accordance with a Group policy approved by the Committee. Certain work, such as providing book-keeping services is prohibited.
The Committee regularly reviews all fees for non-audit work paid to the independent auditors. Details of these fees can be found in note 4 to the
Financial Statements. The Committee concluded that the level of non-audit fees which represent 8% of the audit fees of the Group did not have a
negative impact on PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s independence.
Further, the Committee seeks positive evidence of the independence of the independent auditors through its challenge to management, both in
written reports and at Committee meetings. The Committee also regulates the appointment of former employees of the independent auditors to
positions in the Group.
The independent external auditors also operate procedures to safeguard their objectivity and independence. These include periodic rotation of the
Senior Statutory Partner (last rotated in 2012), use of independent concurring partners, use of a technical review panel (where appropriate) and
annual independence confirmations by all staff. The independent external auditors report to the Committee on matters including independence and
non-audit work on an annual basis.
Evaluation of the Committee
In the context of the change of Chairmanship of the Committee during the year ended 30 June 2013, it is intended to undertake an evaluation during
the year ending 30 June 2015.
Approval
This report was approved by the Committee on behalf of the Board on the date shown below and signed on its behalf by:

Ric Piper
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
29 October 2014
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Annual Statement from the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
Dear Shareholder,
I am pleased to present our 2014 Directors Remuneration Report which has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board.
Results and Context of Remuneration for 2014
2014 has been a year of significant activity and change within the Group, with our withdrawal from UAE and Russia, the creation of a more
streamlined PLC Board, the creation of two new management boards of Property and Infrastructure & Environment and the restructuring of the Civils
and Transportation Consulting business.
The Group is on target to deliver our three year plan to triple adjusted profit before tax by 2016. Return on Average Capital Employed has improved
to 11.4% (2013: 7.6%), good progress against our objective to deliver a return of 20% over time. Net cash has increased by 45% to £1.6 million
aided by a significant reduction in working capital days to 50 days (2013: 82 days).
Summary of Key Areas of Focus and Decisions of the Committee During 2014
We have commenced a comprehensive review of executive remuneration ahead of the 2014 AGM, and are intending to discuss our new approach
with our major shareholders prior to the AGM. Our proposed remuneration policy for Executive Directors will include a significant portion of pay
linked to the performance of the Group. It is proposed Executive Director total pay is linked to the value of the Group’s share price.
We have adopted the Government’s new regulations on remuneration reporting, including additional disclosures and the Executive Director’s
remuneration policy which will be subject to a binding vote at the 2014 AGM. In the binding report we have set out the key terms of our policy
formulating it sufficiently broadly to ensure our policy remains relevant and aligned with business objectives over the next three years.
The key decisions made in applying our policies in the year to 30 June 2014 were as follows;
- The annual bonus awarded to the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 June 2013 was 5-6% of their base salary in recognition of the Group’s
financial performance for the year ending 30 June 2013.
- A salary increase for the Executive Directors of between 5 to 12% with effect from 1st January 2014.
- As part of the creation of a more streamlined PLC Board, the Committee approved the payments made to Simon Harden and John Waiting
for loss of office and the remuneration of Neil Humphrey and Craig Beresford, the Chief Operating Officers for the Property and Infrastructure &
Environment segments.
How to Read This Report
This report sets out the remuneration policy for the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of Waterman, describes the individual remuneration
of the Directors for the year ended 30 June 2014 and, in particular, how remuneration is linked to performance. In line with the new remuneration
disclosure regulations this report is divided into:
1. a forward-looking Director’s Remuneration Policy Report which details Waterman’s remuneration policies, and will be subject to a binding vote;
and
2. an Annual report on remuneration, which focuses on the remuneration arrangements and outcomes for the year under review, as well as how
our policy will be applied in 2014/2015. This report, together with the Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, will
be subject to an advisory vote.
Annual General Meeting
The Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, the Director’s Remuneration Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration will be proposed for approval at our 2014 AGM and we look forward to receiving your views and support.

Geoff Wright
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Compliance statement
This is the Directors’ Remuneration Report of the Company which has been produced pursuant to, and in accordance with, the Listing Rules,
Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. The Company has
also followed the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012.
This report contains both auditable and non-auditable information as indicated.

75

Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report
This section sets out the Company’s policy for remuneration of its Directors. A binding shareholder resolution to approve this report will be proposed
at the 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company. This policy will apply from the 2014 AGM, subject to shareholder approval, for a period of
three years.

Key Principles of Remuneration Policy

The Company’s remuneration policy aims to attract, motivate and retain executives of a high calibre who will assist it to develop its competitive
position and enhance shareholder value. It aims to achieve this by ensuring that remuneration packages are competitive whilst remaining in line with
the financial performance of the Group and in the interests of its shareholders.
Our incentive arrangements are designed to reward performance for achievement against company strategy and KPI targets. Our aim is to focus
management on delivering sustainable long term performance and retaining key staff who are crucial to the Group’s future development.

Future Policy Table

The table below describes our policy for the key components of remuneration for Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Element and objective

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Reviewed annually.

Base salary increases may be
applied, taking into account the
factors considered as part of the
annual review.

None

Executive Directors
Base salary
To provide an appropriately
competitive level of base salary to
attract and retain talent.

Salary levels take account of:
• Size and nature of the
responsibilities of each role
• Market pay levels for the role
• Increases for the rest of
the Group

For new appointments salaries
may be set at a lower level. In
such cases, there may be scope
for higher than usual salary
increases in the first three years
as the individual progresses in
the role.

• The executive’s experience
• Changes to the size and
complexity of the Group
• Implications for total
remuneration
• Overall affordability
• Individual and Company
performance
The Committee may award an
out-of-cycle increase for change in
role or promotion for example, if it
considers it appropriate.

Pension
To help to provide for an
appropriate retirement income

The Company operates an
approved defined contribution
pension arrangement.
A cash alternative may be offered
in certain circumstances, for
example where HMRC statutory
limits have been reached.
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Company pension contribution is
10% of base salary but this may
be increased to a maximum of
25% of base salary in exceptional
circumstances.

None

Element and objective

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Benefits include a car or car
allowance, fuel, travel allowance,
life assurance, private medical
insurance, permanent health
insurance, sick pay, holiday
allowance and the reimbursement
of reasonable out of pocket
expenses incurred whilst on
company business. Other benefits
may be provided to meet market
practice or statutory requirements
for example, if the Committee
considers it appropriate.

Car or car allowance up to
£10,000 per annum

None

Other benefits
To provide an appropriate
competitive level of benefits

The cost of insurance benefits
may vary from year to year
depending on the individual’s
circumstances.
There is no overall maximum
benefit value but the Committee
aims to ensure that the total value
of benefits remains proportionate.

In the event that an Executive
Director is required by the Group
to relocate, benefits may include,
but are not limited to, relocation
allowance and housing allowance.

Short term incentives
To align annual rewards with
annual performance and to
support retention and alignment
with shareholder interests.

A bonus may be awarded,
payable after the audited year end
results have been announced, in
cash or shares, dependent upon
the achievement of short term
targets or goals.

Maximum annual opportunity of
100% of base salary.

If individual or company
performance fails to meet its
targets, bonus awards will be
scaled down by the Committee
and may be eliminated altogether.
The Committee may also reduce
the amounts paid if there has
been a material quality, safety or
environmental failure.

Operational and financial targets
are set each year, to align with
the short term objectives of the
business. The performance of
each executive is measured
relative to his or her targets.
At least 75% of the performance
measures will be financial
measures.
The minimum award payment
is zero.

Long term incentives
To reward good long-term
decisions which help grow the
value of Waterman over a three to
five year horizon and to support
the retention of key executives.

Conditional share incentive
awards may be given upon setting
of long term performance targets.

Maximum incentive of 200% of
base salary per annum

Awards will only be realised at the
end of the performance period if
targets, based upon the Group’s
share price, have been achieved.

Executive’s performance would
be measured in relation to the
achievement of targets in key
financial objectives.
The long term targets would be
chosen to align with the long term
objectives of the business. Initially
targets will be linked to share
price, with the threshold level of
vesting starting at 25%.

All employee share plans
To align interests of all employees
with Company Performance.

Executive directors may
participate in an HMRC approved
Share Incentive Plan on the same
basis as all other employees.

Participants can contribute up to
the relevant HMRC approved limit.

None
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Element and objective

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Each Non-Executive Director is
paid a fixed annual fee. The level
of fee takes into account the time
commitment, responsibilities,
market pay levels for the role and
skills and experience required.
The Chairman’s fees are
determined by the Remuneration
Committee.

Increases may be applied,
taking into account the factors
considered as part of the annual
review.

None

Non-Executive Directors
Fees
To remunerate Non-Executive
Directors for their contribution to
the performance of the Group

The Non-Executive Director’s fees
are determined by the Board.
Additional fees may be paid on a
per diem basis to reflect increased
time commitment in certain limited
circumstances.
The Chairmanship, or
membership, of a committee does
not attract additional fees.
Expenses incurred in the
performance of Non-Executive
duties for the Company may be
reimbursed or paid for directly
by the Company, as appropriate,
including any tax due on the
expenses.

The Committee reserves the right to award payments or settlements for loss of office that are not in line with the policy but agreed pre 27 June 2012.

Performance Measures and Targets
Annual Bonus
Annual bonuses are paid when financial targets such as adjusted profit before taxation and levels of net cash have been met or exceeded in the
previous financial year. The targets are set at levels which provide an appropriate balance between incentivising directors to meet annual financial
objectives for the year and progress towards achievement of longer term strategic operational objectives.
Annual bonus metrics and targets are chosen in line with the following principles:
- The targets set for financial measures should be incentivising and appropriately stretching. Targets may be adjusted by the Committee to take into
account significant capital transactions during the year.
- Strategic and operational objectives should include financial and operational measures appropriate to each role.
- There should be flexibility to change the measures year-on-year in line with the needs of the business.
Long Term Incentives
Performance conditions and targets will be determined by the Committee to reflect the Group’s strategy and having regard to market practice within
the Company’s business sector.
The measures that will be selected will take into account that enhancing shareholder value is a key objective of most of our shareholders.

Remuneration Arrangements throughout the Group

Differences in policies for Executive Directors and other employees in the Group generally reflect differences in market practice taking into account
role and seniority. The remuneration policies and incentives for senior managers are focused on performance and may include an annual bonus
payment and share plan incentives. The annual bonus reflects the performance of the Group, the operational unit for which the senior manager has
responsibility together with their personal performance.
Below the senior management team, annual bonuses are considered for all qualifying staff, taking into account Group performance, performance of
the employee’s operational unit and their personal performance.
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Illustration of application of remuneration policy
Pay for performance: scenario analysis
The following charts illustrate the packages for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer - Property,
distinguishing the elements of the package that are performance-related. Three indicative levels of performance are shown: ‘minimum’,
‘target’ and ‘stretch’
Scenario analysis chart
(£000)

Chief Executive (Nick Taylor)
54%

Stretch
Target

80%

Minimum

100%

Chief Financial Officer (Alex Steele)
46%

£527k

20% £361k
£287k

54%

Stretch
Target

85%

Minimum

100%

46%

£358k

15% £230k
£195k

Chief Operating Officer - Property (Craig Beresford)
54%

Stretch
Target

85%

Minimum

100%

Fixed Remuneration

£434k

15% £274k
£234k

Annual Bonus

Component

Fixed remuneration

46%

‘Minimum’

‘Stretch’

Latest confirmed base salary in
the year to 30 June 2015
10% of Salary
Value of annual benefits provided
in the year to 30 June 2014

Base Salary
Pension
Benefits

Estimated annual bonus payable
for the year to 30 June 2015

‘Target’

0 per cent

20 - 30% of base salary
(target opportunity)

100% of base salary
(maximum opportunity)

No payment in respect of Long Term incentives is expected during the first year of operation of the policy as none of the Directors currently hold
Long Term incentive awards. Shareholders will be asked to approve a new Long Term Incentive Plan at the 2014 AGM.
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Approach to Recruitment Remuneration
In the event that the Group appoints a new Director, remuneration would be determined in line with the following principles:
- the Committee will take into account all relevant factors, including the calibre and experience of the individual and the market from which they are
recruited, whilst being mindful of the best interests of the Group and its shareholders and seeking not to pay more than necessary
- so far as practical the Committee will look to align the remuneration package for any new appointment with the remuneration policy set out on
page 76.
- salaries will be set taking into account the review principles set out in the policy table. Where appropriate the salaries may be set at an initially
lower level with the intention of increasing salary at a higher than usual rate as the Director gains experience in the role. For interim positions a cash
supplement may be paid rather than salary (for example a Non-Executive Director taking on an executive function on a short term basis).
- to facilitate recruitment the Committee may need to ‘buy out’ remuneration arrangements forfeited on joining the Company. Any buy-out would
take into account the terms of the arrangements forfeited, in particular any performance conditions and the time over which they would vest. If the
buy-out is settled in Company shares or share options, these will be awarded on an equivalent basis to those forfeited.
- the maximum variable pay opportunity on recruitment is in line with the policy table above, comprising a maximum annual bonus of 100% of
salary, and a maximum long term incentive of 200% of salary.
Where a Director is appointed from within the Company, the normal policy would be to honour any legacy arrangements in line with the original
terms and conditions.
Where a Director is appointed following corporate activity/reorganisation (e.g. merger with another company) legacy terms and conditions would
also be honoured.
Where the recruitment required relocation of the individual, the Committee may provide additional costs and benefits to facilitate the relocation.

Details of Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts with notice periods in line with Company policy where notice period is set to be no longer than 12
months from either party. None of the existing service contracts contains any provision for termination payments other than for payment of salary
and benefits in lieu of notice.
The Executive Directors’ service contracts include provisions relating to salary, employer pension contributions and benefits such as car or car
allowance, fuel, travel allowance, life assurance, private medical insurance for the Director and his/her family, permanent health insurance, sick pay,
holiday allowance and reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred by the Executive Director while on Company business.
The following service contracts in respect of Executive Directors are rolling service contracts and therefore have no end date:

Name
Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

Date Of Appointment

Notice period

6 January 2003
19 February 2010
6 January 2003

12 months
12 months
6 months

Details of Non-Executive Directors Letters of Appointment
The Chairman’s appointment commenced on 1st July 2004. It was initially for a term of three years and has been renewed for a further two terms of
three years. There is no notice period stated in his letter of appointment. The Chairman has served for more than nine years and has announced his
intention to retire at the end of this year’s AGM.
Name
Roger Fidgen

Date Of Appointment

Notice period

1 July 2004

None

The following table sets out the dates of appointment for the other Non-Executive Directors:
Name
Ric Piper
Geoff Wright

Date Of Appointment

Notice period

15 January 2013
1 June 2007

One month
None

Geoff Wright was appointed for an initial term of three years, subject to renewal thereafter. Ric Piper was appointed for an initial term of one year,
subject to annual renewal thereafter.
Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits from their office other than fees and reimbursements of expenses incurred in performance of their
duties, including any tax on expenses. They are not eligible to participate in the Group pension arrangements.
Director’s letters of appointment and service contracts are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.
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Loss of Office Payment Policy
The compensation payable to an Executive Director for loss of office will be determined by reference to the service contract between the executive
and the Company. The Committee may structure any compensation payments in such a way as it deems appropriate taking into account the
circumstances of the Executive’s departure. The level of compensation may be subject to mitigation if considered appropriate.
As provided in the service contracts for Executive Directors, the Company may at the Committee’s discretion make termination payments in lieu of
notice for base salary and benefits only. If a director leaves on good leaver terms such as retirement or redundancy, payments for accrued bonus
and unvested performance incentives or awards will be made if approved by the Committee.
In the event of death pro rata payment of annual bonus will be made if approved by the Committee.
In the event of a change of control or winding up of the Company, bonuses may be paid in respect of the year in which the change occurs if
the Committee consider this to be appropriate. The Committee may determine the level of bonus taking into account any factors it considers
appropriate.
All awards granted under a legacy share option scheme or legacy share incentive plan will vest in accordance with the plan rules. The leaver will
have a right to exercise his award if the shares are in their exercise period and the performance conditions have been met. If the leaver chooses
not to exercise his award, the award will lapse. The Committee has discretion to amend the vesting arrangements in the event of ill health, voluntary
resignation or redundancy.
The Committee may agree to pay for an executive’s retraining costs and legal fees as part of the terms of the settlement agreement.

Consideration of Conditions Elsewhere in the Group

In making remuneration decisions, the Committee also considers the pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
Employees have not provided feedback upon the Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report.
Prior to the annual pay review, the Committee receives a detailed report from the HR Director setting out changes to broader employee pay. This
forms part of the basis for determining Executive Director remuneration.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

When determining remuneration, the Committee takes into account the guidelines from investor advisory bodies and shareholder views. When
considering a significant change in policy the Committee will consider consulting directly with shareholders. During the year to 30 June 2014,
remuneration and executive termination arrangements have not required the involvement of any shareholders or investor advisory bodies.

Minor Changes

The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set out above to comply with regulatory, legislative or taxation changes without obtaining
shareholder approval.

81

Annual Report on Implementation of Remuneration Policy
This section sets out how the Director’s remuneration policy of the Company has been applied in the year and how the Committee intends to
apply the policy in future years. An advisory shareholder resolution to approve this report, together with the Statement from the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, will be proposed at the 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Key Responsibilities

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to determine and agree with the Board, the framework and policy for the remuneration of the
Executive Directors, the Chairman and certain senior managers within the Group. It sets appropriately stretching but achievable targets for the
incentive schemes in order to motivate Executive Directors to deliver high levels of performance for shareholders, clients and employees.
The Committee’s Terms of Reference were reviewed and updated in January 2014 to conform to current best practice. No significant changes were
deemed necessary.
Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, Nick Taylor, attended the meetings by invitation only. No individual is present when his or her remuneration is being determined. There were 6
scheduled meetings of the Committee throughout the year. Attendance of Committee members at meetings was as follows:
Name

No of meetings attended

Geoff Wright (Chairman)
Ric Piper
Roger Fidgen

6
6
6

Total Remuneration in 2014
Single Figure Table (Audited)

Salary or fees paid

Benefits

Bonus

Pension

Total

2014
£’000

2013*
£’000

2014
£’000

2013*
£’000

2014
£’000

2013*
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013*
£’000

233
159
190
85
80

225
147
175
157
160

23
16
14
7
7

23
17
14
9
13

18
9
9
-

12
9
10
-

23
16
19
9
8

23
15
17
17
16

297
200
232
101
95

283
188
216
183
189

Chairman
Roger Fidgen

41

40

-

-

-

-

-

-

41

40

Independent Non-Executive
Ric Piper (appointed 15 January 2013)
Geoff Wright

35
34

16
33
953

76

36

31

75

88

35
34
1,035

16
33

857

67

Name
Executive
Nick Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford
John Waiting (resigned 20 Dec 2013)
Simon Harden (resigned 20 Dec 2013)

Total

1,148

* 2013 balances have been restated to be in line with the basis of calculation of the 2014 balance
Notes to Single Figure Table (audited)
These figures have been calculated as follows:
- Base salary: amount earned for the year
- Benefits: for company cars the higher of the cash allowance or cost of the lease, for all other benefits, the taxable value of the annual benefits
received in the year
- Pension: the value of the Company’s contribution during the year
- Annual bonus: cash received for 2013 annual bonus and estimated to be receivable for 2014 annual bonus.
- No LTIP awards have vesting in the year or in the prior year.
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Directors’ Remuneration and Incentives
Salaries of Executive Directors and other staff are reviewed annually in light of the competitive market practice, including reference to comparable
data from companies of a similar size and companies in the consultancy sector. When determining salaries for Executive Directors, the Committee
takes account of pay and employment conditions in the Company as a whole.
The current salaries for Executive Directors, which took effect from 1 January 2014, are set out below:

Name

Salary from 1st January 2013
£’000

Salary from 1st January 2014
£’000

% change

225
155
180

240
163
200

+6.7%
+5.2%
+11.1%

Nick Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

During the year, Craig Beresford was promoted to Chief Operating Officer - Property.
As of the date of this report, the Executive Directors salaries and the Non-Executive Directors fees remain at the same level as those at 1
January 2014.
Benefits (audited)
The main benefits are travel allowance, life assurance, permanent health insurance, private medical insurance and Company car or cash allowance
and fuel. The value of the cash allowance in lieu of a company car is £10,000 per annum.
Company pension contributions for Executive Directors are 10% of base salary. There are no accrued benefits outstanding under legacy pension
schemes.
Annual bonus (audited)
Financial bonus metrics of adjusted profit before tax (PBT), and net cash performance against target were set. In recognition of the company’s
financial performance against these targets, an estimated cash bonus of between 4-8% of base salary was provisionally approved by the
Committee. The final approved bonus will be paid to each executive director in January 2015. No bonuses will be paid in company shares and no
bonus awards will be deferred.
The bonus targets have not been disclosed because the Committee believe them to be commercially sensitive.
Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) (audited)
No unvested LTIP awards have existed during the year and no new LTIP awards have been made during the year.

Statement of implementation of policy in following year
Annual bonus
The maximum award for the Executive Directors in 2014 was 100 per cent of salary. This will remain unchanged for 2015. The financial bonus
metrics will remain unchanged in 2015.
Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The Remuneration Committee is asking shareholders to approve a new Long-Term Incentive Plan at the 2014 AGM. Under the new plan, executive
directors may receive awards of shares which can vest after three years depending on the achievement of performance targets. Awards may not be
exercised until at least one year after a particular share price target has been reached. For awards to be made in 2014 the performance targets will
be based on the Company’s share price over the performance period as detailed below:
Share price target

% of award vesting

100p
115p
125p
140p
150p

25%
40%
50%
80%
100%

Chief Executive Pay Increase in Relation to all Employees
The table below compares the percentage increase in base salary, benefits and annual bonus of the Chief Executive with all UK based employees
who have remained in employment during the year.
Percentage change in remuneration from 30 June 2013 to 30 June 2014
Name
Chief Executive
UK employees

% change in salary

% change in benefits

% change in bonus

6.7%
5.9%

0%
12.9%

50%
27%*

* The 2014 bonus is estimated to increase by 27% over 2013 in line with the increase in Group Adjusted Profit before Tax which is the main metric on
which staff bonuses are calculated.
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below sets out the relative importance of spend on pay in the financial year and the previous financial year compared with other
disbursements from profit.
Disbursements from profit
2014
£’000

Disbursements from profit
2013
£’000

% change

40,941

38,301

7%

213

122

75%

Total Employees Remuneration
Profit distributed by way of dividend to
Owners of the Parent

Chief Executive Historic Remuneration
The following graph shows the Total Shareholder Return for Waterman Group for the five years ended 30 June 2014 compared to the FTSE Fledgling
Index which measures the financial performance of listed companies with a market capitalisation of under £100m.

The table below sets out the aggregate remuneration of the Chief Executive over the last five years:

Name
Chief Executive
Single figure of total remuneration
Annual bonus paid/ payable as percentage of maximum (%)*
LTIP’s vesting in year

2010
£’000

2011
£’000

2012
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

254
-

254
-

278
-

283
5.3%
-

297
7.7%
-

* Estimated bonus payable for 2014.
Shareholding and Share Interests (audited)
There are no minimum shareholding requirements for directors or senior management. The table below shows the directors interests in the
Company’s shares at 30 June 2014.
Name
Executive Directors
Nick Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford
Non-Executive Directors
Roger Fidgen
Ric Piper
Geoff Wright
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Number of shares owned

174,128
97,123

85,000
50,000

On 7 October 2013, Nick Taylor exercised his conditional share bonus award over 38,000 shares for nil consideration. He sold these shares in the
open market for 54.5p each and on the same date, purchased 40,000 shares at 54.0p. He purchased 38,000 shares at 56.0p each on 7 October
2013. On 8 October 2013, he purchased 10,700 shares at 59.5p and 300 shares at 57.67p.
On 7 October 2013, Roger Fidgen purchased 35,000 shares at 56.0p
On 10 October 2013, Geoff Wright purchased 15,000 shares at 61.0p each. On the following day, he purchased a further 15,000 shares at 61.0p.
On 22 October 2013, Craig Beresford exercised his conditional share bonus award over 25,000 shares for nil consideration.
There were no changes in Directors’ shareholder interests between 30 June 2014, and the date of this report.
Shareholder Approval
At the 2013 AGM, shareholder proxy votes on the resolution to accept the 2013 Directors Remuneration Report were as follows:
Name
2013 Directors Remuneration Report

For

Against

Abstained

6,423,227(99.8%)

9,888 (0.15%)

3,400

Other Public or Listed Company Directorships
Executive Directors are not encouraged to hold external directorships unless the Chairman determines that such appointment is in the Group’s
interest and does not cause any conflict of interest. No Executive Directors have held any external directorships during the year.
Ric Piper is a Non-Executive Director of AIM listed Matchtech plc, Electron Technology plc and Turbo Power Systems plc and a Non-Executive
Chairman of Frontier Resources International Plc. Neither Roger Fidgen nor Geoff Wright hold directorships in any other public or listed companies.
Payments made in the Year for Loss of Office (audited)
During the financial year, Simon Harden and John Waiting stepped down from the board on 20 December 2013. Both continued to work for the
Company until 31 March 2014. Simon Harden received remuneration of £52,050 and John Waiting remuneration of £57,030 for their services for the
period to 31 March 2014.
In accordance with their service contracts, severance payments were paid as set out in the table below:

Name

Redundancy
£’000

Ex gratia
£’000

Pay in
lieu of notice
£’000*

Total
£’000

13
12

17
18

104
122

134
152

Simon Harden
John Waiting
*Includes salary, benefits, pension contributions, car allowance and any bonus payments
Payment to Former Directors (audited)
There were no other payments made to former directors during the year.

Advisers to the Committee.
During the year, the Committee continued to engage BDO LLP. BDO LLP complies with the code of conduct of the Remuneration Consultants’
Group, which sets out guidelines to ensure that its advice is independent and free of undue influence, and the Committee was satisfied that the
advice received was objective and independent.
Fees paid to BDO LLP in respect of these services in the year ended 30 June 2014 were a fixed fee of £2,050, (exclusive of VAT). BDO LLP provided
no additional services to the Company or Group during the year.
The Committee also makes use of various published surveys to help determine appropriate levels of director remuneration.

Geoff Wright
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
29 October 2014
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their report, together with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Principal Activities Aand Review of Business Operations
The principal activity of Waterman Group plc is that of a holding company. The principal activity of its subsidiary undertakings is the provision of
design services and advice in the fields of civil, structural, mechanical, electrical and power engineering together with environmental and health and
safety consultancy.
The Chairman’s Statement together with the Business Review and the Financial Review provide a detailed commentary on the Group’s performance
and activities during the year, the risks to which it is exposed and its current activities and proposed developments. The Key Performance Indicators
are reported on page 48 and the environmental performance data is reported in the Corporate Responsibility Report on page 65.
Results and Dividends
The loss for the year, after taxation, was £3,209,000 (2013: profit of £269,000). The loss attributable to the owners of the parent was £3,616,000
(2013: loss of £111,000).
Subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend for 2014 of 0.6p per ordinary share will be paid on 9 January 2015
to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 12 December 2014. With the interim dividend of 0.4p per ordinary share paid in April
2014, the total distribution for the year will be 1.0p (2013: 0.5p) per ordinary share.
Directors and Their Interests
The Directors of the Company at the date of this report are set in the Directors Remuneration Report on page 82. On 20 December 2013, Simon
Harden and John Waiting resigned from the Board. All other directors served on the Board throughout the year. Roger Fidgen will retire from the
Board immediately following the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Craig Beresford will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election. A short biography for Craig Beresford is set out on a separate letter to shareholders accompanying the Annual Report and Financial
Statement.
The Board considers that the performance of each Director continues to be effective and that each Director demonstrates a strong commitment to
their role.
The Company maintains Directors and Officers Liability Insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its Directors.
None of the Directors held any interest, either during or at the end of the financial year, in any material contract or arrangement with the Company or
any subsidiary undertaking. Details of Directors’ service contracts and Directors’ interests in shares are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 75-85.
Substantial Interests in Shares
Other than Directors’ interests, as at 29 October 2014, the Company had been notified, in accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, of the following interests of over 3% of its issued ordinary share capital

Ruffer Group
AB Traction
F Clampitt Esq.
Liontrust Investment Partners
Executors of A G Thomson deceased

Number of shares held

%

8,126,424
3,300,000
1,691,995
1,439,163
1,050,000

26.4
10.7
5.5
4.7
3.4

Share Capital
As at the date of this report, the Company’s share capital consists of 30,758,824 issued and fully paid ordinary shares each with a nominal value of
10p listed on the London Stock Exchange. Shares may be held in certificated or uncertificated form. Further details of the Company’s issued share
capital, including changes during the year, are disclosed in note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Information relating to treasury shares
purchased in the year and held at 30 June 2014 is set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Employment Policy
As a consultancy business, Waterman Group recognises that its staff are its most important asset. Their individual talent and collective experience
help the Group stand out from its competitors. Staff are kept informed of developments within the Group through regular announcements,
newsletters and electronic communications. Regular staff meetings enable their views to be taken into consideration.
The Group places great importance on its ability to attract and retain staff of the highest calibre. This is achieved by offering competitive salaries
and benefits, accompanied by effective training and the creation of career development opportunities throughout the Group. All UK operating
companies operate a flexible benefit scheme which enables staff to select from a range of benefits. A bonus payment scheme exists for current staff
to introduce new staff with the requisite skills to join the Group. The Group is committed to employment policies, which follow best practice, based
on equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The Group gives full and fair consideration to
applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made
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for the continued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group. If a member of staff
becomes disabled, the Group will continue his/her employment either in the same or an alternative position and with appropriate retraining being
given if necessary.
The Group provides employees with information on matters of concern and interest to them on its intranet site and by other electronic means.
It consults with staff when required so that their views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their interests.
Employee involvement is encouraged since achieving a common awareness of the range of legal, economic, social and financial factors affecting
the Group helps to maintain good communication with staff.
Further information on our Human Resources policies and workforce diversity can be found in the Human Resources Report on page 57.
Corporate Governance and Corporate Responsibility
The Group’s corporate governance and corporate responsibility principles and compliance are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page
67 and Corporate Responsibility Report on page 62.
Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s approach to financial risk management is set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The principal financial risks are
set out in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties Report on page 49.
Going Concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes. The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast and a forecast for covenant compliance to 30 June 2016. The
financial covenants allow for a sensible tolerance in trading performance in relation to the forecasts. The directors are confident that the underlying
forecasts are reasonable.
The Group is reliant on the ability of customers to pay debts and on the timing of new projects coming on line. In adverse trading circumstances
the Board has a number of mitigating actions it could take to ensure compliance with its covenants to banks and other institutions. The Group has
considerable financial resources together with long term contracts and relationships with a number of customers and suppliers across different
geographic areas and industries. An analysis of the Group’s borrowing facilities is disclosed in the Financial Review on page 59. As a consequence,
the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully in the future.
The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis for preparing the Financial Statement.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Information relating to the book value of the Group’s land and freehold property is disclosed in the Financial Review on page 59 and note 13.
Annual General Meeting
The AGM will be held at 10:30 am on 5 December 2014. Formal notice and details of the meeting are set out on a separate letter to shareholders
accompanying the Annual Report and Financial Statement.
Auditors and Disclosure of Information to Auditors
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors, and
authorising the Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
For each of the persons who were Directors at the time this report was prepared, each Director confirms that:
• so far as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Companies’ auditors are unaware; and
• he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

By Order of the Board
Graham Hiscocks
Company Secretary
29 October 2014
Company number: 2188844
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Waterman Group Plc
Report on the group financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.
What we have audited
The group financial statements (the “financial statements”), which are prepared by Waterman Group Plc, comprise:
• the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2014;
• the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
• the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended;
• the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). An audit involves obtaining
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statement (the “Annual Report”) to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Overview of our audit approach

Materiality
We set certain thresholds for materiality. These helped us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the
effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole.
Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the group financial statements as a whole to be £447,000. This represents
approximately 0.65% of revenue. We used revenue as the basis for materiality due to the low margins and loss position in recent years and to avoid
the volatility that would result from a profit-based calculation. We applied a threshold of 0.65% as we considered that this led to a level of materiality
that was appropriate for our audit.
We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £22,000 (5% of
materiality for the group financial statements as a whole) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.
Overview of the scope of the audit
The group is structured into two segments (namely Property and Infrastructure & Environment). The segments are further subdivided into eight
reporting units, comprising the group’s operating businesses and centralised functions, for the purpose of financial reporting.
In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the reporting units by us, as
the group engagement team, or component auditors from other PwC network firms operating under our instruction. Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in the audit work at those reporting units to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole. We
performed audits of the complete financial information of six of the eight reporting units.
Areas of particular audit focus
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. We primarily focused our work in these
areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
financial statements.
In our audit, we tested and examined information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we considered necessary to provide a
reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtained audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both.
We considered the following areas to be those that required particular focus in the current year. This is not a complete list of all risks or areas
of focus identified by our audit. We discussed these areas of focus with the Audit and Risk Committee. Their report on those matters that they
considered to be significant issues in relation to the financial statements is set out on page 73.
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Area of focus

How the scope of our audit addressed the
area of focus

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition - complexities and judgements on
long term contracts
We focused on the revenue and profit recognised on long term
contracts because they result in material balances, involve
judgements and can be complex. International Accounting
Standards require revenue to be recognised in accordance with
% completion, or if a project is loss making, the full loss should be
recognised.
The group generates revenue from long term contracts relating to the
supply of engineering and environmental consultancy services. The
group has a large number of small contracts, none of which stood
out individually as being higher risk.
The assessment of budgeted costs and % completion of contracts
are inherently subjective, although we note that Waterman Group
does not have any heightened level of subjectivity or judgement
compared to other companies in the industry.
In addition, ISAs (UK & Ireland) presume there is a risk of fraud in
revenue recognition.

We selected a sample of contracts to test, based on both
quantitative and qualitative criteria including revenue recognised in
the year, loss making contracts and revisiting certain contracts we
selected last year.
We obtained an understanding of management’s own process
for reviewing long term contracts (including the process for
identifying loss-making and/or higher risk contracts) and gained an
understanding of the key judgements involved and background to
the specific contracts selected in our sample, through speaking with
project managers. We also tested controls around the revenue and
receivables cycle.
We then tested the significant judgements adopted by management
in relation to the revenue recognition, and in particular, judgements
with respect to the % completion, by agreeing forecast costs
to complete with documentary evidence or by considering the
performance of projects post-year end.
In auditing the identification of loss-making contracts and the extent
of contract losses, we tested management’s estimates by comparing
the budgeted total profit on each selected contract with that
budgeted at the prior year end and investigated significant variances.

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets
We focused on this area because the Directors’ assessment of the
carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets involves complex
and subjective judgements about the future results of the business.

We evaluated the Directors’ future cash flow forecasts, including
comparing them to the latest Board approved budgets and testing
the integrity of the underlying calculations.

With the exception of the write off of goodwill as a result of the
closure of the United Arab Emirates (UAE) business, no impairment
was recognised, so we focused on those cash generating units
(CGUs) we considered to carry more judgement or for which
management’s impairment assessment model gave lower headroom
relative to other CGUs (the Group’s Australian business, Moylan and
Waterman Transport & Development Limited). The key judgements
involved included future revenue growth and margin assumptions.

We challenged the Directors’ key assumptions for both the future
revenue growth and the margins by comparing them to historical
results and the prospects for the business and the industry.

(Refer to note 11 to the financial statements.)

For the Australian business, Moylan and Waterman Transport &
Development Limited, we also performed sensitivity analysis around
the key drivers of the cash flow forecasts, in particular the revenue
growth and the margin assumptions. Having ascertained the extent
of change in those assumptions that either individually or collectively
would be required for the goodwill and intangible assets to be
impaired, we considered the likelihood of such movement in those
key assumptions arising.

Going concern and liquidity
We focused on the Directors’ conclusion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
This was due to fluctuations in net cash flows and the group’s
performance and covenant history in recent years, as well as the
condition of the engineering industry and the economy in general.
We noted that the net cash and covenant positions have improved
recently, but we continued to focus on this area given its pervasive
nature.

We obtained the Directors’ forecast of the group’s funding
requirements for a period covering 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements, as well as details of the
financing facilities in place. We re-performed management’s
calculations of the covenants at each test point and performed
sensitivity analyses around these and the cash flow forecasts
including adjusting future profit growth to industry average
forecast levels.
The key judgemental areas within the profit growth assumptions were
tested through the work performed on the carrying value of goodwill
and intangible assets (see above).
Furthermore, we assessed the Directors’ budgeting ability by
comparing past budgets to actual results achieved.
Our conclusion on going concern is below.
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Area of focus

How the scope of our audit addressed the
area of focus

Debtors and WIP recoverability
We focused on this area because the Directors’ assessment of the
recoverability of the contract debtor and WIP balances involved
subjective judgements about the contracts and customers of the
group. In recent years the economic situation in the engineering
industry in the UK and in a number of the group’s overseas locations
has sometimes made the recovery of these balances more difficult.
(Refer to note 16 to the financial statements.)

We tested the Directors’ assessment of the recoverability of material
debtors and WIP balances (as well as testing a sample of smaller
balances). As part of our testing on revenue, we challenged them
on key assumptions (such as future forecast progress on contracts).
Focussing particularly on aged debtor balances and WIP with
customers who had not been billed recently, we agreed the balances
to third party evidence such as post year end cash receipts or
customer correspondence. We also performed an assessment of
the movement in the balances after the year end and considered
the historical performance of the contracts and relationships with
customers involved.

Professional indemnity (PI) provisions may not be completely and
accurately recorded
The nature of the engineering industry gives rise to disputes in the
ordinary course of business, which may result in claims. Waterman
Group Plc has insurance in place in respect of these claims. Given
the significant judgement involved in assessing the appropriate
provision required, if any, in respect of each specific PI claim, we
considered this to be an area of focus for our audit.
(Refer to note 20 to the financial statements.)

We discussed with the Directors their rationale behind each
individual PI provision. We read correspondence between the Group
and its lawyers and insurers, the claimants and the claimants’
lawyers, in respect of all PI claims, whether or not a provision was
made in respect of them, to enable us to determine whether a
provision was required and, if so, whether the amount provided was
appropriate.
In addition, we obtained third party confirmations from the Group’s
lawyers that the list of claims was complete and the fact patterns
agreed to their latest understanding.

Exceptional items may not be recorded correctly
The group has reported exceptional items in the current and previous
years, primarily as a result of restructuring. Given the judgement
around what is presented as an exceptional item and the impact this
can have on the presentation of the Income Statement, we focused
on this area in order to make sure that items are being disclosed
appropriately.
(Refer to note 5 to the financial statements.)

We challenged the process by which costs were classified as
exceptional, in order to confirm that they were in compliance with the
group’s accounting policy. We tested the underlying values used in
the calculations through agreeing items to source documentation.
We also assessed the completeness of exceptional items using our
knowledge of the group and evidence obtained throughout the audit.
Furthermore we compared the nature of exceptional items to those
presented in previous years to assess whether there were recurring
items.

Discontinued operations may not be appropriately disclosed
Following the Board’s decision to discontinue the operations in the
UAE and Russia, management have disclosed the results of the
discontinued operations separately from continuing operations.
Given the material and one-off nature of this decision and the
appropriateness of the disclosure, we focused on this area.
(Refer to note 8 to the financial statements.)

We evaluated the Directors’ assessment that the operations had
closed during the year, including examining evidence of the initial
Board decision, correspondence with customers and sighting
evidence of closure costs incurred.
We challenged the process by which costs were classified as part of
the discontinued operations through discussions with management.
We also tested the completeness and appropriate recognition of
write-offs/provisions made including debtors and WIP balances on
contracts that were in the process of being finished.

Risk of management override of internal controls
ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that we consider this.
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We assessed the overall control environment of the group, including
the arrangements for staff to “whistle-blow” inappropriate actions,
and interviewed senior management. We examined the significant
accounting estimates and judgements relevant to the financial
statements for evidence of bias by the Directors that may represent
a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. We also tested
journal entries by testing the rationale behind them and agreeing
them to supporting evidence, making sure to include a degree of
unpredictability in our testing approach.

Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ statement, set out on page 87, in relation to going concern. We have nothing to
report having performed our review.
As noted in the Directors’ statement, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements using the going concern
basis of accounting. The going concern basis presumes that the group has adequate resources to remain in operation, and that the Directors intend
it to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial statements were signed. As part of our audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis is appropriate.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Corporate governance statement
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the parent company’s compliance with
nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”). We have nothing to report having performed our review.
On page 66 of the Annual Report, as required by the Code Provision C.1.1, the Directors state that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to assess the group’s performance, business model
and strategy. On page 73, as required by C.3.8 of the Code, the Audit and Risk Committee has set out the significant issues that it considered in
relation to the financial statements, and how they were addressed. Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
• the statement given by the Directors is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the group acquired in the course of performing our audit; or
• the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit and Risk Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by
us to the Audit and Risk Committee.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the Annual Report is:
• materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the course of performing
our audit; or
• is otherwise misleading.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Waterman Group Plc for the year ended 30 June 2014 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.
Simon O’Brien (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
29 October 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

notes

Revenue
Employee benefits expense
Other operating charges
Operating expenses
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation from Continuing operations
Loss for the period from Discontinued operations
(Loss) / profit for the financial year
(Loss) / profit attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non - Controlling interests
Earnings / (loss) per share from Continuing operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share
(Loss) / earnings per share from Continuing and
Discontinued operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share

2
3
4

13
12
6

7
8

Pre-exceptional
items
£’000

Exceptional
items
(note 5)
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’000

Pre-exceptional
items
(restated)
£’000

Exceptional
items
(note 5)
£000

Year ended
30 June 2013
(restated)
£’000

68,840
(40,941)
(25,991)
(66,932)

(753)
213
(540)

68,840
(41,694)
(25,778)
(67,472)

61,475
(38,301)
(21,060)
(59,361)

(336)
(78)
(414)

61,475
(38,637)
(21,138)
(59,775)

1,908
(396)
(67)
1,445
(140)
45
1,350
(328)
1,022
(3,813)
(2,791)

(540)
(540)
(540)
122
(418)
(418)

1,368
(396)
(67)
905
(140)
45
810
(206)
604
(3,813)
(3,209)

2,114
(338)
(394)
1,382
(165)
62
1,279
(177)
1,102
(512)
590

(414)
(414)
(414)
93
(321)
(321)

1,700
(338)
(394)
968
(165)
62
865
(84)
781
(512)
269

(3,198)
407
(2,791)

(418)
(418)

(3,616)
407
(3,209)

205
385
590

(316)
(5)
(321)

(111)
380
269

9

0.6p

1.3p

9

(11.8p)

(0.4p)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Profit for the financial year (see above)
Other comprehensive (loss) / income :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation adjustments
Change in UK rate on deferred tax
Employee Benefit Trust profit / (loss)
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive loss for the period, net of tax:
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non - controlling interest
Total comprehensive loss attributable to Owners of the Parent arising from:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

The notes on pages 96 to 119 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended
30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2013
£’ 000

(3,209)

269

(693)
7
(7)
(693)
(693)
(3,902)

(591)
4
(4)
4
(587)
(587)
(318)

(4,055)
153
(3,902)

(429)
111
(318)

(242)
(3,813)
(4,055)

83
(512)
(429)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2014

notes

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Loan and receivables
Deferred taxation asset

11
12
13
14
26

16,229
100
2,671
10
1,387
20,397

16,713
146
2,435
10
1,316
20,620

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank

16
17

31,696
3,019
34,715
55,112

32,138
3,189
35,327
55,947

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities – borrowings

18
19

(23,788)
(603)
(24,391)

(19,543)
(829)
(20,372)

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities – borrowings
Provisions

19
20

(801)
(1,549)
(2,350)
(26,741)
28,371

(1,244)
(1,545)
(2,789)
(23,161)
32,786

21

3,076
11,881
3,144
598
8,178
26,877

3,076
11,881
3,144
598
12,447
31,146

1,494
28,371

1,640
32,786

Total assets

Total liabilities
Net assets
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital
Share premium reserve
Merger reserve
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

23

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

The Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 92 to 119 were approved by the Board on 29 October 2014 and signed on its behalf by:-

Roger Fidgen					Nicholas Taylor
Chairman						Chief Executive

The notes on pages 96 to 119 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’ 000

Year ended
30 June 2013
£’ 000

3,658
(140)
45
(197)
(1,400)
1,966

1,801
(165)
62
(334)
74
1,438

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and other intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of PPE and other intangible assets
Discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) investing activities

(721)
3
(18)
(736)

(561)
5
(24)
(580)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowing

(428)

(415)

Repayments on finance leases
Equity dividends paid-Owners of the parent
Equity dividends paid-Non-controlling interest
Discontinued operations
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

25
25
25

(213)
(299)
(940)
290
2,788
(220)
2,858

(28)
(122)
(372)
(937)
(79)
2,998
(131)
2,788

notes

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’ 000

Year ended
30 June 2013
£’ 000

604
206
140
(45)

781
84
165
(62)

67
396
(4)

394
338
-

(1,690)
3,921
63
3,658

(466)
845
(278)
1,801

notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Continuing operations:
Cash generated from continuing operations (see below)
Interest paid
Interest received
Tax paid
Discontinued operations
Net cash from operating activities

Reconciliation of Profit for the financial year
to cash generated from operations
Profit for the financial year from Continuing operations
Taxation charge
Interest payable
Interest receivable
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Depreciation
(Loss) on disposal of PPE and other intangible assets
Changes in working capital
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease / (Increase) in provisions
Cash generated from continuing operations (see above)

10

7
6
12
13

The notes on pages 96 to 119 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2014
Attributable to the owners of the parent
Share
capital
£’000

Share
premium
reserve
£’000

3,076

11,881

3,144

594

13,002

31,697

1,901

33,598

-

-

-

4
4
4
-

(322)
4
(4)
(322)
(111)
(433)
(122)

(322)
4
4
(4)
(318)
(111)
(429)
(122)

(269)
(269)
380
111
(372)

(591)
4
4
(4)
(587)
269
(318)
(494)

3,076

11,881

3,144

598

12,447

31,146

1,640

32,786

Currency translation adjustments
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Employee Benefit Trust profit
Other comprehensive (loss)

-

-

-

-

(439)
(7)
7
(439)

(439)
(7)
7
(439)

(254)
(254)

(693)
(7)
7
(693)

(Loss) for the financial year
Total comprehensive (loss)
Dividend

-

-

-

-

(3,616)
(4,055)
(214)

(3,616)
(4,055)
(214)

407
153
(299)

(3,209)
(3,902)
(513)

3,076

11,881

3,144

598

8,178

26,877

1,494

28,371

Balance at 1 July 2012
Currency translation adjustments
Change in UK tax rate on deferred taxation
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Employee Benefit Trust loss
Other comprehensive (loss)
(Loss) / profit for the financial year
Total comprehensive (loss)
Dividend
Balance at 30 June 2013

Balance at 30 June 2014

Merger Revaluation
reserve
reserve
£’000
£’000

Retained
earnings
£’000

Noncontrolling
Total
interest
£’000
£’000

Total
equity
£’000

The notes on pages 96 to 119 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1 Accounting Policies
Accounting Convention
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRIC interpretations and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Company is a public
limited company, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The principal accounting policies which
have been consistently applied to the prior year, unless otherwise stated, in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are set
out below.
Basis of Preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 have been prepared in accordance with the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and in accordance with those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 related to reporting under IFRS that the board expects to be applicable as at 30 June 2014. IFRS is subject to amendment
or interpretation by the International Accounting Standards Board and there is an ongoing process of review and endorsement by the EU. For these
reasons, it is possible that the information presented in this report may be subject to change.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported year. Although these estimates are based on the Board’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention with the exception of land and freehold
property which have been modified to fair value at the date of transition to IFRS and separately identifiable intangibles acquired on business
combinations which have been measured at fair value.
New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for the first time in the current financial year but have had no
material impact on the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements:
New standards
IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’ (effective 1 January 2013)
IAS 19 (revised 2011) ‘Employee benefits’ (effective 1 January 2013)
Amendments to existing standards
Amendment to IAS 12,’Income taxes’ on deferred tax (effective 1 January 2012) (endorsed 1 January 2013)
Amendment to IAS 1,’Presentation of financial statements’ on OCI (effective 1 July 2012)
Amendments to IFRS 7 on Financial instruments asset and liability offsetting (effective 1 January 2013)
Annual improvements 2011 (effective 1 January 2013)
New and Amended Standards Not Applied
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July 2013, and
have not been applied in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements. The new standards and amendments relevant to the Group are listed
below, although these are not expected to have a significant impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements:
New standards
IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ (effective 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January 2014)
IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ (effective 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January 2014)
Amendments
Amendments to IFRS 10,11 and 12 on transition guidance (effective 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January 2014)
Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 on consolidation for investment entities (effective 1 January 2014)
Amendment to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’ on recoverable amount disclosures (effective 1 January 2014)
Annual improvements 2012 (effective 1 July 2014)
Annual improvements 2013 (effective 1 July 2014)
Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of the financial statements of Waterman Group plc and all of its subsidiaries (together ‘the
Group’) as at 30 June each year. Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has the power to govern financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding that confers more than half of the voting rights. The results of the subsidiary undertakings acquired have
been included from the date of acquisition being the date when control passed. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Business Combinations
The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition by acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Accounting policies of
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subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. All intra-group transactions and
balances are eliminated on consolidation.
Transactions and Non-Controlling Interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
Foreign Currency Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to
the Consolidated Income Statement.
On consolidation, income statements and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their functional currency into the Group’s functional
currency of pounds sterling using average rates that existed during the accounting period. The balance sheets of foreign subsidiaries and goodwill
arising on consolidation are translated into pounds sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses on the
translation of opening and closing net assets are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and cumulatively in the
Group’s reserves.
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Directors base their estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgements about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The estimates and assumptions that have the most significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are addressed in the paragraph below.
Critical Judgments
The Board considers that the estimates, judgments and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
• Contract Accounting: Revenue recognition, the valuation of trade receivables and amounts recoverable on contracts and the assessment of
the percentage of completion achieved. The Group assesses contract progress and determines the proportion of contract work completed at
the balance sheet date in relation to the proportion of contract work completed at the balance sheet date in relation to the total contract works.
This policy requires forecasts to be made on the projected outcomes of projects. These forecasts require assessments and judgments to
be made on matters including changes in work scope, changes in costs and costs to completion. While the assumptions made are based on
professional judgments, subsequent events may mean that estimates calculated prove to be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the
reporting results;
• Insurance Claims: Provisions in respect of potential liability insurance claims require assessments and judgments to be made of the likelihood of
a claim succeeding and an estimate of the quantum. While the assumptions made are based on professional judgments, subsequent events may
mean that estimates calculated prove to be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the reporting results;
• Goodwill is subject to impairment review both annually and when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
carrying value is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of CGU’s to which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires an estimate to be made of the timing and amount of future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and the application of a suitable
discount rate to calculate the present value. The discount rates used are based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted to
reflect the specific economic environment of the relevant CGU (refer to note 11); and
• Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is accounted for on temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred tax assets are only recognised as
recoverable if it is judged probable that a future taxable profit will arise against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax
liabilities will be provided for in full.
Segmental Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board.
Unallocated assets principally comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment that are controlled
by the parent company. Unallocated liabilities are primarily trade payables and accruals controlled by the Parent Company.
Revenue
Revenue is stated net of VAT and is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured. For short term contracts, the amount of revenue recognised reflects the work completed.
The Group has a number of long term contracts that span more than one financial period. In calculating revenue, the percentage of completion
method is used, based on a review of contract progress and the proportion of contract work completed in relation to the total contract works. Profits
are only recognised where they can be reliably measured, which is normally after the contract has reached 40% completion. Full provision is made
for all known or anticipated losses on each contract immediately such losses are identified. Contract costs comprise direct labour, direct expenses
and attributable overheads. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in the contract revenue to the extent that they
have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.
Gross amounts due from customers are stated at the value of the costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) where they exceed
progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by customers are included within trade and other receivables. To the extent that progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) they are included in trade and other payables as amounts due to customers
on long term contracts.
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Employee Benefits
a) Pension Obligations
The Group maintains a number of defined contribution schemes, including a stakeholder pension scheme, which are available to all qualifying staff.
Company contributions to these schemes are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the year to which they relate.
b) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
The Group operates the SIP to reward and encourage its executives and staff. When awards are approved by the Board, the SIP appropriates
company shares to staff up to a value of 5% of the Group’s profit before taxation each year by using funds provided by the Group. The distribution
of issued shares is arranged through Waterman Trustees Limited, a related company formed to administer the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) which
controls the SIP. Shares held by the EBT at the balance sheet date are disclosed as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity.
c) Share Based Payments
The Group operates a Company Share Option Plan, an Executive Share Option Scheme and a Long Term Incentive Plan which are all equity settled.
For all grants of share options and share awards, the fair value as at the date of grant is calculated using an appropriate option pricing model and
the corresponding expense is recognised over the vesting period.
Exceptional Items
Exceptional items are those that the directors consider are of such unusual size or nature that they are required to be separately disclosed to allow
the user of the financial statements to understand the underlying performance of the Group. They are disclosed within their relevant business
segment within note 2, Segmental Reporting and note 5, Exceptional Items. They typically include restructuring costs, property provisions and
certain work in progress and trade receivable provisions.
Finance Costs
Interest expense is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as it is accrued.
Goodwill
Goodwill recognised under UK GAAP prior to 1 July 2004 (and subsequent to 1 July 1998), the date of transition to IFRS, is stated at net book
value as at this date and has been frozen in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’. Goodwill on business combinations recognised
subsequent to 1 July 2004 is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of acquisition paid over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for impairment testing which is performed annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The recoverable amount of goodwill has been based on value in use as represented by
the net present value of future cash flows discounted using the group’s weighted average pre-tax real cost of capital.
Other Intangible Assets
Computer software licences acquired are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use specific software. Intangible
assets identified in a business combination are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the carrying amount
of an intangible asset is its cost or fair value less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed on acquisition and amortisation is charged as appropriate on a straight line basis. The annual amortisation rates applicable are
as follows:
Computer software
		
Customer relationships arising on business combinations

20%-33%
17%

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Depreciation
PPE is stated at cost or fair value when acquired, less depreciation and when appropriate, provision for impairment. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Freehold property has been
revalued to its fair value as at the date of transition to IFRS and is now held at deemed cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant amount in
the Revaluation reserve is transferred to Retained Earnings.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or fair value of PPE by equal annual instalments over their expected useful lives,
having regard to their residual values, and is subject to an impairment review. Land is not depreciated. The annual depreciation rates applicable are
as follows:
Freehold buildings			2%
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles
15% - 33%
Freehold land is not depreciated
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, Goodwill or Intangible assets not ready to use - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value or amortised cost, apart from the net assets and

98

liabilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings which are translated into pounds sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. They
are classified as current or non-current according to when the receipt or payment falls due. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the
Group are considered to be materially equivalent to their book value.
Financial Assets
The Group classifies its financial assets depending on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determined this
classification at initial recognition as detailed below:
Loan and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities that are greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise Trade and other receivables and Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.
Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement within Other operating charges. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against Other operating charges in the Consolidated Income
Statement.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement include cash and bank balances, short term deposits and invoice discounting
facilities (included in Financial liabilities-borrowings in the Consolidated Balance Sheet).
Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade
payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as Current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as Non-current liabilities.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
Leases
Finance lease agreements, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Finance costs are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement over the period of the agreement. Obligations under finance leases are included
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in Financial Liabilities – Borrowings, net of finance costs allocated to future periods. Capitalised leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Income
Statement as incurred on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Current and Deferred Tax
The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit or loss or taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the Consolidated Income Statement.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is likely that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Where the Group
expects all or some of the obligation to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Consolidated Income Statement net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date. If material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money.
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Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Dividend
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Consolidated Financial Statements when approved. Interim
dividends are recognised when paid.
Financial Risk Management
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing financial risks. These have remained unchanged throughout the year. The Group’s finance
team is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash flow monitoring. It seeks to ensure that
adequate liquidity exists at all times in order to meet its cash requirements.
The Group strategy is to finance its operations through a mixture of cash generated from operations and where necessary, equity finance and
borrowings by way of bank facilities and working capital finance.
The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and various items, such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise from its
operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group also has overdraft facilities in place to
optimise the use of its resources. The Group does not trade in financial instruments or derivatives.
In accordance with IFRS 7, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they
do not meet certain requirements. No such arrangements have been identified.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are described below.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its obligations if suitable sources of funding for the Group’s business activities are not available.
The Group’s liquidity is managed centrally with operating companies forecasting their cash requirements to the Parent Company. In managing
this risk, the Group has access to a range of funding at competitive rates through capital markets and banks. The Parent Company centrally coordinates relationships with banks, borrowing requirements, foreign exchange requirements and cash management. The Group believes that it has
access to sufficient funding by using undrawn committed borrowing facilities to meet foreseeable borrowing requirements together with the use of
retained profits and new equity.
The Group has continued with its policy of ensuring that there are sufficient funds to meet the expected funding requirements of the Group’s
operations and investment opportunities whilst monitoring its liquidity position through budgetary procedures, cash flow analysis and bank covenant
reviews. The Group has a Dun and Bradstreet credit risk rating of 4 which indicates a minimal credit risk.
The Group had net funds of £1.6m at 30 June 2014 comprising £2.8m of cash less £1.2m of debt.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Group has exposure to currency risk on business transactions where revenues and costs are in different currencies, and on translation of assets
and liabilities from local currency into sterling. Revenues and costs in the same currency are matched to form natural hedges wherever possible.
The Group would also implement hedging procedures or purchase currency hedges where a material exposure is identified.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest expense reflects the cost of the Group’s borrowings. Interest income arises from investment of cash and short term deposits held by the
Group. Interest rate risk is managed by monitoring market rates to ensure that optimal returns are achieved.
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loan, overdraft and sales financing facility
debt obligations. Bank interest is charged on a floating rate basis.
Credit Risk
Credit checks are performed on all potential customers. Accounts receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, with no single debtor accounting for more than 6% (2013: 3%) of total receivables balances at 30 June
2014.
Discontinued Operations
Cash flows and operations that relate to a separate major line of business or geographical region that has been disposed of are shown separately
from Continuing operations. Prior year comparative figures have been restated to present financial information on a consistent basis.
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2 Segmental Reporting
The Board reviews the Group’s internal management accounts in order to analyse performance and allocate resources. Performance was assessed
on the basis of operating profit before exceptional items as disclosed in the Consolidated Income Statement. Revenue was reported and assessed
on a consistent basis with revenue reported in the Consolidated Income Statement. The Board assesses the business from both a business
discipline and geographic perspective.
The losses incurred by the Discontinued operations (note 8) are reported separately in the Consolidated Income Statement below Profit after
taxation from Continuing operations. The segmental information for the comparative year has been restated onto the same basis as the current year.
The results for operations in the United Arab Emirates and Russia were previously reported in the International multi-disciplinary segment.
From July 2014, the Group will monitor and report on the performance of its Property and Infrastructure & Environment (“IE”) business segments.
The operating segments used in our management reporting for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been reported in the segmental reporting note
(note 2) as components of the future reporting operating segments of Property and IE which will be reported for the year ending 30 June 2015.

Year ended 30 June 2014
Consolidated Income Statement
Revenue – total
Revenue- internal
Revenue
EBITDA before exceptional items
Depreciation and amortisation on computer
software
Operating profit / (loss) pre exceptional items and
amortisation on acquired intangible assets
Amortisation on acquired intangible assets
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss) post exceptional items
Net finance costs
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation from Continuing operations
Loss for the period from Discontinued operations
(Loss) / profit for the financial year
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Loss attributable to the owners of the parent

Year ended 30 June 2013

Property
£’000

IE
£’000

Total
£’000

Property
£’000

IE
£’000

Total
£’000

38,910
(6,348)
32,562

38,094
(1,816)
36,278

77,004
(8,164)
68,840

32,952
(4,122)
28,830

37,242
(4,597)
32,645

70,194
(8,719)
61,475

3,326

(1,418)

1,908

1,726

388

2,114

(229)

(227)

(456)

(216)

(224)

(440)

3,097
(7)
(21)
3,069

(1,645)
0
(519)
(2,164)

1,452
(7)
(540)
905
(95)
810
(206)
604

1,510
(88)
(224)
1,198

164
(204)
(190)
(230)

1,674
(292)
(414)
968
(103)
865
(84)
781

(3,813)
(3,209)
407
(3,616)

(512)
269
380
(111)
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2 Segmental Reporting (Continued)
Year ended 30 June
2014
Revenue – total
Revenue- internal
Revenue
EBITDA before
exceptional items
Depreciation and
amortisation
on computer software
Operating profit / (loss)
pre exceptional items
and amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss)
post exceptional items

Other
Europe International
£’000
£’000

Total
Property
£’000

Civil and
Civil and
Transportation Transportation
consulting
outsourcing
£’000
£’000

Structures
£’000

Building
Services
£’000

Australia
£’000

21,119
(5,736)
15,383

8,462
(331)
8,131

6,900
(16)
6,884

2,331
(183)
2,148

98
(82)
16

38,910
(6,348)
32,562

13,963
(623)
13,340

1,569

625

917

25

190

3,326

(91)

(51)

(58)

(24)

(5)

1,478

574

859

1

0
(34)

(7)
(14)

0
(35)

1,444

553

824

Environment
£’000

Total
IE
£’000

15,282
(682)
14,600

8,849
(511)
8,338

38,094
(1,816)
36,278

(2,830)

749

663

(1,418)

(229)

(83)

(79)

(65)

(227)

185

3,097

(2,913)

670

598

(1,645)

0
62

0
0

(7)
(21)

0
(367)

0
(4)

0
(148)

0
(519)

63

185

3,069

(3,280)

666

450

(2,164)

Environment
£’000

Total
IE
£’000

In the year, EBITDA and profit for Other International includes £117,000 from settlement of a debt previously provided for.

Year ended 30 June
2013 (restated)
Revenue – total
Revenue- internal
Revenue
EBITDA before
exceptional items
Depreciation and
amortisation
on computer software
Operating profit / (loss)
pre exceptional items
and amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss)
post exceptional items

Other
Europe International
£’000
£’000

Total
Property
£’000

Civil and
Civil and
Transportation Transportation
consulting
outsourcing
£’000
£’000

Structures
£’000

Building
Services
£’000

Australia
£’000

16,092
(3,794)
12,298

5,665
(278)
5,387

8,694
0
8,694

1,889
0
1,889

612
(50)
562

32,952
(4,122)
28,830

18,059
(2,327)
15,732

11,133
(1,434)
9,699

8,050
(836)
7,214

37,242
(4,597)
32,645

1,209

243

784

(154)

(356)

1,726

(437)

282

543

388

(82)

(37)

(74)

(20)

(3)

(216)

(111)

(56)

(57)

(224)

1,127

206

710

(174)

(359)

1,510

(548)

226

486

164

0
(8)

(36)
(21)

(52)
(32)

0
(163)

0
0

(88)
(224)

(204)
(178)

0
0

0
(12)

(204)
(190)

1,119

149

626

(337)

(359)

1,198

(930)

226

474

(230)

A segmental analysis of net finance costs has not been disclosed as the directors are of the opinion that its components cannot be meaningfully
analysed across regions and classes of business.
Internal revenue is work done on behalf of fellow group undertakings on an arm’s length basis. External revenue reported to the Board is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the Consolidated Income Statement.
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2 Segmental Reporting (Continued)
Consolidated
Balance Sheet
30 June 2014
Goodwill
Other segment assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Discontinued operations
Financial and other
liabilites
Tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure
Consolidated
Balance Sheet
30 June 2013
(restated)
Goodwill
Other segment assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Discontinued operations
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Discontinued operations
Financial and other
liabilites
Tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

Structures
£’000

Building
services
£’000

Australia
£’000

0
23,497
23,497

680
4,729
5,409

4,565
3,325
7,890

(11,441)

(1,707)

(1,153)

Unallocated
Civil and
Civil and
and
Other Transportation Transportation
consolidation
Europe International
consulting outsourcing Environment adjustments
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

1,172
2,511
3,683

(2,006)

0
4
4

(8,690)

2,287
5,907
8,194

(7,299)

6,560
4,530
11,090

(980)

965
1,097
2,062

(1,875)

Total
£’000

0
(8,257)
(8,257)

16,229
37,343
53,572

15,543

153
1,387
55,112
(19,608)
(4,414)

15

6

Building
services
£’000

Australia
£’000

0
19,959
19,959

680
3,607
4,287

4,948
3,566
8,514

(1,257)

Unallocated
Civil and
Civil and
and
Other Transportation Transportation
consolidation
Europe International
consulting outsourcing Environment adjustments
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

Total
£’000

25

Structures
£’000

(8,633)

547

(1,536)
(1,183)
(26,741)
721

(1,526)

39

1,172
2,267
3,439

(1,953)

0

0
4
4

(8,849)

11

2,287
5,546
7,833

(6,086)

23

55

6,560
6,570
13,130

(804)

965
513
1,478

(1,687)

101
(5,655)
(5,554)

16,713
36,377
53,090

12,598

1,326
215
1,316
55,947
(18,197)
(1,988)

23

1

64

31

0

0

12

26

403

(1,925)
(1,051)
(23,161)
560

Unallocated and consolidation adjustments consist primarily of intercompany balances which are eliminated on consolidation and balances related
to the Group overdraft facility. The Group has the right to offset the cash and overdraft balances between Group companies and hence includes the
new balance, if any, within Cash and cash equivalents.
Geographical Segmental Analysis
30 June 2014
External revenue – by client location
Segment assets – by location of asset
Capital expenditure

30 June 2013 (restated)
External revenue – by client location
Segment assets – by location of asset
Capital expenditure

UK
£’000

Australia
£’000

Europe
£’000

Other
International
£’000

Group
£’000

Total
£’000

59,792
50,252
110

6,884
7,890
25

2,148
3,683
39

16
4
0

(8,257)
547

68,840
53,572
721

UK
£’000

Australia
£’000

Europe
£’000

Other
International
£’000

Group
£’000

Total
£’000

50,330
46,687
62

8,694
8,514
64

1,889
3,439
31

562
4
-

(5,554)
403

61,475
53,090
560
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3 Employee Benefits Expense
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
(restated)
£’000

35,407
753
3,720
1,814
41,694

33,077
427
3,402
1,731
38,637

Number
778
129
907

Number
641
127
768

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

95

95

134
16

143
20

2,099
379
27
(24)

2,408
390
(3)
(24)

Year ended 30 June 2014

Staff costs including Executive Directors remuneration amounted to:
Wages and salaries
Termination benefits - including exceptional items of £753,000 (2013: £336,000)
Social security costs
Pension costs
The average monthly number of employees including executive directors during the year were as follows :
Technical (excluding Discontinued operations)
Non-technical (excluding Discontinued operations)

The average monthly number of temporary and contract staff during the year was 200 (2013: 127).
Pensions contributions outstanding at 30 June 2014 were £152,726 (2013: £142,945).

4 Other Operating Charges
Other operating charges / (gains) include:
During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiary undertakings) obtained
the following services from the Company’s auditor and its associates:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of parent company and consolidated
financial statements
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:
-the audit of the parent company’s subsidiary undertakings pursuant to legislation
-other services pursuant to legislation
Operating lease rentals
- property
- plant and equipment
Loss / (gain) on foreign exchange
Rents receivable

5 Exceptional Items
The following is an analysis of the Exceptional items arising within the Group during the year, all of which have been included in the Consolidated
Income Statement.

Employee benefits expense
Restructuring costs
Other operating charges
Office closure costs
Property provisions and accruals
Work in progress and trade receivables provisions
Taxation
Total exceptional items

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

(753)

(336)

213
(540)
122
(418)

(66)
54
(66)
(414)
93
(321)

a) Restructuring costs: Costs relate principally to settlement and redundancy costs to former directors and staff arising from the restructuring of the
main Board and our Civil and Transportation consulting business in the UK (2013: redundancy costs arising from closure of the Chinese operation
and restructuring within the UK).
b) Office closure costs: The 2013 charge relates primarily to costs associated with the closure of the Chinese office.
c) Property provisions and accruals: In 2013, some provisions for office closure were written back to profit following favourable settlements for office
dilapidation costs.
d) Work in progress and trade receivables recoveries / provisions: Payment was received for two debts which had previously been written off as
exceptional (2013: provisions resulting from the closure of our office in China).
e) Taxation: The taxation credit of £122,000 (2013: £93,000 credit) is due to the tax deductibility of the exceptional items.
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6 Finance Costs

Interest payable on bank loans and invoice discounting facility
Other interest payable
Interest payable

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

101
39
140

122
43
165

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

-

(33)
(33)

277
277

255
222

(155)
84
(71)

67
(205)
(138)

206

84

7 Taxation
a) Analysis of Credit in the Year

United Kingdom
Corporation tax at 22.5% (2013: 23.75%)
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Foreign tax
Corporation taxes
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax
United Kingdom
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total deferred tax
Taxation
b) Factors Affecting Taxation for the Year

The following table reconciles the expected corporation tax charge, using the UK corporation tax rate for 2014 of 22.5% (2013: 23.75%) to the
reported tax charge. The reconciling items represent, other than the impact of tax rate differentials and changes, non-taxable income or nondeductible expenses arising from the difference between the local tax base and the reported financial statements.
The total tax charge in future years will be affected by any changes in the corporation tax rates in force in the countries in which the Group operates
as shown in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Profit before taxation from Continuing operations
Taxation on profit at standard UK rate of 22.5% (2013: 23.75%)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Adjustments in respect of foreign tax rates
Research and Development tax credits
Non-taxable
Losses (utilised) / not utilised
Change in tax rate
Total taxation charge

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

810
182

353
84

84
78
(24)
(114)
206

(238)
96
(27)
157
12
84

The Finance Bill 2013 included legislation to reduce the main rate of UK Corporate Tax from 23% to 21% from 1 April 2014. In addition, a further
reduction to the UK corporate tax rate was announced in the Finance Bill 2014 reducing the rate to 20% from 1 April 2015. As this rate was
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, UK deferred tax has been recognised at 20%.
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8 Discontinued Operations
In July 2013, the Board decided to discontinue trading in the United Arab Emirates (UAE). In January 2014, the Board decided to discontinue trading
in Russia. By 30 June 2014, all revenue generating operations in the UAE and Russia had ceased and the operations have been classified as
discontinued.
The Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement report Continuing operations and Discontinued operations separately.
Comparative figures have been restated. The results for the Discontinued operations, which have been included in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, were as follows:

Revenue
Expenses
Loss before tax
Taxation
Loss after tax from Discontinued operations

30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

523
(4,336)
(3,813)
(3,813)

5,284
(5,796)
(512)
(512)

A net cash outflow (including from Investing activities) of £1,418,000 (2013: inflow of £50,000) resulted from the Discontinued operations during
the year.

9 (Loss) / Earnings per Share
The basic and diluted loss per share has been calculated on the loss attributable to the owners of the parent and based on a weighted average
of 30,647,574 (2013: 30,567,407) shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year. The diluted loss per share from Continuing and
Discontinued operations is the same as there are no dilutive share options in issue as at 30 June 2014.

Basic (loss) / earnings per share:
(Loss) attributable to Owners of the Parent
Effect of dilutive share schemes
Diluted (loss) per share

2014
Loss
£’000

2014
Weighted
average
number
of shares
(thousands)

2014
Per share
amount
(pence)

(3,616)
(3,616)

30,648
30,648

(11.8)
(11.8)

2013
Loss
£’000

2013
Weighted
average
number
of shares
(thousands)

2013
Per share
amount
(pence)

(111)
(111)

30,567
30,567

(0.4)
(0.4)

The adjusted loss per share from continuing operations before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional items is 2.0p (2013: 3.1p)
as set out below.
Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

Profit attributable to the owners of the Parent
Exceptional items after taxation
Amortisation of acquired intangibles after taxation

197
418
5

401
316
208

Earnings for the purposes of adjusted EPS

620

925

Basic and diluted EPS
Adjusted and diluted EPS

0.6p
2.0p

1.3p
3.1p

Earnings from Continuing operations
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9 (Loss) / Earnings per Share (Continued)
The adjusted loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional items is
10.4p (2013: 1.4p earnings) as set out below.
Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

(Loss) attributable to owners of the Parent
Exceptional items after taxation
Amortisation on acquired intangibles after taxation
(Loss) / earnings for the purposes of adjusted EPS

(3,616)
418
5
(3,193)

(111)
316
208
413

Basic and diluted EPS
Adjusted and diluted EPS

(11.8p)
(10.4p)

(0.4p)
1.4p

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
£’000

91
122
213
184

61
61
122
92

(Loss) / earnings from continuing and discontinued operations

10 Dividends

Dividends charged to equity in the year
Final dividend paid in January 2014 of 0.3p (2013: 0.2p) per share
Interim dividend paid in April 2014 of 0.4p (2013: 0.2p) per share
Total dividend paid in year of 0.7p (2013: 0.4p) per share
Final dividend proposed for payment in January 2015 of 0.6p (2013: 0.3p) per share
A dividend of £299,000 (2013: £372,000) was paid to the non-controlling interest during the year.

An interim dividend of 0.4p per share was paid on 18 April 2014. Reflecting its confidence in the future performance and prospects for the Group,
the Board is recommending to shareholders a doubling of the final dividend to 0.6p per share (2013: 0.3p). If approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 5 December 2014, the shares will become ex-dividend on 11 December 2014 and the final dividend will be
paid on 9 January 2015 to shareholders on the register at close of business on 12 December 2014.
The Employee Benefit Trust has waived its entitlement to dividends which has reduced the 2014 interim dividend paid by £880 (2013: £586) and the
2013 final dividend paid by £656 (2012: £686).

11 Goodwill
Cost
1 July 2012
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2013
Exchange rate adjustments
Goodwill write off in respect of Discontinued operations (see below)
30 June 2014

Group
£’000

17,604
(397)
17,207
(383)
(101)
16,723

Accumulated impairment
1 July 2012, 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014
Net book amount
30 June 2014
30 June 2013

494

16,229
16,713

An additional charge of £101,000 has been incurred to write off the goodwill balance due to the discontinuance of operations in the United Arab
Emirates.
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ at least annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) in order to carry out impairment tests. A summary of goodwill allocation by
CGU or group of CGU’s at the operating segment level is included in note 2. Goodwill of £1.2m within the Europe operating segment arose on
consolidation of Moylan Consulting Engineers Limited (“Moylan”). Goodwill of £4.9m within the Australian operating segment is attributable to the
acquisition of the Group’s Australian businesses including the acquisition of AHW Pty Limited (“AHW”).
The impairment test involves comparing the carrying value of the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated to their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of all CGU’s has been determined based on value in use calculations. An impairment loss is recognised immediately the
carrying value of those assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
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11 Goodwill (Continued)
Value in use calculations
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on the following financial year’s budget as approved by the Board and strategic plans
of the relevant CGU’s for the remaining four years. The key assumptions in the budget and strategic plans relate to revenue and profit margins and
are based on actual results from previous years, existing committed and contracted workload, management expectations of market developments
and future workload demand, and pricing in each market or country of operation. The projections do not include the impact of future restructuring
projects to which the Group is not yet committed.
Growth rates are based on the economic environment of the country in which the CGU operates. As required by IAS36, cash flows beyond the five
year period are extrapolated based on the long term average growth rate for the primary country in which the CGU operates. The growth rates are
derived from the IMF World Economic Outlook published GDP growth rates.
The cash flows have been discounted using CGU specific pre-tax discount rates. The discount rates have been calculated based on the Group’s
weighted average (pre-tax real) cost of capital using the capital asset pricing model to determine the cost of equity and risks specific to the CGU.
The discount rates are revised annually using updated market information.
The excess of the value in use to the goodwill carrying values for each CGU gives the level of headroom in each CGU.
Key Assumptions
The growth rate and discount rate assumptions used for the internal value in use calculations are as follows:

Average revenue growth rate over the first five years
Post five year growth rate
Weighted average pre-tax real cost of capital (discount rate)

Group
30 June 2014

Group
30 June 2013

(16.0%) - 31.0%
2.39% - 2.93%
9.8% - 10.7%

3.0% - 20.0%
1.97% - 3.18%
9.0% - 11.1%

This range of assumptions has been used for the analysis of each CGU or group of CGUs within the Group’s operating segments.
Sensitivity Analysis
Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the goodwill in relation to each CGU by changing the key assumptions applicable to each CGU.
Given the lower headroom derived by the value in use calculations, more detailed sensitivity analysis has been performed upon the Moylan and
AHW CGU’s. The assumption to which the calculations are more sensitive is the pre-tax discount rate. Specific sensitivity analysis with regards to
this assumption shows that the rate would need to increase from 9.8% to 15.6% before any impairment would be triggered for Moylan, and increase
from 10.79% to 13.5% before any impairment would be triggered for AHW. For the other CGU’s, the analysis has indicated that no reasonably
possible changes in the individual key assumption would cause the carrying amount of the goodwill in the business to exceed its recoverable
amount.
Conclusion
Based on these internal valuations, the recoverable value of goodwill as at 30 June 2014 requires no impairment.
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12 Other Intangible Assets
Computer software
£’000

Customer
relationships
£’000

Order book
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
1 July 2012
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2014

2,430
92
(215)
(1)
2,306
54
(18)
2,342

2,782
(12)
2,770
2,770

204
204
204

5,416
92
(215)
(13)
5,280
54
(18)
5,316

Accumulated Amortisation
1 July 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2013
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments

2,280
102
(213)
(2)
2,167
60
15

2,482
292
(11)
2,763
7
-

204
204
-

4,966
394
(213)
(13)
5,134
67
15

30 June 2014

2,242

2,770

204

5,216

100
139

7

-

100
146

Net book amount
30 June 2014
30 June 2013
There are no intangible assets with indefinite lives.
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13 Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or valuation
1 July 2012
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2014
Accumulated Depreciation
1 July 2012
Charge for the year (including exceptional items)
Charge re: Discontinued operations
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2013
Charge for the year (including exceptional items)
Charge re: Discontinued operations
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2014
Net book amount
30 June 2014
30 June 2013

Freehold, land
and buildings
£’000

Plant, equipment &
motor vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

1,499
1,499
1,499

10,994
492
(1,984)
7
9,509
685
(492)
(130)
9,572

12,493
492
(1,984)
7
11,008
685
(492)
(130)
11,071

53
15
68

10,090
323
54
(1,976)
14
8,505

10,143
338
54
(1,976)
14
8,573

17
85

379
29
(488)
(110)
8,315

396
29
(488)
(110)
8,400

1,414
1,431

1,257
1,004

2,671
2,435

The Group’s freehold properties were revalued on transition to IFRS as at 01 July 2004 by independent qualified valuers. The valuations were
undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors by GVA Grimley and BH2, who
are both firms of independent chartered surveyors. The valuations were based on active market prices and reflect the existing value of the properties
concerned.
These valuations have been incorporated into the Consolidated Financial Statements and the resulting revaluation adjustments have been credited
to the revaluation reserve net of deferred tax with this revaluation surplus not being distributable under English law. If the land and freehold property
were carried at cost, the carrying amount would have been £0.7m (2013: £0.7m).
Certain Group assets have been used as security for borrowings as disclosed in note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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14 Investments
30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

10

10

Loan and receivables at net book value

The following companies are the principal subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2014 and all are consolidated:

Country of
registration /
incorporation
Waterman AHW Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman AHW (Qld) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman AHW (Victoria) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman Aspen Limited
England
Waterman Boreham Limited
England
Waterman Building Services Limited
England
Waterman Consulting Engineers India Private Limited
India
Waterman Energy, Environment & Design Limited
England
Waterman International (Asia) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman International Holdings Limited
England
Waterman International Kazakhstan o.o.o.
Kazakhstan
Waterman International Limited
England
Waterman International (London) Limited
England
Waterman Middle East Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman Moylan Consulting Engineers Limited
Republic of Ireland
Waterman Structures Limited
England
Waterman (Tianjin) Construction Design Ltd
China
Waterman Waterman Infrastructure & Environment
England
Limited (formerly Waterman Transport &
Development Limited)
Moylan Engineering Limited
Republic of Ireland

Class and
percentage
of ordinary
equity and
votes held Nature of Business
80%
80%
41%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy****
Engineering outsourcing consultancy**
Traffic engineering and transport planning consultancy
Mechanical and electrical consultancy
Structural engineering consultancy
Environmental, energy, waste and power engineering consultancy
Intermediate holding company*
Intermediate holding company
Multi-discipline consultancy*
Multi-discipline consultancy*
Multi-discipline consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Civil and structural engineering consultancy***
Structural engineering consultancy
Civil and structural engineering consultancy*
Civil engineering consultancy

100% Intermediate holding company

The equity of these subsidiary undertakings is directly held by the Company except where indicated by asterisks.
* interest held indirectly through Waterman International Holdings Limited
** interest held indirectly through Waterman Infrastructure & Environment Limited
*** interest held indirectly through Moylan Engineering Limited
**** Waterman AHW (Victoria) Pty Limited is fully consolidated because the Group indirectly controls more than 50% of its voting rights through its
control of Waterman International (Asia) Pty Limited.

15 Long Term Contracts
Total costs incurred
Profit recognised as income (less recognised losses)
Work in progress for third parties
Invoicing on account to customers
Of which work in progress for third parties is disclosed as:
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts (note 15)
Amounts due to customers on long term contracts (note 17)

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

114,354
17,574
131,928
(133,974)
(2,046)

102,215
17,185
119,400
(117,089)
2,311

10,536
(12,582)
(2,046)

10,963
(8,652)
2,311
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16 Trade and Other Receivables

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

21,754
(3,206)
18,548
10,536
255
153
2,204
31,696

21,540
(3,136)
18,404
10,963
102
215
2,454
32,138

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Trade receivables (net)
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts (note 15)
Other receivables
Current tax asset
Prepayments and accrued income

As of 30 June 2014, trade receivables of £12.4m (2013: £12.6m) were considered for potential impairment. The amount provided for these balances
was £3.2m (2013: £3.1m).The allocation of the provision according to the date from the issue of invoice is as follows:
Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

40
1
20
3,145
3,206

7
3,129
3,136

Less than 30 days
Between 30 and 60 days
Between 60 and 90 days
Between 90 and 120 days
Greater than 120 days

As of 30 June 2014, trade receivables of £9.2m (2013: £9.5m) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables from the date of issue is as follows:
Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

3,744
1,917
818
2,751
9,230

2,392
1,816
1,194
4,126
9,528

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

28,124
1,769
(155)
30
1,742
92
89
5
31,696

25,320
2,281
1,479
1,241
1,554
191
66
6
32,138

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

3,136
1,282
(572)
(610)
(30)
3,206

3,481
677
(1,008)
(108)
94
3,136

Less than 30 days
Between 30 and 60 days
Between 60 and 90 days
Between 90 and 120 days
Greater than 120 days

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
Australian dollar
UAE dirham
Russian ruble
Euro
Polish zloty
Indian rupee
Chinese renminbi

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

At 1 July
Provision for receivables impairment
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
Unused amounts reversed / collected
Exchange rate adjustments
At 30 June
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16 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
The impairment is disclosed within other operating charges in the Consolidated Income Statement. The other classes within Trade and Other
Receivables do not contain any impaired assets.
The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence of impairment of trade receivables. Evidence of impairment
may include that a debtor or group of debtors is experiencing financial difficulty, default in payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, or where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions which correlate with defaults.

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement:
Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

3,019
(161)
2,858

3,189
(401)
2,788

Cash at bank
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Cash and cash equivalents
The profile of the Group’s Cash at bank is:
30 June 2014
Floating rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2014
Fixed rate
financial assets
£’000

(184)
1,424
156
348
2
89
13
20
128
1,996

558
465
1,023

Sterling
Australian dollar
Euro
UAE dirham
US dollar
Polish zloty
Chinese renminbi
Russian ruble
Indian Rupee

18 Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables
Amounts due to customers on long term contracts (note 15)
Other taxes and social security
Other payables
Accruals

30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
Floating rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2013
Fixed rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

(184)
1,982
621
348
2
89
13
20
128
3,019

502
1,255
39
72
30
25
15
330
55
2,323

557
309
866

502
1,812
348
72
30
25
15
330
55
3,189

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

2,901
12,582
3,271
1,543
3,491
23,788

2,557
8,652
3,406
1,799
3,129
19,543

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

161
442
603

401
428
829

801
801

1,244
1,244

19 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Current
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Bank loan

Non-current
Bank loan
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19 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Continued)
The Group has one sterling bank loan which is repayable in 2017. This loan is at a floating interest rate of 2.75% (2013: 2.75%) above sterling
base rate as at 30 June 2014 and is secured by a fixed and floating charge over certain Group assets. The term loan is subject to three financial
covenants which are tested half yearly.
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s Non-current liabilities at 30 June 2014 was as follows:

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In more than five years

2014
Bank loans
£’000

2013
Bank loans
£’000

457
344
801

442
802
1,244

All of the Group’s liabilities are included in the table below. The carrying amounts of those liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:
30 June 2014
30 June 2014
Floating rate
Fixed rate
financial liabilities financial liabilities
£’000
£’000
Trade and other payables
- Sterling
- Australian dollar
- Euro
- UAE dirham
- Russian ruble
- Polish zloty
- US dollar
- Indian rupee
- Chinese renminbi
Bank loans and invoice discounting facility
- Sterling

30 June 2013
30 June 2013
Floating rate
Fixed rate
30 June 2014 financial liabilities financial liabilities
£’000
£’000
£’0000

30 June 2013
£’000

-

-

20,187
1,030
1,174
485
654
7
98
143
10
23,788

-

-

15,295
1,341
938
777
841
164
107
58
22
19,543

1,404
1,404

-

1,404
1,404

2,073
2,073

-

2,073
2,073

All trade and other payables and borrowings are disclosed at their contractual undiscounted values since the impact of discounting is insignificant.

20 Provisions

1 July
Charged to the Consolidated Income Statement
Utilised
Released to the Consolidated Income Statement
Exchange rate adjustments
Discount
30 June

Liability
insurance
claims
£’000

Property
provisions
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Liability
insurance
claims
£’000

Property
provisions
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

1,367
600
(75)
(348)
(70)
(9)
1,465

178
9
(102)
(1)
84

1,545
609
(177)
(348)
(70)
(10)
1,549

1,243
639
(75)
(379)
(59)
(2)
1,367

533
(355)
178

1,776
639
(430)
(379)
(59)
(2)
1,545

Liability insurance claim provisions reflect the Board’s estimate of the likely costs to be incurred by the Group arising from professional liability
claims.
Property provisions relate to rent, rates, service charge and other associated costs relating to office premises that have been vacated before the end
of the lease term or before a break clause can be exercised.
These provisions will be carried forward until the matters to which they relate are resolved and the provisions are utilised or released as appropriate.
No provision has been released or utilised for any purpose other than that for which it is established.
Further detail on property provisions are disclosed in note 5c to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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21 Share Capital
The share capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of 10p each. No shares were issued during the current and prior year.
Issued and fully paid

At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014

Number

£’000

30,758,824

3,076

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders by law, are set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association. On a show of hands, every shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote and, on a poll, every
shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote for each share which they hold in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Under the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme and Company Share Option Plan, options may be granted to Group employees (including
the Directors) enabling them to subscribe for ordinary shares.

22 Share Based Payments
During the year, the Group had three share based payment arrangements in operation of which further details are set out below:
a) Share Option Scheme
The share option schemes make awards to Group employees (including the executive directors) which are settled in equity. The schemes permit
options to be granted at an exercise price no lower than the market price of the Company’s shares at the time of grant. Options vest after three
years and must be exercised within ten years of the date of grant. At 30 June 2014, there were no unexercised options available for exercise (2013:
nil).
b) Long Term Incentive Plan (Ltip)
The LTIP for executive directors and senior management makes awards which are settled in equity. The performance conditions for executive
directors are for the Group’s growth in basic EPS to exceed the growth in the UK Retail Price Index by an average of 3% per annum over three years.
The additional criterion for senior management is for the profit before tax of their respective divisions to grow by an average of 3% per annum in
excess of the growth in RPI over three years. Senior management will receive 50% of their award entitlement upon the achievement of each target.
In view of the low levels of profit before taxation and earnings per share in recent years, no ordinary shares in the LTIP have been awarded to
executive directors and management since 14 November 2008. At 30 June 2014, no directors held conditional awards to subscribe for LTIP shares
in the Company (2013: nil).
c) Share Incentive Plan
Information in relation to the cash settled Share Incentive Plan can be found in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

23 Merger Reserve
The merger reserve represents the value received in excess of nominal value on shares issued pursuant to business combinations where company
law prohibits the recording of a premium. Included within the Retained earnings balance brought forward is an amount of £1,133,000 (2013:
£1,133,000) relating to the write off of purchased goodwill prior to the transition to IFRS.

24 Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Net Funds
Group
30 June 2014
£’000
Increase / (decrease) in cash balances in the year

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

50

(657)

668
718

1,021
364

Other non-cash changes
Exchange rate adjustments
Total increase in net funds in the year

1
(220)
499

(131)
233

Opening net funds
Closing net funds

1,116
1,615

883
1,116

Net decrease in borrowings
Total increase in net funds resulting from cash flows
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25 Analysis of Net Funds
Group
1 July 2013
£’000

Cash flow
£’000

Other non-cash
changes
£’000

Exchange
movements
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

3,189
(401)
2,788

50
240
290

-

(220)
(220)

3,019
(161)
2,858

(428)

428

(442)

-

(442)

(1,244)
(1,672)

428

443
1

-

(801)
(1,243)

1,116

718

1

(220)

1,615

Cash at bank
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Total of cash and cash equivalents
Current
Bank loans
Non-current
Bank loans
Finance leases
Total of bank loans and finance leases
Net funds

At 30 June 2014, £2.0m (2013: £1.8m) of the cash and cash equivalents were held in subsidiaries not wholly owned by the Group of which £0.9m
(2013: £0.8m) was attributable to the non-controlling interests.

26 Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 20% (2013: 21%) which is the rate announced
in the Finance Bill 2014, which will be applied from 1 April 2015.

Deferred tax asset
At 1 July
Credited to the Consolidated Income Statement
Credited to equity
Exchange rate adjustments
At 30 June

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

1,316
71
1,387

1,181
114
21
1,316

		

An analysis of the deferred tax balances and the movements in temporary differences of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year (prior to
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction permitted by IAS 12) are shown below:

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Provisions
Pensions
Losses carried forward
Asset

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Provisions
Pensions
Losses carried forward
Asset
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Group
1 July 2013
£’000

Equity
£’000

Income
£’000

Foreign
exchange
£’000

Rate
change
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

30
(5)
332
46
913
1,316

-

(8)
(9)
(3)
(4)
95
71

-

-

22
(14)
329
42
1,008
1,387

Group
1 July 2012
£’000

Equity
£’000

Income
£’000

Foreign
exchange
£’000

Rate
change
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

36
(79)
341
77
806
1,181

-

(6)
74
(27)
(31)
116
126

21
21

(3)
(9)
(12)

30
(5)
332
46
913
1,316

26 Deferred Taxation (Continued)
Full provision has been made for deferred taxation assets and liabilities which have been offset only to the extent that they relate to the same
taxation regime.
The net deferred tax asset at 30 June 2014, taking into consideration the offsetting balances within the same jurisdiction is £1,387,000 (2013:
£1,316,000). The assets and liabilities are expected to reverse in more than one year aside from assets of £758,000 (2013: £338,000). Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable.
Deferred tax has been calculated using estimates based on the current manner of recovery of the assets’ value on property, plant and equipment
not eligible for capital allowances, that is recovery through continued use in the business unless the asset is held for sale. This method assumes no
tax relief will be available; therefore, no tax base is available for inclusion within the calculation of deferred tax unless the assets value is recovery
through sale rather than continued use.
The key assumptions in the calculation of deferred tax are set out below:
a) Capital expenditure – the percentage of capital expenditure that would quality for tax relief, incurred by each unit, has been estimated based on
prior years’ historical experience of the split between qualifying and non-qualifying expenditure.
b) Depreciation – the depreciation rate for assets that do not qualify for the initial recognition exemption has been estimated based on actual data
for the most recent accounting periods.
c) Overseas tax losses – are not recognised to the extent that the losses cannot be utilised in the foreseeable future based on the latest profit
projections for that territory.

27 Related Party Transactions
The directors have identified 14 (2013: 18) key management personnel whose compensation was as follows: -

Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits

		

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

1,792
146
1,938

2,138
245
2,383

No further related party transactions are required to be disclosed for the year ended 30 June 2014.

28 Financial Commitments
There was £9,728 of capital expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment contracted but not provided for at the year end (2013: £28,162).
The Company and certain of its subsidiary undertakings cross guaranteed the bank loans of the Group at 30 June 2014. Invoice discounting
facilities provided to two subsidiary undertakings are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of those companies.
At 30 June 2014 the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: -

Property

Commitment expiring:
- within one year
- within two to five years
- after five years

Plant and equipment

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

1,514
3,574
1,620
6,708

2,030
4,548
2,471
9,049

69
708
777

182
363
545
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29 Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
The Group operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) to reward and encourage its executives and staff. At the Board’s discretion, the SIP may
appropriate Company shares to staff up to a value of 5% of the Group’s profit before taxation each year. No awards have been made in recent years
due to the low levels of reported profitability.
The SIP is satisfied by issued shares and controlled through the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT). The EBT is able to appropriate SIP shares using
funds provided by the Group to purchase company shares in the open market.
The distribution of shares through this plan is arranged through Waterman Trustees Limited, a related company formed to administer the EBT and
which held 94,442 (2013: 94,442) ordinary shares of 10p in the Company at 30 June 2014. The market value of these shares at 30 June 2014 was
£50,054 (2013: £45,804). Dividends on these shares are payable to Waterman Trustees Limited and set against the costs of operating the schemes
unless waived.
The assets of the EBT at 30 June 2014 have been incorporated into the Group Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash
Represented by:
Income tax payable
Amounts due to Parent Company
Amount receivable from third party
Amounts payable to staff leavers
Retained deficit
Own shares at valuation

		

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2013
£’000

12
12

10
10

2
132
4
(76)
(50)
12

2
132
(2)
4
(83)
(43)
10

30 Financial Instruments
The carrying value of all of the Group’s financial assets approximates to their fair value and they are classified as loans and receivables being the
total of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments of £2,204,000 (2013: £2,454,000)). The carrying value
of all of the Group’s financial liabilities approximates to their fair value and they are classified as Other financial liabilities at amortised cost being
the total of trade and other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities of £3,271,000 (2013: £3,406,000)), current borrowings and non-current
borrowings.
Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and interest rates. An
explanation of the board’s objectives and strategies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set out in the Financial Review on page 59 with
the relevant accounting policies explained in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
a) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group operates in a number of international territories and is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to the Australian dollar,
Euro and US dollar. Most trading activity is denominated in the relevant local functional currency thereby matching the revenue flows with the cost
base. Foreign currency risk arises from a proportion of commercial transactions undertaken in currencies other than the local functional currency,
from financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the local functional currency and on the Group’s investments in foreign
operations.
Trade receivables, trade payables and bank accounts denominated in currencies other than the local functional currency arising from commercial
transactions are immaterial at 30 June 2014. Inter-company funding balances in currencies other than the local functional currency are hedged
where this is considered to be appropriate.
Floating rate financial assets earn interest based primarily on UK, Euro and Australian base interest rates. The fair value of the financial assets
equates to their book values. All of the Group’s financial assets are due within one year.
At 30 June 2014, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Australian dollar with all other variables held constant, the profit for
the financial year would have been £77,000 (2013: £71,000) higher/lower, principally as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Australian dollar denominated trade receivables.
At 30 June 2014, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Euro with all other variables held constant, the profit for the financial
year would have been £12,000 (2013: £16,000) higher/lower, principally as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Euro
denominated trade receivables and borrowings.
At 30 June 2014, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other variables held constant, the profit for the financial
year would have been £nil (2013: £27,000) higher/lower, principally as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar trade
receivables.
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30 Financial Instruments (Continued)
b) Interest Rate Risk
The weighted average rate of interest on the floating rate financial liabilities at 30 June 2014 is 3.19% (2013: 3.16%) with a weighted average expiry
of 3 years (2013: 4 years). At 30 June 2014, there were no fixed rate liabilities or finance lease obligations.
At 30 June 2014, if interest rates on UK sterling denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit for the financial year would have been £7,000 (2013: £9,000) lower / higher mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense
on floating rate borrowings.
c) Liquidity Risk
Cash flow forecasting is performed by the operating entities of the Group and aggregated by the Group finance team which monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing
facilities. These facilities comprise bank overdraft and invoice discounting facilities and provide short term flexibility in liquid resources. At 30 June
2014, these facilities, where all conditions precedent have been met, were £6.9m (2013: £7.2m) which expire within one year. Cash flow forecasting
takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing plans and covenant compliance.
Surplus cash held by the operating entities, above the balance required for short term working capital management, is invested in interest bearing
current accounts, time deposits and overnight money market deposits to earn interest at rates close to the prevailing local base rates. At 30 June
2014 the Group has £2.9m of cash and cash equivalents held in bank accounts (2013: £2.8m) which is immediately available for use.
d) Credit Risk
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group’s adherence to its credit risk policy. Management believes
there is no further credit risk provision required in excess of normal provision for doubtful receivables.
Management assesses credit limits on a project by project basis. Levels of working capital balances are reviewed and acted upon on a monthly
basis by senior management in order to mitigate such credit risk. Credit risk in respect of cash and deposits is limited and mitigated by the
counterparties who are financial institutions with high credit ratings.
e) Capital Risk Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costs of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.
At 30 June 2014, the Group had net funds of £1.6m (2013: 1.1m). Its return on average capital employed for the financial year was 11.4%
(2013: 7.6%).

31 Ultimate Controlling Party
In the opinion of the directors the Company has no controlling party.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Waterman Group Plc
Report on the parent company financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 June 2014;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.
What we have audited
The parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”), which are prepared by Waterman Group Plc, comprise:
• the Parent Company Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2014; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). An audit involves obtaining
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;
• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statement (the “Annual Report”) to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:
• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
• the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the Annual Report is:
• materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the company acquired in the course of performing
our audit; or
• is otherwise misleading.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Waterman Group Plc for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Simon O’Brien (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
29 October 2014
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Parent Company Financial Statements
The following parent company financial statements are prepared under UK GAAP and relate to the Company and not to the Group. The statement
of accounting policies which have been applied to these accounts can be found on page 122 and a separate independent auditors’ report on
page 120.

Company Balance Sheet as at 30 June
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments
Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
Net current assets

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

36
37

1,543
19,641
21,184

1,325
19,641
20,966

38

10,758
10,758
(6,255)
4,503

9,187
9,187
(4,823)
4,364

25,687

25,330

(801)

(1,244)

24,886

24,086

3,076
11,881
3,144
140
6,645
24,886

3,076
11,881
3,144
140
5,845
24,086

notes

39

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year)

39

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium reserve
Merger reserve
Other reserve
Profit and loss account
Total shareholders’ funds

41
42
42
42
42
43

The Financial Statements which comprise the Company Balance Sheet and related notes were approved by the Board on 29 October 2014 and
signed on its behalf by:-

Roger Fidgen				
Nicholas Taylor
Chairman					Chief Executive

The notes on pages 122 to 125 are an integral part of these Parent Company Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
32 Accounting Policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and on a going concern basis in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law.
The more significant accounting policies are set out below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding year
unless otherwise noted.
Employee Benefits
The Company accounting policy for employee benefits is consistent with the Group employee benefits policy as set out in note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Tangible Fixed Assets And Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost when acquired, less accumulated depreciation and when appropriate, provision for impairment. Cost
includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets less estimated residual values over the expected useful
economic lives of the assets concerned. The annual rates used are:
Freehold property				
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles		
Freehold land is not depreciated

2% per annum straight line or lease period if less
15-33% per annum straight line

Investments
Investments are included in the balance sheet at cost less amounts written off, representing impairment in value.
Borrowings
The Company’s accounting policy for borrowings is consistent with the Group borrowings policy as set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Leases
The Company’s accounting policy for leases is consistent with the Group leases policy as set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Deferred Taxation
Deferred taxation is provided in full on an undiscounted basis on all timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law.
Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different from those in which they are
included in the Financial Statements.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and is recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more
likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable future from which the reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted.
Financial Risk Management
The Company policy for managing financial risk is consistent with the Group financial risk management policy as set out in note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

33 Profit / Loss For The Year
The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Parent Company
profit after tax of £799,588 (2013: loss of £254,000) is after dividends receivable from subsidiaries of £505,324 (2013: £121,770).
The auditors’ remuneration for audit services to the Company was £20,000 (2013: £20,000).

34 Directors’ Emoluments
Directors’ emoluments during the year amounted to:

Aggregate emoluments for qualifying services
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes
Three directors have retirement benefits accruing under money purchase pension schemes (2013: 5).
Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments including gains on exercise of share options
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme

35 Dividends
Dividends proposed and paid in the year are disclosed in note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended
30 June 2014
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2013
£’000

960
75

1,060
88

274
23

260
23

36 Tangible Assets
Land and
freehold property
£’000

Plant, equipment
and motor vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
30 June 2014

767
767

6,312
516
(117)
6,711

7,079
516
(117)
7,478

Accumulated Depreciation
1 July 2013
Charge for the year
Disposals
30 June 2014

119
8
127

5,635
290
(117)
5,808

5,754
298
(117)
5,935

Net book amount
30 June 2014
30 June 2013

640
648

903
677

1,543
1,325

Shares in Group
undertakings
£’000

Long term loan to
Group undertaking
£’000

Total
£’000

17,778

1,863

19,641

37 Investments

1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets. Further details on the Company’s
principal subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2014 are disclosed in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

38 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors
Corporation tax
Prepayments and accrued income

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
£’000

9,139
237
1,382
10,758

7,658
221
102
1,206
9,187

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The Company’s other debtors include £237,000
relating to deferred taxation (2013: £221,000). Further disclosure on deferred taxation is shown below:

The undiscounted deferred tax asset comprises:
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
Short-term timing differences
Unutilised losses carried forward

Asset at the beginning of the year including deferred tax asset on pension accrual
Amount credited / (charged) to profit and loss reserve
Asset at the end of the year including deferred tax asset on pension accrual

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
£’000

168
33
36
237

157
34
30
221

221
16
237

248
(27)
221
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39 Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year:

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
£’000

5,190
588
6
286
185
6,255

3,382
590
219
65
567
4,823

Company
30 June 2014
Bank loans
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
Bank loans
£’000

457
344
801

442
802
1,244

Bank loans and overdraft
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Repayable by instalments:
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and ten years

Further disclosure relating to the Company’s bank loans is shown in note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 Operating Lease Commitments
At 30 June 2014, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
Premises

Commitment expiring:
within one year
within two to five years
after five years

Other

30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2013
£’000

122
86
1,094
1,302

116
223
1,020
1,359

9
9

2
18
20

41 Called up Share Capital
The detailed breakdown of share capital together with options and awards over the Company’s shares outstanding at 30 June 2014 are set out in
notes 21 and 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

42 Reserves

1 July 2013
Profit for the year
Dividend received from subsidiaries
Dividend paid to shareholders
30 June 2014

Share premium
reserve
£’000

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserve
£’000

Profit and loss
account
£’000

11,881
11,881

3,144
3,144

140
140

5,845
508
505
(213)
6,645

The Other non-distributable reserve of £140,000 (2013: £140,000) arose on a group re-organisation in 2003.
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43 Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

Profit / (loss) for the year
Dividend (net)
Net increase / (decrease) to shareholders’ funds
Shareholders’ funds as at 1 July
Shareholders’ funds as at 30 June

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
£’000

508
292
800
24,086
24,886

(254)
(122)
(376)
24,462
24,086

44 Related Party Transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemptions within FRS 8 Related Party Transactions not to disclose transactions between wholly owned
Group companies. Transactions occurred with Waterman AHW Pty Limited in the normal course of business and the year-end balance is disclosed
below;

Amounts owed by related party
Waterman AHW Pty Limited

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

Company
30 June 2013
£’000

86

86
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Five Year Results Summary

Revenue
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Profit / (loss) attributable to the owners of the parent
Basic earnings / (loss) per share

2010
Restated
£’000

2011

2012
£’000

2013
Restated
£’000

£’000

83,244
(5,044)
(5,139)
(16.9p)

74,097
612
120
0.4p

2014
£’000

68,840
530
(91)
(0.3p)

61,475
865
(111)
(0.4p)

68,840
810
(3,616)
(11.8p)

The Five Year Results Summary above relates to the Group Consolidated Financial Statements and not those of the Parent Company. The restated
results for 2013 exclude the results from operations in the UAE and Russia which were discontinued during 2014. The restated results for 2010
correct a £525,000 misstatement in the calculation of profit attributable to the non-controlling interest for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Share Dealing Service

A share dealing service is available to existing shareholders to buy or sell the Company’s shares via Capita Share Dealing Services. Online and
telephone dealing facilities provide an easy to access and simple to use service.
For further information on this service, or to buy or sell shares, please contact www.capitadeal.com for online dealing or 0871 664 0454 for telephone
% of Trade
Minimum Value

Minimum Charge

Maximum Charge

1.5%
1.0%

£28.50
£21.00

£175.00
£125.00

Telephone
Internet

All charges include a £3.50 compliance charge. An additional £1 PTM Levy is applicable for transactions over £10,000. Stamp Duty applies to all
purchases.
Please note that the directors of the Company are not seeking to encourage the shareholders to either buy or sell their shares. Shareholders in
any doubt as to what action to take are recommended to seek financial advice from an independent financial adviser authorised by the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000.
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April 2015			
October 2015		
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